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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

1021 NORTH GRAND AVENUE EAST, P.O. Box 19276, SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62794-9276 • (217) 782-3397 
PAT QUINN, GOVERNOR JOHN J. KIM, INTERIM DIRECTOR 

217-785-0561 

October 24,2012 

John Kennedy 
Senior Vice President, Generation 
235 Remington, Suite A 

, Bolingbrook, IL 60440 

Re: Compliance Commitment Acceptance 
Violation Notice: W-2012-00057 

CERTIFIED MAIL # 70111150 0001 08590119 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Midwest Generation, LLC, Powerton Generating Station; ID Number: 6282 

Dear Mr. Kennedy: 

The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EP A") has approved the Compliance Commitment 
Agreement ("CCA") for Midwest Generation, LLC, Powerton Generating Station. Please find enclosed an 
executed copy of the CCA for your records. 

Failure to fully comply with the CCA may, at the sole discretion of the Illinois EPA, result in referral of this 
matter to the Office of the Attorney General, the State's Attorney or the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency. 

The CCA does not constitute a waiver or modification of the terms and conditions of any license or permit 
issued by the Illinois EPA or any other unit or department of local, state or federal government or of any local, 
state or federal statute or regulatory requirement. 

Questions regarding this matter should be directed to Andrea Rhodes at 217/785-0561. Written 
communications should be directed to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, Bureau of Water, CAS 
#19, P.O. Box 19276, Springfield, IL 62794-9276, and all communications shall include reference to your 
Violation Notice Number W-2012-00057. 

Sincerely, 

?7Z,,~~ 
Michael C y /~ 
Manager, Compliance Assurance Section 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
Bureau of Water 

Attachments 

cc: Basil G. Constantelos 
Maria Race 
Susan M. Franzetti 

BOW ID: W1798010008 CASE ID: 2012-006 
4302 N. Main St., Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 
595 5. State, Elgin, IL 60123 (847)608-3131 
2125 5. First St., Champaign, IL 61 820 (217)278-5800 
2009 Moll St., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 

PLEASE PRINT ON RECYCLED PAPER 

9511 Harrison St., Des Plalnes,lL 60016 (847)294-4000 
5407 N. University St., Arbor 113, Peoria, IL 61614 (309)693-5462 
2309 W.Maln St., Suite 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618)993-7200 
100 W. Randolph, Suite 11-300, Chicago, IL 60601 (312)814-6026 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

IN THE MATTER OF: ) 
) 

MIDWEST GENERATION, LLC, ) 
POWERTON GENERATING STATION ) 
PEKIN, TAZEWELL COUNTY, IL ) 
ID NUMBER: 6282 ) 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 'I 2012 

tEPA/CAS 
) 
) 
) 
) 

ILLINOIS EPA VN W-2012-00057 
BUREAU OF WATER 

COMPLIANCE COMMITMENT AGREEMENT 

I. Jurisdiction 

I. This Compliance Commitment Agreement ("CCA") is entered into voluntarily by the 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EPA") and Midwest Generation, 
LLC, Powerton Generating Station ("Respondent") (collectively, the "Parties") under the 
authority vested in the illinois EPA pursuant to Section 31(a)(7)(i) of the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Act ("Act"), 415 ILCS 5/31 (a)(7)(i). 

II. Allegation of Violations 

2. Respondent owns and operates Powerton Generating Station in Pekin, Tazewell County, 
Illinois ("Powerton"). 

3. Pursuant to Violation Notice ("VN") W-2012-00057 issued on June 11,2012, the Illinois 
EPA contends that Respondent has violated the following provisions of the Act and 
Illinois Pollution Control Board ("Board") Regulations: 

a) Operations at ash impoundments have resulted in violations of the Groundwater 
Quality Standards at monitoring wells MW-I, MW-2, MW-4, MW-5, MW-6, 
MW-7, MW-8, MW-9, MW-lO, MW-II, MW-12, MW-13, MW-14, and MW-15. 
Section 12 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/12, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 620.115,620.301, 
620.401,620.405, and 620.410. 
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III. Compliance Activities 

4. On September 4,2012, the Illinois EPA received Respondent's response to VN W-2012-
00057, which included proposed terms for a CCA. The Illinois EPA has reviewed 
Respondent's proposed CCA terms, as well as considered whether any additional terms 
and conditions are necessary to attain compliance with the alleged violations cited in the 
VN. 

5. Respondent agrees to undertake and complete the following actions, which the lllinois 
EP A has determined are necessary to attain compliance with the allegations contained in 
VN W-2012-00057: 

a) The ash ponds at Powerton shall not be used as permanent disposal sites and shall 
continue to function as treatment ponds to precipitate ash. Ash shall continue to 
be removed from the ponds on a periodic basis. 

b) The ash treatment ponds shall be maintained and operated in a manner which 
protects the integrity of the existing liners. During the removal of ash from the 
ponds, appropriate procedures shall be followed to protect the integrity of the 
existing liners, including operating the ash removal equipment in a manner which 
minimizes the risk of any damage to the liner. 

c) During the ash removal process, visual inspections of the ponds shall be 
conducted to identify any signs of a breach in the integrity of the pond liners. In 
the event that a breach of the pond liners is detected, Midwest Generation shall 
promptly notify the lllinois EPA and shall implement a corrective action plan for 
repair or replacement as necessary, of the liner. Upon the Illinois EPA's approval, 
and the issuance of any necessary construction permit, Midwest Generation will 
implement the corrective action plan. 

d) Midwest Generation shall monitor the new well as described in 5(t) below and the 
existing fifteen groundwater monitoring wells quarterly for constituents in 35 Ill. 
Adm. Code 620.410(a) and (d), with the exception of radium 226 and 228, and 
report its findings to the lllinois EPA within 30 days of the end of each quarter. 
In addition, Midwest Generation shall record and report groundwater elevation 
and submit a potentiometric surface map with the above quarterly groundwater 
monitoring report. 

e) Within 90 days ofthe effective date of the CCA, Midwest Generation shall submit 
an application for a construction permit to re-line the Ash Surge Basin and the 
Secondary Ash Settling Basin at Powerton with a 60 mil thickness high density 
polyethylene ("HDPE") liner or an lllinois EPA approved equivalent material. 

t) Midwest Generation shall install an additional groundwater monitoring well south 
of monitor well 9, in a location approved by the lllinois EPA, to better define up 
gradient groundwater quality, within 60 days of the effective date of the CCA. 
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g) Midwest Generation shall submit an application to establish a GMZ pursuant to 
35 lll. Adm. Code Part 620.250 within 90 days of the effective date ofthe CCA. 

h) Midwest Generation shall enter into an Environmental Land Use Control (ELUC) 
to cover the area of the Powerton Station property which is contained within the 
GMZ. Midwest Generation shall submit a proposed draft ELUC to the lllinois 
EPA for review and comment within 90 days of the effective date of the CCA. 

i) Midwest Generation shall record the ELUC within 30 days of approval of the 
ELUC by the lllinois EPA. 

j) Midwest Generation shall establish a GMZ pursuant to 35 TIL Adm. Code Part 
620.250 within one year of the effective date of the CCA. 

k) Once the Ash Surge Basin and the Secondary Ash Settling Basin have been lined 
and a GMZ and ELUC have been established at Powerton, Midwest Generation 
shall submit a certification (or a statement) of compliance. Midwest Generation 
may submit either the attached "lllinois EPA Compliance Statement" or another 
similar writing to satisfy the statement of compliance within one year of the 
effective date of the CCA. 

1) Midwest Generation shall not allow the East Yard Run-off Basin to be part of the 
ash sluicing flow system. Further, Midwest Generation shall submit monitoring 
results from water contained in the East Yard Run-off Basin proximate to outfall 
monitoring point 003 within 60 days of the effective date of the CCA. Quarterly 
monitoring of the East Yard Run-off Basin shall be for the constituents listed in 
35 TIL Adm. Code 620.410(a) and (d) with the exception of radium 226 and 
radium 228. At the end of four (4) quarters of monitoring, Midwest Generation 
may request cessation of water monitoring from the East Yard Run-off Basin. 

m) Midwest Generation shall not use any unlined areas for permanent or temporary 
ash storage or ash handling. 

IV. Terms and Conditions 

6. Respondent shall comply with all provisions of this CCA, including, but not limited to, 
any appendices to this CCA and all documents incorporated by reference into this CCA. 
Pursuant to Section 31(a)(10) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(a)(10), if Respondent complies 
with the terms of this CCA, the lllinois EPA shall not refer the alleged violations that are 
the subject of this CCA, as described in Section II above, to the Office of the lllinois 
Attorney General or the State's Attorney of the county in which the alleged violations 
occurred. Successful completion of this CCA or an amended CCA shall be a factor to be 
weighed, in favor of the Respondent, by the Office of the lllinois Attorney General in 
determining whether to file a complaint on its own motion for the violations cited in VN 
W-2012-00057. 
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7. This CCA is solely intended to address the violations alleged in Illinois EPA VN 

W-2012-00057. The llliilois EPA reserves and this CCA is without prejudice to, all 

rights of the Illinois EPA against Respondent with respect to noncompliance with any 

term of this CCA, as well as to all other matters.· Nothing in this CCA is intended as a 
waiver, discharge, release, or covenant not to sue for any claim or cause of action, 

administrative or judicial, civil or criminal, past or future, in law or in equity, which the 
Illinois EP A may have against Respondent, or any other person as defined by Section 

3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315. This CCA in no way affects the responsibilities of 
Respondent to comply with any other federal, state or local laws or regulations, including 

but not limited to the Act, and the Board Regulations [and Permit, if applicable]. 

8. Pursuant to Section 42(k) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(k), in addition to any other remedy 
or penalty that may apply, whether civil or criminal, Respondent shall be liable for an 
additional civil penalty of $2,000 for violation of any of the terms or conditions of this 
CCA. 

9. This CCA shall apply to and be binding upon the Illinois EPA, and on Respondent and 
Respondent's officers, directors, employees, agents, successors, assigns, heirs, trustees, 
receivers, and upon all persons, including but not limited to contractors and consultants, 
acting on behalf of Respondent, as well as upon subsequent purchasers of Respondent's 
Powerton in Pekin, Tazewell County, lllinois. 

10. In any action by the Illinois EPA to enforce the terms of this CCA, Respondent consents 
to and agrees not to contest the authority or jurisdiction of the Illinois EPA to enter into 
or enforce this CCA, and agrees not to contest the validity of this CCA or its terms and 
conditions. 

11. This CCA shall only become effective: 

a) If, within 30 days of receipt, Respondent executes this CCA and submits it, via 
certified mail, to Illinois EPA, Bureau of Water, Andrea Rhodes, MC #19, 1021 
North Grand Ave East, Springfield, IL 62702. If Respondent fails to execute and 
submit this CCA within 30 days of receipt, via certified mail, this CCA shall be 
deemed rejected by operation oflaw; and 

b) Upon execution by all Parties. 

12. Pursuant to Section 31(a)(7.5) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(a)(7.5), this CCA shall not be 

amended or modified prior to execution by the Parties. Any amendment or modification 
to this CCA by Respondent prior to execution by all Parties shall be considered a 

rejection of the CCA by operation of law. This CCA may only be amended subsequent 

to its effective date, in writing, and by mutual agreement between the Illinois EPA and 

Respondent's signatory to this CCA, Respondent's legal representative, or Respondent's 
agent. 
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AGREED: 
FOR THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY: 

BY: ~~6/~ 
Manager, Compliance Assurance Section 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
Bureau of Water 

FOR RESPONDENT: 

BY: 

DATE: /O)v/J<. 

DATE: 
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Illinois EPA Compliance Statement 

The owner of the facility must acknowledge that all compliance commitment agreement (CCA) 
measures have been successfully completed. 

Please complete, sign, and return. 

I _________________ (print name), hereby certify that all violations 

addressed in Violation Notice (VN) number __________ have been addressed and 

that all CCA measures were completed on ______________ (date). 

Signature 

Title 

Telephone Number 

Date 

Be sure to retain copies of this document for your files. Should you need additional notification 
forms, please contact this office at (217)785-0561. Return this completed form to: 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Compliance Assurance Section #19 
Bureau of Water 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
P.O. Box 19276 
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 

"Any person who knowingly makes afalse,fictitious, or fraudulent material statement, orally or in 
writing, to the Agency, ..... related to or required by this Act, a regulation adopted under this Act, any 
federal law or regulation for which the Agency has responsibility, or any permit, term, or condition 
thereof, commits a Class 4 felony ... " (415 ILCS 5/44(h) (8)) 
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Exhibit 2 
Will County Generating Station Compliance Commitment Agreement 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

1021 NORTH GRAND AVENUE EAST, P.O. Box 19276, SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62794-9276 • (217) 782-3397 

PAT qUINN, GOVERNOR JOHN J. KIM, INTERIM DIRECTOR 

217-785-0561 

October 24,2012 

John Kennedy 
Senior Vice President, Generation 
235 Remington, Suite A 
Bolingbrook, IL 60440 

Re: Compliance Commitment Acceptance 
Violation Notice: W-2012-00058 

CERTIFIED MAIL # 7011 11500001 08590096 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Midwest Generation, LLC, Will County Generating Station; ID Number: 6283 

Dear Mr. Kennedy: 

The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EP A") has approved the Compliance Commitment 
Agreement ("CCA") for Midwest Generation, LLC, Will County Generating Station. Please find enclosed an 
executed copy of the CCA for your records. 

Failure to fully comply with the CCA may, at the sole discretion of the Illinois EPA, result in referral of this 
matter to the Office of the Attorney General, the State's Attorney or the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency. 

The CCA does not constitute a waiver or modification of the tenns and conditions of any license or pennit 
issued by the Illinois EPA or any other unit or department of local, state or federal government or of any local, 
state or federal statute or regulatory requirement. 

Questions regarding this matter should be directed to Andrea Rhodes at 217/785-0561. Written 
communications should be directed to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, Bureau of Water, CAS 
#19, P.O. Box 19276, Springfield, IL 62794-9276, and all communications shall include reference to your 
Violation Notice Number W-2012-00058. 

Sincerely, 

~~~ 
Manager, Compliance Assurance Section 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
Bureau of Water 

Attachments 

cc: Basil G. Constantelos 
Maria Race 
Susan M. Franzetti 

BOW ID: W1978100011 CASE ID: 2012-006 
4302 N. Main St., Rackford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 
595 S. State, Elgin, IL 60123 (847)608-3131 
2125 S. First St., Champaign, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 
2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 

PLEASE PRINT ON RECYCLED PAPER 

9511 Harrison St., Oes Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000 
5407 N. University St., Arbor 113, Peoria, IL 61614 (309)693-5462 
2309 W. Main St., Suite 116, Marian, IL 62959 (618)993-7200 
100 W. Randolph, Suite 11-300, Chicago, IL 60601 (312)814-6026 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

IN THE MA TIER OF: ) 
) 

MIDWEST GENERATION, LLC, ) 
WILL COUNTY GENERATING STATION) 
ROMEOVILLE, WILL COUNTY, IL ) 
ID NUMBER: 6283 ) 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 " 2012 

IEPA/CAS 
) 
) 
) 
) 

ILLINOIS EPA VN W-2012-00058 
BUREAU OF WATER 

COMPLIANCE COMMITMENT AGREEMENT 

I. Jurisdiction 

1. This Compliance Commitment Agreement ("CCA") is entered into voluntarily by the 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EPA") and Midwest Generation, 
LLC, Will County Generating Station ("Respondent") (collectively, the "Parties") under 
the authority vested in the lllinois EPA pursuant to Section 31(a)(7)(i) of the lllinois 
Environmental Protection Act ("Act"), 415 ILCS 5/31 (a)(7)(i). 

II. Allegation of Violations 

2. Respondent owns and operates Will County Generating Station in Romeoville, Will 
County, lllinois ("Will County Station"). 

3. Pursuant to Violation Notice ("VN") W-2012-00058 issued on June 11,2012, the Illinois 
EPA contends that Respondent has violated the following provisions of the Act and 
Illinois Pollution Control Board ("Board") Regulations: 

a) Operations at ash impoundments have resulted in violations of the Groundwater 
Quality Standards at monitoring wells MW-1, MW-2, MW-3, MW-4, MW-5, 
MW-6, MW-7, MW-8, MW-9, andMW-lO. 
Section 12 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/12,35 Ill. Adm. Code 620.115,620.301, 
620.401,620.405, and 620.410. 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office, 11/05/2012



III. Compliance Activities 

4. On September 4, 2012, and September 27, 2012, the Illinois EPA received Respondent's 
response and supplemental e-mail response to VN W-2012-00058, which included 
proposed terms for a CCA. The illinois EPA has reviewed Respondent's proposed CCA 
terms, as well as considered whether any additional terms and conditions are necessary to 
attain compliance with the alleged violations cited in the VN. 

5. Respondent agrees to undertake and complete the following actions, which the lllinois 
EPA has determined are necessary to attain compliance with the allegations contained in 
VN W-2012-00058: 

a) The ash ponds at Will County Station shall not be used as permanent disposal 
sites and shall continue to function as treatment ponds to precipitate ash. Ash 
shall continue to be removed from the ponds on a periodic basis. 

b) The ash treatment ponds shall be maintained and operated in a manner which 
protects the integrity of the existing liners. During the removal of ash from the 
ponds, appropriate procedures shall be followed to protect the integrity 'of the 
existing liners, including operating the ash removal equipment in a manner which 
minimizes the risk of any damage to the liner. 

c) During the ash removal process, visual inspections of the ponds shall be 
conducted to identify any signs of a breach in the integrity of the pond liners. In 
the event that a breach of the pond liners is detected, Midwest Generation shall 
promptly notify the illinois EPA and shall implement a corrective action plan for 
repair or replacement as necessary, of the liner. Upon the illinois EPA's approval, 
and the issuance of any necessary construction permit, Midwest Generation will 
implement the corrective action plan. 

d) Midwest Generation shall continue quarterly monitoring of the existing ten 
groundwater monitoring wells for constituents in 35 ill. Adm. Code 620.410(a) 
and (d), with the exception of radium 226 and 228, and report its findings to the 
Illinois EPA within 30 days of the end of each quarter. In addition, Midwest 
Generation shall record and report groundwater elevation and submit a 
potentiometric surface map with the above quarterly groundwater monitoring 
report. 

e) Ponds 1 North (IN) and 1 South (IS) shall be removed from service at Will 
County Station. All process water shall be diverted from ponds 1 N and 1 S to 
existing ponds 2 South (2S) and 3 South (3S). A dewatering system shall be 
developed and implemented which will not allow water to exceed a depth of one 
foot above the bottom of Ponds IN and IS. 

t) Within 90 days of the effective date of the CCA, Midwest Generation shall submit 
an application for a construction permit to re-line pond 2S at Will County Station 
with a 60 mil thickness high density polyethylene ("HDPE") liner or an Illinois 
EPA approved equivalent material. 
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g) Midwest Generation shall submit an application to establish a Groundwater 
Management Zone (GMZ) pursuant to 35 TIL Adm. Code Part 620.250 within 90 
days of the effective date of the CCA. 

h) Midwest Generation shall enter into an Environmental Land Use Control (ELUC) 
to cover the area of the Will County Station property which is contained within 
the GMZ, except for that portion of the GMZ area which is owned by CornEd. 
Midwest Generation shall submit a proposed draft ELUC to the Illinois EPA for 
review and comment within 90 days of the effective date of the CCA. 

i) Midwest Generation shall establish a GMZ pursuant to 35 ill. Adm. Code Part 
620.250 and submit a final proposed ELUC, incorporating the completed 
delineation of the GMZ boundaries, within one year of the effective date of the 
CCA. 

j) Once ponds 1 N and 1 S have been taken out of service, a dewatering system has 
been implemented, pond 2S has been relined with a HDPE liner, and a GMZ and 
ELUC have been established, Midwest Generation shall submit a certification (or 
a statement) of compliance. Midwest Generation may submit either the attached 
"illinois EPA Compliance Statement" or another similar writing to satisfy the 
statement of compliance within one year of the effective date of the CCA. 

IV. Terms and Conditions 

6. Respondent shall comply with all provisions of this CCA, including, but not limited to, 
any appendices to this CCA and all documents incorporated by reference into this CCA. 
Pursuant to Section 31(a)(10) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(a)(1O), if Respondent complies 
with the terms of this CCA, the Illinois EPA shall not refer the alleged violations that are 
the subject of this CCA, as described in Section II above, to the Office of the Illinois 
Attorney General or the State's Attorney of the county in which the alleged violations 
occurred. Successful completion of this CCA or an amended CCA shall be a factor to be 
weighed, in favor of the Respondent, by the Office of the Illinois Attorney General in 
determining whether to file a complaint on its own motion for the violations cited in VN 
W-2012-00058. 

7. This CCA is solely intended to address the violations alleged in Illinois EPA VN 
W-2012-00058. The Illinois EPA reserves and this CCA is without prejudice to, all 
rights of the Illinois EPA against Respondent with respect to noncompliance with any 
term of this CCA, as well as to all other matters. Nothing in this CCA is intended as a 
waiver, discharge, release, or covenant not to sue for any claim or cause of action, 
administrative or judicial, civil or criminal, past or future, in law or in equity, which the 
Illinois EP A may have against Respondent, or any other person as defined by Section 
3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315. This CCA in no way affects the responsibilities of 
Respondent to comply with any other federal, state or local laws or regulations, including 
but not limited to the Act, and the Board Regulations [and Permit, if applicable]. 
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8. Pursuant to Section 42(k) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(k), in addition to any other remedy 
or penalty that may apply, whether civil or criminal, Respondent shall be liable for an 
additional civil penalty of $2,000 for violation of any of the terms or conditions of this 
CCA. 

9. This CCA shall apply to and be binding upon the lllinois EPA, and on Respondent and 
Respondent's officers, directors, employees, agents, successors, assigns, heirs, trustees, 
receivers, and upon all persons, including but not limited to contractors and consultants, 
acting on behalf of Respondent, as well as upon subsequent purchasers of Respondent's 
Will County Station in Romeoville, Will County, lllinois. 

10. In any action by the lllinois EPA to enforce the terms of this CCA, Respondent consents 
to and agrees not to contest the authority or jurisdiction of the lllinois EP A to enter into 
or enforce this CCA, and agrees not to contest the validity of this CCA or its terms and 
conditions. 

11. This CCA shall only become effective: 

a) If, within 30 days of receipt, Respondent executes this CCA and submits it, via 
certified mail, to lllinois EPA, Bureau of Water, Andrea Rhodes, MC #19, 1021 
North Grand Ave East, Springfield, IL 62702. If Respondent fails to execute and 
submit this CCA within 30 days of receipt, via certified mail, this CCA shall be 
deemed rejected by operation oflaw; and 

b) Upon execution by all Parties. 

12. Pursuant to Section 31(a)(7.5) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(a)(7.5), this CCA shall not be 
amended or modified prior to execution by the Parties. Any amendment or modification 
to this CCA by Respondent prior to execution by all Parties shall be considered a 
rejection of the CCA by operation of law. This CCA may only be amended subsequent 
to its effective date, in writing, and by mutual agreement between the lllinois EPA and 
Respondent's signatory to this CCA, Respondent's legal representative, or Respondent's 
agent. 

AGREED: 
FOR THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY: 

BY: n:~ DATE:,J .)", ~ h <., 
Michael C mly , 
Manager, Compliance Assurance Section 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
Bureau of Water 

DATE: 
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Illinois EPA Compliance Statement 

The owner of the facility must acknowledge that all compliance commitment agreement (CCA) 
measures have been successfully completed. 

Please complete, sign, and return. 

I _________________ (print name), hereby certify that all violations 

addressed in Violation Notice (VN) number __________ have been addressed and 

that all CCA measures were completed on _____________ (date). 

Signature 

Title 

Telephone Number 

Date 

Be sure to retain copies of this document for your files. Should you need additional notification 
forms, please contact this office at (217)785-0561. Return this completed form to: 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Compliance Assurance Section #19 
Bureau of Water 
1 021 North Grand Avenue East 
P.O. Box 19276 
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 

"Any person who knowingly makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent material statement, orally or in 
writing, to the Agency, ..... related to or required by this Act, a regulation adopted under this Act, any 
federal law or regulation for which the Agency has responsibility, or any permit, term, or condition 
thereof, commits a Class 4felony ... " (415 ILCS 5/44(h) (8)) 
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Exhibit 3 
Joliet #29 Generating Station Compliance Commitment Agreement 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

1021 NORTH GRAND AVENUE EAST, P.O. Box 19276, SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62794-9276 • (217) 782-3397 
PAT QUINN, GOVERNOR JOHNJ. KIM, INTERIM DIRECTOR 

217-785-0561 

October 24,2012 

JQhn Kennedy 
Senior Vice President, Generation 
235 Remington, Suite A 
Bolingbrook, IL 60440 

Re: Compliance Commitment Acceptance 
Violation Notice: W-2012-00059 

CERTIFIED MAIL # 7011 11500001 08590072 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Midwest Generation, LLC, Joliet #29 Generating Station; ID Number: 6284 

Dear Mr. Kennedy: 

The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EP A") has approved the Compliance Commitment 
Agreement ("CCA") for Midwest Generation, LLC, Joliet #29 Generating Station. Please find enclosed an 
executed copy of the CCA for your records. 

Failure to fully comply with the CCA may, at the sole discretion of the Illinois EPA, result in referral of this 
matter to the Office of the Attorney General, the State's Attorney or the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency. 

The CCA does not constitute a waiver or modification of the terms and conditions of any license or permit 
issued by the lllinois EPA or any other unit or department of local, state or federal government or of any local, 
state or federal statute or regulatory requirement. 

Questions regarding this matter should be directed to Andrea Rhodes at 217/785-0561. Written 
communications should be directed to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, Bureau of Water, CAS 
#19, P.O. Box 19276, Springfield, IL 62794-9276, and all communications shall include reference to your 
Violation Notice Number W-2012-00059. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Manager, comPlial.' Assurance Section 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
Bureau of Water 

Attachments 

cc: Basil G. Constantelos 
Maria Race 
Susan M. Franzetti 

BOW ID: W1970450047 CASE ID: 2012-006 
4302 N. MaIn St., Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 
595 S. State, ElgIn, IL 60123 (847)608-3131 
2125 S. FIrst St., ChampaIgn, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 
2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 

PLEASE PRINT ON RECYCLED PAPER 

9511 HarrIson St., Des PlaInes, IL 60016 (847)294-4000 
5407 N. UnIversIty St., Arbor 113, PeorIa, IL 61614 (309)693-5462 
2309 W. MaIn St., SuIte 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618)993-7200 
100 W. Randolph, SuIte 11-300, Chicago, IL 60601 (312)814-6026 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

IN THE MATTER OF: ) 
) 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 'J 2012 

MIDWEST GENERATION, LLC, ) 
JOLIET #29 GENERATING STATION ) tEPA/CAS 
JOLIET, WILL COUNTY, IL ) 
ID NUMBER: 6284 ) 

) 
) 
) 
) 

ILLINOIS EPA VN W-2012-00059 
BUREAU OF WATER 

COMPLIANCE COMMITMENT AGREEMENT 

I. Jurisdiction 

1. This Compliance Commitment Agreement ("CCA") is entered into voluntarily by the 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EPA") and Midwest Generation, 
LLC, Joliet Generating Station ("Respondent") (collectively, the "Parties") under the 
authority vested in the Illinois EPA pursuant to Section 31(a)(7)(i) of the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Act ("Act"), 415 ILCS 5/31 (a)(7)(i). 

II. Allegation of Violations 

2. Respondent owns and operates Joliet #29 a power generating station in Joliet, Will 
County, Illinois ("Joliet #29"). 

3. Pursuant to Violation Notice ("VN") W-2012-00059 issued on June 11, 2012, the Illinois. 
EPA contends that Respondent has violated the following provisions of the Act and 
Illinois Pollution Control Board ("Board") Regulations: 

a) Operations at ash impoundments have resulted in violations of the Groundwater 
Quality Standards at monitoring wells MW-2, MW-3, MW-4, MW-5, MW-6, 
MW-7, MW-8, MW-9, MW-lO, and MW-ll. 
Section 12 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 620.115,620.301, 
620.40 I, 620.405, and 620.410. 
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III. Compliance Activities 

4. On August 31, 2012, the lllinois EPA received Respondent's response to VN W-2012-
00059, which included proposed terms for a CCA. The lllinois EPA has reviewed 
Respondent's proposed CCA terms, as well as considered whether any additional terms 
and conditions are necessary to attain compliance with the alleged violations cited in the 
VN. 

5. Respondent agrees to undertake and complete the following actions, which the lllinois 
EPA has determined are necessary to attain compliance with the allegations contained in 
VN W-2012-00059: 

a) The ash ponds at Joliet #29 shall not be used as permanent disposal sites and shall 
continue to function as treatment ponds to precipitate ash. Ash shall continue to 
be removed from the ponds on a periodic basis. 

b) The ash treatment ponds shall be maintained and operated in a manner which 
protects the integrity of the existing liners. During the removal of ash :from the 
ponds, appropriate procedures shall be followed to protect the integrity of the 
existing liners, including operating the ash removal equipment in a manner which 
minimizes the risk of any damage to the liner. 

c) During the ash removal process, visual inspections of the ponds shall be 
conducted to identify any signs of a breach in the integrity of the pond liners. In 
the event that a breach of the pond liners is detected, Midwest Generation shall 
promptly notify the lllinois EPA and shall implement a corrective action plan for 
repair or replacement as necessary, ofthe liner. Upon the lllinois EPA's approval, 
and the issuance of any necessary construction permit, Midwest Generation will 
implement the corrective action plan. 

d) Midw.est Generation shall continue quarterly monitoring of the existing eleven 
groundwater monitoring wells for constituents in 35 lll. Adm. Code 620.410(a), 
with the exception of radium 226 and 228, and report its findings to the Illinois 
EPA within 30 days of the end of each quarter. In addition, Midwest Generation 
shall record an4 report groundwater elevation and submit a potentiometric surface 
map with the above quarterly groundwater monitoring report. 

e) Midwest Generation shall submit an application for a construction permit to re­
line Pond #3 with a high density polyethylene ("HDPE") liner within 90 days of 
the effective date of the CCA. A groundwater monitoring schedule shall be 
included in the construction permit. 

f) Midwest Generation shall submit an application to establish a Groundwater 
Management Zone ("GMZ") pursuant to 35 Ill. Adm. Code Part 620.250 within 
90 days of the effective date of the CCA. 
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g) Midwest Generation shall establish a GMZ pursuant to 35 lll. Adm. Code Part 
620.250 within one year of the effective date of the CCA. 

h) Once Pond #3 has been re-lined with a HDPE liner and a GMZ has been 
established, Midwest Generation, shall submit a certification (or a statement) of 
compliance. Midwest Generation may submit either the attached "Illinois EPA 
Compliance Statement" or another similar writing to satisfy the statement of 
compliance within one year of the effective date of the CCA. 

IV. Terms and Conditions 

6. . Respondent shall comply with all provisions of this CCA, including, but not limited to, 
any appendices to this CCA and all documents incorporated by reference into this CCA. 
Pursuant to Section 31(a)(1O) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(a)(1O), if Respondent complies 
with the terms of this CCA, the Illinois EPA shall not refer the alleged violations that are 
the subject of this CCA, as described in Section II above, to the Office of the Illinois 
Attorney General or the State's Attorney of the county in which the alleged violations 
occurred. Successful completion of this CCA or an amended CCA shall be a factor to be 
weighed, in favor of the Respondent, by the Office of the Illinois Attorney General in 
determining whether to file a complaint on its own motion for the violations cited in VN 
W-2012-00059. 

7. This CCA is solely intended to address the violations alleged in Illinois EPA VN 
W-2012-00059. The Illinois EPA reserves and this CCA is without prejudice to, all 
rights of the Illinois EPA against Respondent with respect to noncompliance with any 
term of this CCA, as well as to all other matters. Nothing in this CCA is intended as a 
waiver, discharge, release, or covenant not to sue for any claim or cause of action, 
administrative or judicial, civil or criminal, past or future, in law or in equity, which the 
Illinois EPA may have against Respondent, or any other person as defined by Section 
3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315. This CCA in no way affects the responsibilities of 
Respondent to comply with any other federal, state or local laws or regulations, including 
but not limited to the Act, and the Board Regulations [and Permit, if applicable]. 

8. Pursuant to Section 42(k) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(k), in addition to any other remedy 
or penalty that may apply, whether civil or criminal, Respondent shall be liable for an 
additional civil penalty of $2,000 for violation of any of the terms or conditions of this 
CCA. 

9. This CCA shall apply to and be binding upon the Illinois EPA, and on Respondent and 
Respondent's officers, directors, employe~s, agents, successors, assigns, heirs, trustees, 
receivers, and upon all persons, including but not limited to contractors and consultants, 
acting on behalf of Respondent, as well as upon subsequent purchasers of Respondent's 
Joliet #29 in Joliet, Will County, Illinois. 
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10. In any action by the Illinois EPA to enforce the tenns of this CCA, Respondent consents 
to and agrees not to contest the authority or jurisdiction of the Illinois EPA to enter into 

or enforce this CCA, and agrees not to contest the validity of this CCA or its terms and 

conditions. 

11. This CCA shall only become effective: 

a) If, within 30 days of receipt, Respondent executes this CCA and submits it, via 
certified mail, to lliinois EPA, Bureau of Water, Andrea Rhodes, MC #19, 1021 
North Grand Ave East, Springfield, IL 62702. If Respondent fails to execute and 
submit this CCA within 30 days of receipt, via certified mail, this CCA shall be 
deemed rejected by operation oflaw; and 

b) Upon execution by all Parties. 

12. Pursuant to Section 3 1 (a)(7.5) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(a)(7.5}, this CCA shall not be 
amended or modified prior to execution by the Parties. Any amendment or modification 
to this CCA by Respondent prior to execution by all Parties shall be considered a 
rejection of the CCA by operation of law. This CCA may only be amended subsequent 
to its effectiv~ date, in writing, and by mutual agreement between the lliinois EPA and 
Respondent's signatory to this CCA, Respondent's legal representative, or Respondent's 
agent. 

AGREED: 
FOR THE ILLINOI E"ONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY: 

~~4===~' ~ DATE: I~Y/;~ BY: 

FOR RESPONDENT: 

BY: 
Kennedy 

_---.............,.1' V r Vice President, 
Midwest Generation, .I.J""""-"---_ 

DATE: 
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Illinois EPA Compliance Statement 

The owner of the facility must acknowledge that all compliance commitment agreement (CCA) 
measures have been successfully completed. 

Please complete, sign, and return. 

I _________________ (print name), hereby certify that all violations 

addressed in Violation Notice (VN) number __________ have been addressed and 

that all CCA measures were completed on _-'---___________ (date). 

Signature 

Title 

Telephone Number 

Date 

Be sure to retain copies of this document for your files. Should you need additional notification 
forms, please contact this office at (217)785-0561. Retu:rn this completed form to: 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Compliance Assurance Section #19 
Bureau of Water 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
P.O. Box 19276 
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 

"Any person who knowingly makes afalse,fictitious, or fraudulent material statement, orally or in 
writing, to the Agency, ..... related to or required by this Act, a regulation adopted under this Act, any 
federal law or regulation for which the Agency has responsibility, or any permit, term, or condition 
thereof, commits a Class 4 felony ... " (415 ILCS 5/44(h) (8)) 
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Exhibit 4 
Waukegan Generating Station Compliance Commitment Agreement 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

1021 NORTH GRAND AVENUE EAsT, P.O. Box 19276, SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62794-9276 • (217) 782-3397 
PAT QUINN, GOVERNOR JOHN J. KIM, INTERIM DIRECTOR 

217-785-0561 

October 24,2012 
.... 

John Kennedy 
Senior Vice President, Generation 
235 Remington, Suite A 
Bolingbrook, IL 60440 

Re: Compliance Commitment Acceptance 
Violation Notice: W-2012-00056 

CERTIFIED MAIL # 7011 1150000108590102 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Midwest Generation, LLC, Waukegan Generating Station; ID Number: 6281 

Dear Mr. Kennedy: 

The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EP A") has approved the Compliance Commitment 
Agreement ("CCA") for Midwest Generation, LLC, Waukegan Generating Station. Please fmd enclosed an 
executed copy of the CCA for your records. 

Failure to fully comply with the CCA may, at the sole discretion of the Illinois EPA, result in referral of this 
matter to the Office of the Attorney General, the State's Attorney or the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency. 

The CCA does not constitute a waiver or modification of the terms and conditions of any license or permit 
issued by the Illinois EPA or any other unit or department of local, state or federal government or of any local, 
state or federal statute or regulatory requirement. 

Questions regarding this matter should be directed to Andrea Rhodes at 217/785-0561. Written 
communications should be directed to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, Bureau of Water, CAS 
#19, P.O. Box 19276, Springfield, IL 62794-9276, and all communications shall include reference to your 
Violation Notice Number W-2012-00056. 

Sincerely, 

~/~ 
Manager, Compliartce Assurance Section 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
Bureau of Water 

Attachments 

cc: Basil G. Constantelos 
Maria Race 
Susan M. Franzetti 

BOW 10: W0971900021 CASE 10: 2012-006 
4302 N. Main St., Rockford, IL 61103 (815)987-7760 
595 S. State, Elgin, IL 60123 (847)608-3131 
2125 S. First St., Champaign, IL 61820 (217)278-5800 
2009 Mall St., Collinsville, IL 62234 (618)346-5120 

9511 Harrison St., Des Plaines, IL 60016 (847)294-4000 
5407 N. University St., Arbor 113, Peoria, IL 61614 (309)693-5462 
2309 W. Main St., Suite 116, Marlon, IL 62959 (618)993-7200 
100 W. Randolph, Suite 11-300, Chicago, IL 60601 (312)814-6026 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY eft 

RECe.'''~u 
oel 1 '1 20\2 IN THE MATTER OF: ) 

) 
MIDWEST GENERATION, LLC, ) 
WAUKEGAN GENERATING STATION ) 
WAUKEGAN, LAKE COUNTY, IL ) 
ID NUMBER: 6281 ) 

) 
) 
) 
) 

U-:.PA/CAS 

ILLINOIS EPA VN W-2012-00056 
BUREAU OF WATER 

COMPLIANCE COMMITMENT AGREEMENT 

I. Jurisdiction 

1. This Compliance Commitment Agreement ("CCA") is entered into voluntarily by the 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EP A") and Midwest Generation, 
LLC, Waukegan Generating Station ("Respondent") (collectively, the "Parties") under 
the authority vested in the Illinois EPA pursuant to Section 31(a)(7)(i) of the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Act ("Act"), 415 ILCS 5/31 (a)(7)(i). 

II. Allegation of Violations 

2. Respondent owns and operates Waukegan Generating Station in Waukegan, Lake 
County, Illinois ("Waukegan Station"). 

3. Pursuant to Violation Notice ("VN") W-2012-00056 issued on June 11, 2012, the Illinois 
EPA contends that Respondent has violated the following provisions of the Act and 
Illinois Pollution Control Board ("Board") Regulations: 

a) Operations at ash impoundments have resulted in violations of the Groundwater 
Quality Standards at monitoring wells MW-l, MW-2, MW-3, MW-4, and MW-5. 
Section 12 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 620.115, 620.301, 
620.401,620.405, and 620.410. 
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Ill. Compliance Activities 

4. On September 4,2012, the Illinois EPA received Respondent's response to VN W-2012-

00056, which included proposed terms for a CCA. The Illinois EPA has reviewed 
Respondent's proposed CCA terms, as well as considered whether any additional terms 
and conditions are necessary to attain compliance with the alleged violations cited in the 

VN. 

5. Respondent agrees to undertake and complete the following actions, which the lllinois 
EP A has determined are necessary to attain compliance with the allegations contained in 
VN W-2012-00056: 

a) The ash ponds at Waukegan Station shall not be used as permanent disposal sites 
and shall continue to function as treatment ponds to precipitate ash. Ash shall 
continue to be removed from the ponds on a periodic basis. 

b) The ash treatment ponds shall be maintained and operated in a manner which 
protects the integrity of the existing liners. During the removal of ash from the 
ponds, appropriate procedures shall be followed to protect the integrity of the 
existing liners, including operating the ash removal equipment in a manner which 
minimizes the risk of any damage to the finer. 

c) During the ash removal process, visual inspections of the ponds shall be 
conducted to identify any signs of a breach in the integrity of the pond liners. In 
the event that a breach of the pond liners is detected, Midwest Generation shall 
promptly notify the Illinois EPA and shall implement a corrective action plan for 
repair or replacement as necessary, of the liner. Upon the Illinois EPA's approval, 
and the issuance of any necessary construction permit, Midwest Generation will 
implement the corrective action plan. 

d) Midwest Generation shall install two additional groundwater monitoring wells on 
the Waukegan Station property, at locations approved by the Illinois EPA, within 
90 days ofthe effective date ofthe CCA. 

e) Midwest Generation shall monitor the two new wells and the existing five 
groundwater monitoring wells quarterly for constituents in 35 Ill. Adm. Code 
620.410(a) and (d), with the exception of radium 226 and 228, and report its 
findings to the Illinois EPA within 30 days of the end of each quarter. In addition, 
Midwest Generation shall record and report groundwater elevation and submit a 
potentiometric surface map with the above quarterly groundwater monitoring 
report. 

t) Midwest Generation shall enter into an Environmental Land Use Control (ELUC) 
to cover the remaining Waukegan Station property to the east that is not already 
included in the existing ComEd Former Tannery Site ELUC. Midwest Generation 
shall submit a proposed ELUC to the Illinois EPA for review and approval within 
90 days of the effective date of the CCA. 
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g) Midwest Generation shall record the ELUC within 30 days of approval of the 
ELUC by the illinois EPA. 

i) Once the new monitoring wells have been installed and the ELUC has been 
approved Midwest Generation may submit either the attached "illinois EPA 
Compliance Statement" or another similar writing to satisfy the statement of 
compliance within one year of the effective date of the CCA. 

IV. Terms and Conditions 

6. Respondent shall comply with all provisions of this CCA, including, but not limited to, 
any appendices to this CCA and all documents incorporated by reference into this CCA. 
Pursuant to Section 31 (a)(l 0) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31 (a)(lO), if Respondent complies 
with the terms of this CCA, the illinois EPA shall not refer the alleged violations that are 
the subject of this CCA, as described in Section II above, to the Office of the lllinois 
Attorney General or the State's Attorney of the county in which the alleged violations 
occurred. Successful completion of this CCA or an amended CCA shall be a factor to be 
weighed, in favor of the Respondent, by the Office of the illinois Attorney General in 
determining whether to file a complaint on its own motion for the violations cited in VN 
W-2012-00056. 

7. This CCA is solely intended to address the violations alleged in lllinois EPA VN 
W-2012-00056. The lllinois EPA reserves and this CCA is without prejudice to, all 
rights of the lllinois' EPA against Respondent with respect to noncompliance with any 
term of this CCA, as well as to all other matters. Nothing in this CCA is intended as a 
waiver, discharge, release, or covenant not to sue for any claim or cause of action, 
administrative or judicial, civil or criminal, past or future, in law or in equity, which the 
illinois EPA may have against Respondent, or any other person as defined by Section 
3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315. This CCA in no way affects the responsibilities of 
Respondent to comply with any other federal, state or local laws or regulations, including 
but not limited to the Act, and the Board Regulations [and Permit, ifapplicable]. 

8. Pursuant to Section 42(k) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(k), in addition to any other remedy 
or penalty that may apply, whether civil or criminal, Respondent shall be liable for an. 
additional civil penalty of $2,000 for violation of any of the terms or conditions of this 
CCA. 

9. This CCA shall apply to and be binding upon the illinois EPA, and on Respondent and 
Respondent's officers, directors, employees, agents, successors, assigns, heirs, trustees, 
receivers, and upon all persons, including but not limited to contractors and consultants, 
acting on behalf of Respondent, as well as upon subsequent purchasers of Respondent's 
Waukegan Station in Waukegan, Lake County, lllinois. 
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10. In any action by the Illinois EPA to enforce the terms of this CCA, Respondent consents 
to and agrees not to contest the authority or jurisdiction of the Illinois EPA to enter into 
or enforce this CCA, and agrees not to contest the validity of this CCA or its terms and 
conditions. 

11. This CCA shall only become effective: 

a) If, within 30 days of receipt, Respondent executes this CCA and submits it, via 
certified mail, to Illinois EPA, Bureau of Water, Andrea Rhodes, MC #19, 1021 
North Grand Ave East, Springfield, IL 62702. If Respondent fails to execute and 
submit this CCA within 30 days of receipt, via certified mail, this CCA shall be 
deemed rejected by operation of law; and 

b) Upon execution by all Parties. 

12. Pursuant to Section 31(a)(7.5) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/31(a)(7.5), this CCA shall not be 
amended or modified prior to execution by the Parties. Any amendment or modification 
to this CCA by Respondent prior to execution by all Parties shall be considered a 
rejection of the CCA by operation of law. This CCA may only be amended subsequent 
to its effective date, in writing, and by mutual agreement between the Illinois EPA and 
Respondent's signatory to this CCA, Respondent's legal representative, or Respondent's 
agent. 

AGREED: 
FOR THE ILLINOIS E RONMENT AL PROTECTION AGENCY: 

/CJ;SW? DATE: BY: 
rumly -~ 

Manager, Complianc ssurance Section 
Division of Public ter Supplies 
Bureau of Water 

FOR RESPONDENT: 

DATE: 
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Illinois EPA Compliance Statement 

The owner of the facility must acknowledge that all compliance commitment agreement (CCA) 
measures have been successfully completed. 

Please complete, sign, and return. 

I _________________ (print name), hereby certify that all violations 

addressed in Violation Notice (VN) number __________ have been addressed and 

that all CCA measures were completed on ______________ (date). 

Signature 

Title 

Telephone Number 

Date 

Be sure to retain copies of this document for your files. Should you need additional notification 
forms, please contact this office at (217)785-0561. Return this completed form to: 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Compliance Assur~ce Section #19 
Bureau of Water 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
P.O. Box 19276 
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 

"Any person who knowingly makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent material statement, orally or in 
writing, to the Agency, ... .. related to or required by this Act, a regulation adopted under this Act, any 
federal law or regulation for which the Agency has responsibility, or any permit, term, or condition 
thereof, commits a Class 4 felony ... " (415 ILeS 5/44(h) (8)) 
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Exhibit 5 
Powerton Generating Station NPDES Permit #IL0002232 
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Nov-07-2005 14:36 From-MIDWESTGEN T-m PO02 

ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGEI'-JCV 

1021 NORTH GRAND AVENUE EAST, P.O. Box 19276, SPRINGFIEIO, ILLINOIS 62794·9276·- ( 217) 782.3,'17 
JAMES R, THOMPSON CeNTER, 100 WEST RANDOLPH, SUITE 11-300, CHICAGO, IL 60601 - (312) 814-602(, 

2171782-0610 ROD R. B,AGOJEVICH, GOVERNOR DOUGLAS P. SCOTT, DWKTOR 

October 11, 2005 

Midwest Generation EMf, LLC 
440 South LaSalle Street, Suite 3500 
Chicago, Illinois 60605 

RECEIVED 

ocr 1 4 ilIII! ] 

Hao 

Re: Midwest Generation EME, LLC 
Powerton Generating Station 
NPDES Pennit No. IL0002232 
Final Permit 

ENYIIU>i,MENTAL selWICES 
MmWEST G!!Nff.RATION EMB. LLC 

Gentlemen: 

Attached is the fmal NPDES Pernlit for your discharge. The :Pennit as issued covers discharge 
limitations, monitoring, and reporting requirements. Failure to meet any ponion of the Permit ~ould 
result in civil and/or criminal penalties, The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency is ready and 
willing to assist you in interpreting any of the conditions of the Permit as they relate specifically 1() your 
discharge. 

In response to the July 18,2005 letter from the Pennittee, we offer the following similarly nunlbered 
comments: 

1. We cannot eliminate the "intemal" Outfall B02 because the discharge is a Categ,)rical 
Discharge under 40 CRF 423.12 and the 40 CFR 122 (h) does not allow dilution pl'lor to 
monitoring. 
2. We cannot eliminate the "internal" Outfall AD 1 for the same reasons as Response I, 
3, We have redesignated Outfalls 003 and 005 to emergency outfalls on.ly. 
4. Reference PNIFS, page 2, item (A)(2), we have added "Ash Settling Basin (Altema[~)." 
5. Reference PNIFS, page 2, item (B)(3), we have changed verbiage to "Use of Outside 
Demineralizers will be limited to periods of high water need." 
6. Reference PNIFS, page 2, item (B)(4), we have changed verbiage to "Remove South 
Demineralizer Equalization Tank from service." 
7. Reference PNIFS, page 2, item (A)(2), we have changed verbiage to "Replace North 
Demineralizer Equalization Tank." 
8. Reference pennit, page 2, Outfall 001, item Total Suspended Solids, under heading S3mple 
Type, we have changed lO "24 Hour Composite," 
9. Reference Pennit, page 5, Outfall A02, item Oil and Grease, under heading S;lmple 
Frequency, we have changed to "2/month" and under heading Sample Type, we have changed 
to "Grab." 
I O. Reference Permit, page 10, Special Condition 4, has been deleted in its entirety. 
11. Reference Permit, page 10, Special Condition 6, we have changed DI'vIR submittals w the 
28th of the month. 

In response to the September 15, 2005 letter from the Permittee, we offer the following similarly 
bulleted commenrs: 

• The Outfall 00 J location change has been noted in the Public Notieei Facl Sheet, 
• We are unable to resolve the matter pertaining to the an additive requested to be added 

to the list. Please consider adding this at a later date. 

ROCKFORD - 4302 North Main Street, Rockford, IL 61103 _ (815) 9a7~7760 • [)GS PLAIN~~ - 9.5"1"1 W. HMrison St./ DC$ Plaines, JL 60016· ,847) 294~4000 
ELDIN - 595 South Srate, Elgin, IL 6011.3 ~ (847) 608-3131 • P(O~IA - 541S N, U(\ivNSiLy St" Peuria, IL 61614 (.lOg) 693·5 ~63 

BUREI"IU Of L"INO - P~Of.:IA - 7620 N. university St" Peoria, Il 61614 - (309) 693-5461 " CHII/VIPi\ICN - 2125 South First Streer, Champ~igt"), IL 6' /\20 - (217) 278-5800 
Sr>R.II'oiCr.Il;'LD - 4500 S. Sixth SUeet Rd., Sprinsfield, IL 62706 - (217) 786-6892 • COlLINSVILLE - 2009 Mall Street, Callir1$vil1t';!, Il622.34 - {,,1m 346-5120 

M""RION - 2309 W. Main St., Suite 1'16, MMiOr'l, IL 62959 - (618) 993-7200 

I"RINTED 01'<' Rf.(".vCl.fO P""I'fl< 
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Nov-OT-I005 14:.6 From-MIDWESTGEN T-m POO. 

ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACENCY 

1021 NORTH eRAND AVENUE EAST, p,o, Box 19276, SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62794-9276 1217) 782-33')7 
JAMES R, THOMPSON C1NT1R, 100 Wm RANDOLPH, SUIr£ I I -300, CHICAGO, IL 60601 - (312) a14-6021, 

ROD R, BLAGOIEVICH, GOVERNOR DOUGLAS P. SCOTT, DIRECTOR 

• The contributing elements to each outfall has been listed, It is noted that the listing 
provided in the Application does not fully agnee with the drawings submitted for each 
outfall. Please revise the drawings and listing of conu'ibutors to place them in agrt"ment 
and submit these within six months of the date of this permit jbr our record", It i. 
important that the drawings and listing use consiSlaI1t terms and that these agree w iLh the 
normal terminology used at the Powenon Plant. 

• We have evaluated the sampling fn;!quency of all of the outfaHs under the Burden 
Reduction Program. Based on that evaluation, Outfall 001, Oil and grease is th" only 
outfall eligible for a reduction and that reduction has been shown on Ihe Final Permit. All 
other oulfilils presently have the optimwn reduced sampling frequency available ,!lId no 
further reduction is available at this time. 

TIle Agency has begun a program allowing the submittal of electronic Discharge Monitoring Re:ports 
(eDMRs) instead of paper Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs). If you are interested in eDMRs, 
more intormation Can be found on the Agency website, http://epa.state.il.u$/water/edmr/index,html. 
IfyoUT facility is not registered in the eDMR program, a supply of preprinted paper DMR Forills for 
your facility will be sent to you prior to the initiation of DMR reporting under the reissued p(:rrnit, 
Additional information and instructions will accompany the preprinted DMRs upon their arrivaL 

The Permit as issued is effective as of the date indicated on the first page of the P>::rrnit. You have the 
right to appeal any condition of the Permit to the Illinois Poll~ltion Control Board within a 3:> day 
period following the issuance date. 

Should you have questions concerning the Permit, please contact Jan A. Nelle at the telephone number 
indicated above. 

'IDOL KdL 
Alan Keller, P.E. 
Manager, Permit Section 
Division of Water Pollution Control 

SAK:BAK:JAN :0506280 l.dlk 

Attachment: Final Pemli! 

cc: Records 
Compliane.;: Assurance Section 
Peoria Region 
USEPA 

HIO 

ROCK~OKO - 4302 North Main Street, Rockford, IL 61103 - (8"15) 987~776D , DE!> PI"AINF..~ - 9511 W, Hardson St" De~ Ph.tint's, IL 60016 (847) 294~4000. 
ELC;:IN - .1)95 South Smre, Elgir), lL 60123 - (fill') 60A-Sl 31 • PF.ORrA - 541 5 N. UniverSity St., PC()riu, IL el 614 (309) 693~!J'163 

B~,Rj;A~J OF LAND" PFQF,Ii\ - 7620 N. unlve~slty St" Peoria, IL 61614 - (309) 693·5462 • CHAMPAIGN - 2125 South first Strl.'(;"t, Champaign, lL 611120 - (2"17) 278~5800 
$PF!INCfIEI,P - 4.500 $, Si~th Stfeer Rd" Sptingfil:",!ld, lL 61706 - (~, 7) 78by 6892 • COLLINSVILLE - 2009 Mall Strct.>t, Collinsville, IL 62234 - (6'18) 346-5120 

MARION ~ 2309 W. Main St.. Suite 1 16, Mdrion, IL 62959 - (618) 993-7200 
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NPDES Permit No. ILOOo2232 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 

Division of Water Pollution Control 

1021 North Grand Avenue cast 

Post Office Box 19276 

Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM 

Reissued (NPDES) Permit 

Expiration Date: October 31, 2010 Issue Date: October 11, 2005 
Effective Date: November 1, ;1005 

Name and Address of Permittee: 

Midwest Generation EME. LLC 
440 South LaSalle Street, Suite 3500 
Chicago, Illinois 60605 

Discharge Number and Name: 

001 Ash Treatment System Effluent 
ADt Metal cleaning Waste Treatment System Effluent 
002 Cooling Pond Emergency Overflow 
AQ2 Coal Pile Runoff Treatment System effluent 
602 West Yard Runoff Treatment System Effluent 
003 East Yard Runoff Treatment System Emergency Overflow 
004 RBC Sewage Treatment Plant 
005 Condensate Storage Tank emergency Overflow 

Facility Name and Address: 

Powerton Generating Station 
13082 East Mantino Road 
Pekin. Illinois 61554 
(Tazewell County) 

Receiving Waters: 

Illinois River 
Illinois River 
Mackinaw (cut-off) Creek 
Mackinaw (cut-off) Creek 
Mackinaw (cut-off) Creek 
Illinois River 
illinois River 
Illinois River 

In compliance with the provisions of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act. Title 35 of III. Adm. Code. SubtiUe C andior Subtitle D. Chapter 
1. and the Clean Water Act (CWA), the above-named permittee is hereby authorized to discharge at tht. above location to the above-named 
receiving stream in accordance with the standard conditions and attachments herein. 

Permittee is not authorized to discharge after the above expiration date. In order to receive autnorization to dis<;harge beyond the 
expiration date, the permittee shall submit the proper application as required by the Illinois EnVironmental Protection Agency (IEPA) not 
later than 1 ao days prior to the expiration date. 

A~r.fIt.-
Manager, Permit Section 
Division of Water Pollution Control 

SAK:JAN:05062801.dlk 
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Page 2 

NPDES Permit No. IL0002232 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

1. From the affective date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall(s): 001 Ash Treatment System Effluent' 
This discharge consists of: 

1. Bottom Ash and Economizer.Ash Sluice Wastewater 
2. Alternate Route for Boiler Room Sump 
3. Intermittent Route for Boiler Room Floor and Roof Drains 
4. Slag Tank Overflow Sump Wastes; Tripper Room Dust Extractor; 
Tail End and Tripper Room Washdown; Alternate Route for Boiler 

Approximate Flow 

10.9 MGD 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
6.2 MGD 

Room Floor Drains; Alternate Route For RO Reject and Cleaning Wastes 
5. Demineralil'er Sand Filter BaCkwash 
6. East Yard Runoff Basin Effluent 
7. Demineralizer Regenerant and RO Wastes to South Equalization Basin; 
Altemate Route direct to Ash Treatment 

0.1 MGD 
Intermittent 
0,3 MGD 

B. Metal Cleaning Wastes Treatment System Effluent 

PARAMETER 

Flow (MGD)" 

pH 

Total Suspended 
Solids"''' 

Oil & Grease 

'See Special Condition 9 

LOAD LIMITS IbsJday 
DAFmMFI 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

See Special Condition 1 

"Shall be reported as monthly average and daily maximum 
'''See Special Condition 14 

0.50 MGD 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgll 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

15 

15 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

30 

20 

SAMPLE SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

1IWeek 24 Hour Total 

1IWeeK Grab 

2/Montl1 24 Hour 
CompOsite 

1/Quarter Grab 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office, 11/05/2012
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NPDES Pennit No. IL0002232 

Effluent Limitatjons and Monitoring 

1. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge(s) shall be munitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall(s): AD1 Metal Cleaning Waste Treatment System Effluent 
This discharge consists of: Approximate Flow 

1. 60iler and Air Heater, Precipitator, and Economizer Wash Water; Intermittent 
(Gas Side Boiler Wash Water) 
2. Water Side Boiler Cleaning Water Intermittent 
3. Alternate Route for Demineralizer Regenerant Waste and RO Intermittent 
Reject and Cleaning Wastes 

PARAMETER 

Flow (MGD), 

Total Suspended Solids 

Oil and Grease 

Iron 

Copper 

LOAD LIMITS Ibstday 
DAF (gMEl 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

'Shall be reported as monthly average and daily maximum 

CONCENTRATION 
LlMIIS mgtl 

30 DAY DAILY 
AVERAGE MAXIMUM 

15 30 

15 20 

1.0 1.0 

0.5 1.0 

SAMPLE SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

Daily 24 Hour Total 

2/Week 24 Hour 
Composite 

2/Week Grab 

2/Week 24 Hour 
Composite 

2/Week 24 Hour 
Composite 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office, 11/05/2012
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NPDES Permit No. IL0002232 

Effluent Limitatioos and Monitoring 

1. From the effective date of this permit unlil the expiration date, the effluent of Ihe following di$cha~Je(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall($): 002 Cooling Pond Emergency Overtiow* 
This discharge consists of: 

1. Condenser Cooling Weter 
2. House Service Water 
3. Intermittent Ash Treatment System E:ffiuent (Approximately 15%) 
4. Coal Pile Runoff System Effluent 
5. West Yard Runoff Syslem Effluent 
6. Pond Intake Screen Backwash 
7. Boiler Drains 

PARAMETER 

Flow (MGD),' 

Temperature 

'See Special Condition 9 

LOAD LIMITS IbS/day 
OAF (DMF) 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

See Special Condition 2 

"Shall be reported as a monthly average and daily maximum 

Approximate Flow 

497 MGD/Unit 
Intermittent 
7.33 MGD 
1.64 MGD 
1.14 MGD 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgl! 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

SAMPLE: SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

Daily Estimate 

Daily Single 
Reading 
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NPDES Permit No. IL0002232 

Effluent Limitations and MOQitodng 

1. From the effective date ofthis permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discha~Je(s) shall be rrMitored and limited 
at all limes as follows; 

Outfall(s): A02 Coal Pile Runoff Treatment System Effluent· 
This discharge consists of: 

1. Crusher Building Anea Runoff 
2. East & West Coal Pile Runoff 
3. Equipment Building Area Runoff 
4. Reclaim Hopper and Car Dumper Sumps 
5. Fuel Oil Tank Area Runoff 

LOAD LIMITS Ibs/day 
ME (DMF) 

PARAMETER 

Flow (MGDY-

pH 

Total Suspended Solids 

Oil & Grease'" 

'See Special Condition 9 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

See Special Condition No.1 

··Shall be reported as a monthly average and daily maximum 
"'See Special Condition 14 

Approximate Flow 

Intermittent 
2.0 MGD 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mg/l 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

15 

15 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

30 

20 

SAMPLE' SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

Daily 24 Hour Total 

1/Week Grab 

1/Week 24 Hour 
Composite 

2/manth Grab 
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NPDES Permit No. IL0002232 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

1. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following dlscharge(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall(s): 802 West Yard Runoff Treatment System Effluent' 
This discharge consists of: Approximate Flow 

1. West Yard Area Runoff 
2. North and South 345kV Switchyard Oil Separator Effluents 
3. all Tank Area Oil Separator Effluent 
4. Crib House Roof and Floor Drains 
5. Units 5 and 6 Turbine Room Roof and Floor Drains to Oil Separators 

0.115 MaD 
0.377 MGD 
0.205 Mao 
0.09 MGD 
0.134 MaD 
0.115 MGD 
0.176 MGD 
Intermittent 
0.39 MGD 
Intermittent 

6. Units 1-4 Area Runoff 
7. 138kV Switchyard Area Runoff 
8. Condenser Pit Oil Separator Effluents 
9. Parking Area Runoff 
10. Administration Building Roof and Area Drains 

PARAMETER 

FlowZ
"" 

pH 

Total Suspended 
Solids'" 

Oil & Grease'" 

'See Special Condition 9 

LOAD LIMITS Ibslday 
OAF IDMEl 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

See Special Condition 1 

"Shall be reported as a monthly average and daily maximum 
···See Special Condition 14 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mall 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

15 

15 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

30 

20 

SAMPLE SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

Daily 24 Hour Total 

1NVeek Grab 

2/Month 24 Hour 
CompOSite 

2/Month Grab 
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NPDES Permit No. IL0002232 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

1. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date. the effluent of the following dischatlle(s) shall be munitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall(S): 003 East Yard Runoff Treatment System Emergency Overflow' 
This discharge consists of: ApprOximate Flow 

1. East Yard Area Runoff 
2. Units 1-4 Roof and Yard Drains 
3. 60il/;,r Room Sump Wastes 
4. Boiler Room Roof and Building Drains 
5. Polymer BUilding Floor Drains 
6. Sorubber and Limestone Building Area Drains 

LOAD LIMITS Ibs/day 
OAF (DMF) 

PARAMETER 

Flow (MGD) W, 

pH 

Total Suspended Solids 

Oil and Grease 

'See Special Condition 9 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

See Special Condition 1 

"Shall be reported as a monthly average and daily maximum 

1.0 MGD 
Intermittent 
0.3 MGD 
Intermittent 
001 MGD 
0.01 MGD 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS rag/l 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

15 

15 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

30 

20 

SAMPLI:: SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

Dailywhl~n 24 Hour Total 
Discharging 

Daily when Grab 
Discharging 

Daily when 24 Hour 
Discharging CompOSite 

Daily when Grab 
Discharging 
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NPDES Permit No. 1L0002232 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

1. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following dischar"e(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall(s): 004 RBC Sewage Treatment Pllint Effluent' 

PARAMETER 

Flow (MGD)" 

pH 

Total Suspended 
Solids"'** 

80D**"" 

LOAD LIMITS Ibs/day 
DAF IDMFl 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

See Special Condition 1 

19 38 

19 38 

Total Residual Chlorine See Special Condition 11 

'See Special Condition 12 
··Shall be reported as a monthly average and daily maximum 
'''See Special Condition 14 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgll 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

30 

30 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

60 

60 

SAMPLI= 
FREQUENCY 

Continuous 

1/Week 

2/Month 

2/Month 

SAMPLE 
TYPE 

Grab 

24 Hour 
CompOSite 

24 Hour 
CompOSite 
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NPDES Permit No_ IL0002232 

Effluent Limitations and MonitOring 

1. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following dischar9a(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall(s): 005 Condensate Storage Tank Emergency Overflow 

PARAMETER 

Flow (MGD)'* 

pH 

Temperature 

LOAD LIMITS Ibe/day 
pAF roME) 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

See Special Condition 1 

See Special Condition 2 

"Shall be reported as a monthly average and daily maximum 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS oogll 

30 DAY DAILY 
AVERAGE MAXIMUM 

SAMPLr: SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

Daily When 24 HourT otal 
Discharging 

Daily when Grab 
Discharging 

Daily when Grab 
Discharging 
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NPDES Permit No. IL0002232 

Special Conditions 

SPECIAL CONDITION 1. The pH shall be in the range 6.0 to 9.0. The monthly minimum and monthly maximum values shall be reported 
on the DMR form. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 2. Discharge of wastewater rrom this facility must not alone or in combination with other sources cause the receiving 
stream to violate the following thermal limitations at the edge of the mixing zone which is defined by SE.ction 302.211. Illinois Administration 
COde. Title 35, Chapter 1. Subtitle C. as amended: 

A. Maximum temperature nS9 above natural temperature must not exceed 5'F (2.8'C). 

B. Water temperature at representative locations in the main river shall not exceed the maximum limits In the following table during more 
than one (1) percent of the hOurs in the 12-month period ending with any month. Moreover, at no time shall the water temperature 
at such locations exceed the maximum limits in the following table by more than 3'F (1.7'C). (Main riv'lr temperatures are 
temperatures of those portions of the river essentially similar to and following the same thermal regime as the lemperatures of the 
main flow of the river.) 

'F 

'C 

60 

16 

Eall. 

60 

16 

~ 

60 

16 

90 

32 

May 

90 

32 

.l.I.w.!t 

90 

32 

C. The monthly maximum value shall be reported on the DMR form. 

90 90 

32 32 

Sep:~ 

90 

32 

Q.Q1. 

90 

32 

90 60 

32 16 

SEECIAL CONDITION 3. Samples taken in compliance with the effluent monitoring requirements shall be taken at a point representative 
of the discharge, but prior to entry into the receiving stream. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 4. There shall be no discharge of Polychlorinated biphenyl compounds. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 5. Intake monitoring at the Powerton Generating Station pursuant to Section 316(b) of the CWA was not required 
by USEPA in letter to IEPA dated May 29. 1975. It is determined that no intake monitoring or modification Is being required by IEPA for 
reissuance of this NPOES Permit 

SPECIAL CONDITION 6. The Permittee shall record monitonng results on Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) Forms using one such fOrm 
for each outfall each month. 

In the event that an outfall does not discharge during a monthly reporting period. the DMR Form shall be submitt(,d with no discharge 
Indicated. 

The Permittee may choose to submit electronic OMRs (eDMRs) instead of mailing paper DMRs to the lepA. More Information. including 
registration information for the eDMR program, can be obtained on the IEPA webSite. http://www.epa.state.iI.uslwat<Jr/edmr/index.html. 

The completed Discharge Monitoring Report forms shall be submitted to lePA no later than the 28t11 day of the following month, unles& 
otherwise specified by the permitting authority. 

Permittees not using eDMRs shall mail Discharge Monitoring Reports with an anginal Signature to the IEPA at the following address: 

Illinois environmental Protection Agency 
Division of Water Pollution Control 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
Post Office 60x 19276 
Springfield. Illinois 62794-9276 

Attention: Compliance Assurance Section, Mall Code # 19 
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NPDES Permit No. IL0002232 

;ijgecial Conditions 

SI'ECIAL CONDITION 7. The provisions provided in 40 CPR 122.41 (m) and In) are applicable to this permit. 

speCIAL CONDITION 8. The use Or operation of this facility shall be by or under the supervision 01 a Certified Cia,s K operator. 

;ijPECIAL CONDITION 9. The Agency has detennined that the effluent limitations in this permit constitutel3AT/BCT for storm water which 
is treated in the existing treatment faciliUes for purposes of this permit reissuance, and no pollution prevention plan will be required for such 
storm water. In addition to the chemical specific monitoring required elsewhere in this permit, th~, permittee shall conduct an annual 
inspection of the facility site to identify areas contributing to a storm water discharge associated with industrial acl.ivity, and determine 
whether any facility modifications have occurred which result in previously-treated storm water disch,lFges no longer receiving treatment. 
If any such discharges are identified the permittee shall request a modification of this permit within 30 days after the inspection. Records, 
of the annual inspection $hall be retained by the permittee for the term of this permit and be made .,vailable to the Agency on request. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 10. In the event the permittee shall require the use of water treatment additllves not previously approved by this 
Agency, or in the event the permittee increases the feed rate or quantity of the addiUves used beyond what has previously been approved 
by this AgenCy, the permittee shall request a modification in the permit in accordance with the standard conditions, Attachment H. 

SPECIAL COtliDITION 11. Any use of chlorine to control slime growths odors or as an operational cqntrol, etc. shall not exceed the limit 
of 0.05 mgtl (daily maximum) total residual chlorine in the effluent. Sampling is required on a daily grab basis d~ring the chlorination 
process. RepOr1ing shall be submitted on the (DMR's) on a monthly basis. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 12. Samples of the RBC sewage treatment plant effluent taken in compliance with the effluent monitoring 
requirements shall be taken at a pOint representative of the discharge but prior to entry into the lIIinoi& River or the river pump house. 

SEECIAL CONDITION 13. If an applicable effluent standard or limitation Is promulgated under Sections 301(b)(2)(C) and (D), 304(b)(2), 
and 307(,,)(2) of the Clean Water Act and that effluent standard or limitation is more stringent than any effluent limitation in the permit or 
controls a pollutant not limited in the NPDES Permit, the Agency shall revise or modify the permit in accordance with the more stringent 
standard Or Prohibition and shall so notify the permittee. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 14. The Permittee has previously undergone a Monitoring Reduction Review and the sample frequency has been 
reduced due to sustained compliance. The IEPA will require that the influent and effluent samplin~1 frequency for ~ome parameters be 
increased if effluent deterioration occurs due to increased wasteload, operational, maintenance or other problems. The increased 
monitoring will be required Will,0ut Public Notice when a permit modification is received by the Pennittee from the IEPA. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 15. Midwest Generation's Powerton Generating Station has been deemed to have meet the applicable national 
performance standards and wi!! not be required to demonstrate further that the Powerton Lake Intake Structure meets the specified 
impingement mortality and entrainment performance standards pursuant to 40 CFR 125.94(a)(1 )(1). Tt,is detennination was made because 
of the use and operation of the cooling pond. The Permittee shall request and receive modification of ',his Permit prior to changing the use 
and operation of the cooling pond. Thi$ determination does not relieve the Permittee from submittin!l pertinent information regarding th'1 
Powerton Lake Intake Structure and cooling pond operation with the renewal application for thi!; Permit as req"ired under 40 CFR 
122.21(r)(2), (3) and (5). 
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ATTACHMENT H 

Definition. 

ACI ifht-9!'1l; !tle 1IIIjlOI:'O fnv,ronmllnt.,1 ProtllGt.on At;i. Ch. l' I ',12. III. R~v. Still.. SdC 1001-
105:2 I:I~ Amtlndllu 

Auenov mmlna tint IIlin(m'l E!1virOr'l(YI"f!t~1 PI'Qlo:cuan Agone.,... 

Bo.urcl rnll""H, IIllt hlinOni 1"011\,1\01'1 Cr,fJtr.:oIBo.:lrQ. 

Cia." W1I1\lr ACI (fOfM(I(ly rvfo((Q:Q 1(1 ,,:110 cl'lo ~oaltrat W~ner Pollution Control Ac.t! meolln~ 
Pub. 1." 92.500, .:I:> <:lmeodcd. 33 Lt,S C. 1251 .." ;'I11Iq. 

NPDfil$ (I\InjIQn~1 Pt;llll.It.llnt DISiCl'IlIl'qi!l Elimination 5ylltem) Mflatnl Chi) mUi01'la1 IlfO{]tt:lM lOr 
i&IIUit'IQ, modifyir'l';l. rltvOk;r'lQ aM t~i!l!lui"Q, tll'IYIinnnng. monitoring l'Int:~ ~",toroing p/lrmit~. and 
ImpQiillng ;lnQ II!tratQrelng preueilltmam requirement&, uOa:llf Sections :'01. 4Q2., 318 ~110 405 
of the CII'#:II'\ \IIIOII)( Act. 

P_II .... DhI~ttAl'lo milam! 1M QI~hllfgl!!l of ZI polluhlnt mll~lJurad during II (lalandar day or !lny 
24-hOur pttrlod tnat 1l'I1I1I~ln.hly "'prllllQnC8 tht (':l;Ij"fldar day t(lr p<..lI'p(l~6~ (If !OIIMpling, t!or 
poI14IDrU~ \Nlth I!mlta~on~ Itllpflt!lsltd ;n unit:! of m!1il>lh Ihl!! "dliilv dlll~n.r(JI:I" III tilll:;uliitud DII 
1M Wtlll m~1I1l of th~ jXlUl,llal'l1 dl:e,c/'I;irgo:td aVOf Ihtt dmy. For palluhlnlll wilh limitilltians 
cl:I(proftMtd in olhar unite:; af mllllfturumuntft. !rItI "1.10111' QI!;(':hQrg~" I~ '-:~'C4I.1)l~ ljIo$ fl)j) nvOfilgt.l 
mlll;lliI.!NfflOI1! 0111'06 pol, ... llInl Clvaf the day. 

Maximum Dailv Dlacharso LimitatiOn (duily mO .... It11uml MIIIlO$. 1M tl!g/'lMiI .;lllo\l\lmbJII daily 
dischillrlile, 

Av .... II. MondJly PI,cI'I4IItg9 L.imll~~IQn t~O .:;lay Ilvllr.Jlile) I"lIIllflft tha hlgha!lt .!Illow.!lblll 
avefllgll ot !:Iaily dil!lcnarglill aver II cl:llltndl:lr MOI'Ith. cllcwlaUld D'S tho !lwM or 011 dilly 
Q'lilehOrgilillil mOll$yrlfd ""'nng II CllIllllfldar rnontl1 dividlld by the numbnr of doily dillGhlirali1i 
1T1111I5Ured during tMt mOnth, 

AVIIf1I96 Wallkly DI.Ghlllll. Limi'tllotion t7 dBy ,}vl(I:rogo) I'I11II"'"101 1M "Ighlfn ~IIQwZlIlI!l 
~~g. 01 ",UV 1;I1~(l.hllrg~$ OWlr 1!IIll!llandl!lr 'f"'llIalt. aalculated 1:1" the 11.11'1\ of all dally dhl~harg'lI 
n'llmllurwd during II ~ahln(laf Milk dillil'led bll nW I\l.If\1bllr Qt .:I4l11Y die:;ohllrg'" rI'!"n,uNld during 
that_k. 

Olt.t lVI",naWltmllnt PraGtlcalll (8MP!::) mDl:lnll acl'nlld",le4 af eetillla", pMhiblhon:i ot 
p(tctice •• mainTllnancO ~I'QCIiIQwl'flll.lnd QthQr mnnaglll'Mnt prncticall to prttwnt Of mducD thlt 
pollution of \IIIatam of thl'l StlIt!:!. BMPI .. I~ inell.!(lQ 1~l\lmQnt r4qujNl'mlQ'nt~. oPQf~~lng 
p!'QCtQl.IfCI::iI, "rll,:! pl1l~W.Ja!l lO aOJltrol plnJll ,ita runOff. IpiUatlll Ot hlaka. !!Iudgll' o~ wallie 
dil:ltlOtlill. 01' dlilinl:lg8 fr6fr'l tlw Mllenal itorllgo. 

Onllb S.m~11I mUllnll 1m individl,lllillamj.'jlit Of lit lial~ 100 MlllUlwn colklc.tl)(lln II f.J:IndofTIly~ 
MIOi:Wd tilTlQ OVCIr 0 pllriod not DxoClllding 16 min1.l1811. 

24 Hour Compolita Salmpl. mona a combin61IQn of <It IQA~lli1 $~mpIQ ~lIql>ot:; 01 ;:r,t Ilia" 
10(1 nuUlIII:o!lI'llo. collll(lf/l(l at jlI!Il'Iodlo il'lHllVllla duril\tllhU OJ)lIIr81lno hourII 0' II facllily Ol/oti~ II ~4-
hOllr perioo, 

8 HQUI' Compc;illito $ampl. mllll:l~~ II combinlltion of at lealll3I1ul'l'l~ll'Iali~1I0111 of lit laallt 100 
millililllnl, Gollt:!l ... 'Md ill PilnodiC "'Ilarv/lli ,Mlng t/'llj: op~r.lltiflQ hotJrl of.ll faCility Olltlr zm a_hour 
pl:lfiQl;l, 

Plow Proportional ComJIQllttt $.mpl. mllanll a GQm"'lnI~IlQ~ 9f !Olmple Q!!qI.lO~$ at III lent 
100 MiUlIIMr& colhllllC'Ce.Q III porlOdh:: Imorvl\l$ $lJah that l:Iithllr thll tim!! intl!ll'llill bHtwl'll:ln o~ch 
Illiql.(Ol or the! voluma at fNlch ~Iiquot i3 protlClrtiMlI1 \'0 Oltt\or tho ~ml,lAm flow +It ftle tlmn of 
lIamPllng Of Ihe t01al ,tfQom flow $Incli the COllection of tn!! pll'Ivicull Itli~uot 

(1) p"W tQ al;tfTlply, T]1a parmlttoa mll"t comPly wilh all conditiona of ~hill permit, 
A«v permit noncompUonc:o t:.Qn$tit~tall: a vlOlllitlon 0' 11'111 Act &nd it! orOIlI'\Q& for 
t:!lntoreul1'n!lInt lI~tjl')n. pm'mit Itffllil'liUlon. fftVOcatu:m IIl'ld ftl'illllullnca. modification, 
or for dillnial of I parmit runllwol 1I..,t)licaIIQ~. The permltNo IIhlli o;!QmplV with 
affluent !litzlndnrdll Of protJibitionl'l IIlItoblill-hed undor Seerk'ln .307tl)) et thi CIlia!'! 
Wamr ~l tQr WIllie PQltl,itp~~ !Nlltlin thll tim. provil:.lad in tho l'4:t(JuildiOnli th$t 
IIl1tablillh Ihll~1'I lltandard~ <fJ( jlirohlbll!Qn'llo. even If ~hll parmlt 1'11111 not 'flit ben 
mQdltlCKl tq Il'IoorpQra'1I1tlQ raquill'lmanl 

/2.1 ClItv to r6llp4lly. If tha parmittaa wishllil 10 cOnlin",1'1 an IctlvlfV (~"I.tl'ld I), Ih" 
pjifMit Bf'l'If Ihll ill.))itallon dOtO ot ~hlll' pmmit. tho: pormitt1ta must npply for lind 
Otltllifl III new penTIil. If thll pmmitlill& IIwtmllll'.! ~ prOp,!lr lIpp!ll':ltlon '" MqlliJ'ltQ py 
lh6 ~*(iCy no lara( Ihan 1 $0 g~v:l prior to Ihlt cu:pimbon dnto. this permit I:Inoll 
continue In full fOfto iIInd IIffuc:;t until the riMI AQIlmCY ~~i,,;m Qn lnilll IlppllcII\'lOIi 
has IlHtItt'I Made. 

(31 Nllh'ld lO halt or reo~a. IKItlvlty not _ d.fan ••• It shlill nOt btt a dtrfanllt for 0 
pormlrtfrO In lin eniorolllftllllnt nlHlon thllt il would haV41 ~n nllc:llllll,llry 10 hIli Clf 
r~uclll nw p""rmlq~ /IIClll11lY ;n "rdllr 10 mllmttlin compllimca with 11111 conz:litionll 
O'''''i8~lf, 

(41 Dtny 10 ",ltIQ.to, Ihll permn:toll Shall I~liilll 1111 rttll50natMe IIItuP!! to mmimi;c1II or 
ptOvent art{ d.SI:lhn~go: In vlOlallan of thiS pllrmil whirch has Illl'lelonablD lIkalihood 
O'f "Ij~l;\ty Mr~llf19 h!.lN'll'lfl h~!lt~h Of eM IInvlronmMlt. 

15, ~~ opmatlon tlnd m.in1.nIIln ..... Tt\y: Pffmimll) IIh1ill al ilil liMl'I1I 1')f'\}PfH1y 
oparnt" and mlliJlU\i~ .!Ill taGilitiall tlnd 11'1"101'1'111 of tlllllltnWtlt Zlnd ... onbVl (lind 
~,awd 1~"nenIlOOia:1 whiCh if. I~$tlllktd or 1.1* 13y ttlo pI:IfIT1l~ Iq <llCtLirDVII 
(,';)Mplhh"l~ w!lh lhi (l0I'\difjl)!'I8I)t Il'illI parrott. ProPlillI' opaflulOn Ilfld malntafll!locG 
tnQII.IdIl" IInQC,,'v1l;l pIIIrtol111l;1nalll, .!ICiaquat1:l fl,lnt1inv. ndaqullM opol1ltor til:llffina lind 
uaUllnQ, and lIaeQ"a~o Ilbonnol"{ IInC! proclI's (;Ql'ltrals,. Including eppropriet1:l 
qtJlItif';' a~IIIUrllni!;g prOcl'ldurl'lS. Thill ~"'I'lon roql.llro.lh4lt opon.tlon of PD¢It-l1p. or 
OUXllitlf'{ f.!l!;:llittal!l, or !$imiltlr IIYZlttIm& ouly Whllil n~r:\f to ach.iwvo 
CCln'lP\l.al.'lc.l'l With ~bQ col"lQ1tiQi\JJ Q( the pannit. 
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1$1 r~'ml~ 4IclIQn., Thli pojl(mi~ fY,~y ~ mQQlti~. f$vollo:.i;l .,nd rQ,jj$\lur;l, Of tfl@itl&tl'ld 
for aat.a~e by ~ho AglllnCy PUt'SL,Zlflt 10 40 CFR 122.82.. 1'1,,11 tlllnQ of IIlaqu/lst by thlll 
pq(fflifl<W! rO'" ~rmit I't'HXtil;¢.)tIQr" i'o)\lOi:(JliO" ~(lQ r"n,;,I,lQ(\¢$, or l~fmjnaliOn. Or II 
notificnt;on of plllnnoo ch.!lng~!Io or nmiclpated nonColn)1lilnce. doo:.~ not 5111V ijlOV 
~fl'f1il col'lditian, 

(.,) Prop"'"y rIQh~"', Thiill plllrml~ 10:1111$ MI ¢Q!lvoy D1'W prl,plllfty flg"t~ Qf 01I1'I'f ~on, Q{ 

anv tlxclu~ivu jJriyiltltllll, 

(8) tlM!y '(I prollidl!ll information Thu ptlTfl'UUell 31'11111 f",tI\,~1'! 10 Ihll A'ildMGy wlth,n II 
Il'IZlsonable lImo. aft'; jnlOrml.lIOfl wh,ch Iho AGe,,'!c'). 'I'Imy rMju!lst to dtHOrm,1'I1II 
""l'Ieuler e~u'lllil ",~illllS fOr !'rwtlifymu. r(II'Oku'lu <'In(t {"I:'~\llng. Or Itlrm,n<ltino 'hili 
pl'rm.l, or to oolormlJlo l::orrplllll1ao with tho porm,[ Tho pormlltoe ~hll(( a!~o 
fUf/'lillh 10 Ihlt AOlilnCiy. ullOr'l ",qUfllll, ... op,e" of ~eOf"" rllquirll(l to btt kfl~l by Inib 
~rmil 

191 Inl!lpllotioft and antry, Th!! ll"rrnittoe snlill .!Illow an :",thonzlld feprll'!lOmmtl'v«l of 
thll: AQ~!'I(:y, 1019011 ,he PI'4;iIl:()I~liOfl ~r cr«1t:i1tlols "Il.;l 4m~r dOCIII'\'I(n'!!1I ,ta !VIby O~ 
fllQuirad by law. to: 

(101 

I~ 

fbi 

,,, 

Enlllr ullon Inti pun'l'lilloo'lI prllmillllll whll,1I 6 ft!uulatl'ld fllcilitv or 6Gtiv!tv ill 
10C:J1Od Of conoutltoi;l. ~lf !Nhllfa fQCQrct~ ml>,t I,,, kap~ .. no:lllr Iho aQni;lll!ofl~ 
<)tthi;i~fI'1'Iit: 

HI,10M0 "';C(I:ll.1,l IQ IInQ t:,)~'r. ~~ rl)~~Qflmble tll'i\O~, ani r.;I~Qr<l~ 11'1411 """''$1 b/,l 
kllJ't und(j( Ihll eOnditlV!111 of tni~ j)Vfmi~; 

In5p11Ct lit rllllo!l(ll'\lIbje ~IM«t!;l an., facili~La:S. IIqull),nont (IOCllJdll1g mOl1ltorlflQ 
arn.1 (:o(l1rol tqwIP"''''Jlr), P'I'ICtICIH, or opor"'ll')fI~ rrBg ... tllltr;l Of t'fIqo.llti.loQ 
I.Indfit lhill permil; 1111 ... 

(r;I) $tlMpll(l: Qf monitor I1t .dI14Qn.jl:!:)lc llm/)'$, for 1M I)lj(fll;l$$ or 4ULl(lIlQ PiIlflYllt 
COMilliance. Of all Ollidtwilll'l authcui;,;lIC1 by lI'b Act, IIny IIUb!ltllll"lt;tl8 or 
pzlrzlmm.er5 at IIny loc,iltion, 

Monltarlno lind rtlGardl. 

1,1 

11>1 

~I 

Somplall 1:100 mll'tlllllrllfnant!l tttklln fOr the t)1,I1J,lO$U of mOnitor;n\] !lhilltl btl 
~pl'III"nltltlv(l of ttJo Il1onltQrC!d IIQtlvity, 

T\u:I pI!:Il'tTIittlllII' !ihall I'IIllIil'l I'IIcorql of a)1 monilc.ring information. il'!cluq!ng 
all ... lIlibrBtlen bl'ld I'liail'lWll1lnCIl l'Ilool'da, 11M &11 olio:1n«1 strip eMit 
Il'IOQrding!;\ faf (lol'ltim"~U5 monitoring' instrumllnllltion, (lopias of alllllpor1:5 
N(lwiffld bv (hit plI'mllt. lind f9<:ordi of 1111 ,j,,!. w8,d'10 <:OMPktI8 Ihll 
IIppli ... "tilln for this ptllmit, fOr" PtlriOd Or a( 11t",,( S YIIIII'1 from tha dIM of 
~"il,l P'lrTI'Iit. mlllllfrl.l~Nlctnt. rllport or npplic,!.lion. Tl'li~ IMrioct m4V be 
t:!l><~l'Ided Dr (IQ",allr vittle Ag~lI\CV at onv 11m." 

I~l The il1divKlyoll~1 who IXlI1'O(m"tl;l th~ 1!~1')PI'''9 or ffilll'lIl1l>~mIH11'; 

(3) TtlII' qllU!,!'<) ~mtV5H wam pnn'ormat:t; 

15/ Tha tlnolyti~.IItIGhniCt"1I8 Of I'fnuhod. \1~lld; al'l~ 

16! The 1'811 .. IUI of !,,,,ch &tlllhfiOi. 

Id) MOl'litoril'lO Mu~t 00 ,~(jndwc1'4d IICCordll'lQ t.:. ~O$t p,ocaOI.l'O$ IIPIHQv/l:d 
I.InGlllr 40 CFR Pl!lrt 1 ~a. ",nlIlM othor ttlllt prO~~dl.lrf:lll h~ve tlDen ~pacitied 
in Ihia Illlrmll, Wl'lefl flO Nfl prQ~(ll.!fl:l unt;ll:lf 40 C;fI f"1I.1't 1 ad Illlil b.11lf1 
IIpprovlld. the purn'lil':afl 11'11.1111 lIubmil 10 lhll A,j)er'lcy a tflal Mllthod fOf 
appravllt. 'rhll permit'Pilll 111'11111 ~olibr~ttl IHlt! illirform I1'IlIinll'lnoncl!! 
prO~\dMlt QI1 IlU mowtonng \1M IInalytiol:ll in:ll.!rumllfltl!l~lon "t InHirval& to 
Onlllll1l lI ... curaCy 01 l'\'IillUIwffl'mliltllt. 

(11) SI"4'atory nIq(llraffllllflt. All ~,ppUcations. raportll Or IIltormation lubmilttld to the 
AQllllnClI ahllil b, tiQI"IIIIIQ 1I"r;l1l~nlrllllr,t. 

101' App1lC4ttQI1, All pellTl1t .!Ipplialilions ,hlllil ba "'l1nC!d allli follows; 

Ibl 

(1) Fa, a corporation; by II principII) tllI:tlCI,tilf1ll affiGer af lit Inllt tho 
leyel ot IfIQI 1~'MIGom of a paf!lian 'If p05itlofl hlll.ng ollllflll! 
Il'Isptlollibility fur IIfwirom'nl!lnt/l.1 fl'il:tttl'trll Mr thll corpOration; 

(2) Por a partftllrtlr,jp or lale proprletDnlhlpl by a 911nlll"lli partner or 
~I'II'I pmJ)fiotCOf/ riapocl(vti'(: (I/' 

fa) tlor a munlalpl,llty, StIItll, Flld.,..al. !l" Gttntr publla aQIlIKiV: by 
lIilhlllf a principl.<t oll:aGutlva offi ... nr or rd"klng IIIGC~ oifidal. 

Raparu. All r!:!porh: rllqlliroo bv I'MIrmi~II, Q( Oth.,rinformlltion rnquaslod by 
Ine Agency 5hllil bllllillilf\qd by ill panlon gltllCrlbed In pllr.!lgrllph (iIIl or by ill 
d ... IYII(lthQtiz«:I rlllprll!1.oloi\wtlwt ot that per50n, A pctl'flQn l:llI Q",Iy ""'tM'I~ .. d 
"P~IIQI'l1Attvf) Mly if, 

11, The .!Iuthorilation ill mild!:! in writinu by II po~on titt&enblld: In 

paragr,"ph (II); !&fIz:I 

(:ill The $uthO(iJI)IIQn' IIf;)tQlrlll:t '1lth.f ~I' individulIl Or ~ ~(lIlilion I 
1lI5POl'la~blf:l fo( tl'lq Q\/eroU opttrlltion of Iha fallliity. from 1IIhlGh the 
r,t1i$Chargtl origlnlltoll. such all II plllni ,nll'lllgew. supannHindDl'lt or 
lX"~n ot ~\.!i.l)lOm ~ponOlbl1llV; aM 
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101 Chllofl,U •• of A\lma,);l:atJon. If lin al.l~I1Qnl"tian UntHf Ibl II OQ IQf\glllf 
K"~l.If010 bi!lII:!IIJ!l11 diff"Nllnl ifw;tjv!dual or ~Iitiot'l h •• fllllIoponslbilitY for the 
o\lllr811 aporo_kln of the '.I:;illt'Y. II nClW lIutrn.m:tation $I1iltfvlng tha 
rO!lu!ntmlntll of 11111 mo.. ... ~ be IlUbminltd W 1/'1t Agal'lCV prior to Ot Will.1Mr 
will't anv r9pqrtIJ, jnforrm:l~K'l1'L Of appticlltfOM t(j be '~l'lCId bV." auttu:lfizlld 
IlIpru l!J1tlltive. 

\121 A.#K"nlnu r&qulntmon'l, 

la) Plannad ~h."Q'''' 'ri)ll p~mitlee S1'l1l1l9;vlll ootka to thtl Agonc.v as soon 
11:1 pOIUIIPIQ 0/ any pllll1l'l$d PI'I'I'sic.!I1 alt&atIlQI" Qf additionll t6 11'14 
pl)rm'lled f!lelliCy 

,., 

~I 

If I 

~J 

A"l~ipat.d nonaompl'*"CfII. Tho ~rmit!n 111'11111 elyl 4IIQvan ... noti". 10 
thl!l AQ'IIn~ of fony planfll!ld chanOli1 In lhlt pal'lllittad 'acilltv or IIc~lvlt( 
¥'Ihlen ffillY rMult in nonc;omplIMlQII with P'!ffllit l"6QuI""rTWlIn1!$, . 

CQITIPl'ann IIGhwdloll •• , ROpom of (;\"u'I'Iplianco I)r Mn(lQmpliO!lnGIJ with, Of 
1I!'1v PI'OQ~:II fOportll en, inhll'im ~f\d tlnz:.! raquifllmllln'* C(lIIlI.IIWQ III I:Iny 
compilInG. ilchod ... 16 of Ihis tHI,mi~ 'lJhall be lIul:lrraitted no IlIIltr 11'1110 14 
QIlYIli tollowinu eat;1'I .<:l'Io(lI.!'O dotll. 

MonitorinG r.~I>rt\l. Monitorinn f.a,,1~$ ~ho\loll btl MpOrted III Ihe inll1h .... /lI!/o 
IIF-lifi!ld 1IIllIlIwhlllr. If! dl.11' pt:Innit 

I>J 

MO:I'Iitofing rlll'!ultll mUlit bw ttp0rWQ on 1'1 DillcharUII Ml'1I'Iill'Ul(IQ 
Rapart (DMRI. 

If tho pllrMit11H lYIonitons any pollwltlnl moto tNlqI.!DnllV Ihlln 
I'Oq ... IIlIQ bV thlt ptlnYlil, utln; milt PfOl:iedUMIL IIPtM'ovfICI ......ae, 40 
CFA 'JIiI Qf 111/0 :r.peoifiad in In. pormlt, th/) fll:$ultll of thil:l monito-flng 
.:!i110!111 bit lnc1uClIllO 10 '110 clIl(;ulliticn lind feponln9 qf Iha data 
'~Pml~Clln the DMF!, 

131 CelGull'1ticn. f,,' 1111 Ilmitllli<!n .. which feq'lil'Cl ~\/er~int;l of 
m_ .. uremllnlll IIholl o.I\'i.)iZIt lin arithmetic mllliln "n14t11. Qll1erwltHII 
~p6(,!ltlllld by m!l AO!lrtCy 11'1 1M pl:Ilmit 

'rwanty,fouf h(ju~ rtJopQoJtlnij. The permlnto ~hllil report IInv 
nQIWOmplll:lnc:;a whiGh may .1'\Q~f19ar hallitn or thlll en ... lrQlnmtnt, ""Y 
inlOfl'l'laliofi ,hll" bll: pnwidl!ld Orally, wl'hl" 24, hQUf"IS from thV UMO lho 
pmmlUIItI bet.:OMml QINIU4' IJf ~ha drcuMIIUlIlClila. A wrltwn '\JQmill$ion IIhll" 
111'0 bo ~'QV;~ed wilhin 5i dave 01 ttll timo the pam1ittM blllcoMt. IWlua of 
lhll I';lrcwMlklIlCO:i. TIlCf wriu,", l:Iubml;r.alon· tho" cQIltl:lln a dllKrititlO1l 01 
tho; 110fll:,;omplianCII and 118 ~UU .. ; thlt tIIIrl\)d of ni)ltCOmpUIIl(I.Q. lncludinQ: 
811.Ct aatoo lind 1ilTltll: and if ItHi I'IOIWompllAnoo hll" not bIIllin corrected. 
t!'le iIIotlciplitllld tltMlt II o~poc~ to GOntlnue; aod .llp. tI"'-lI:f1 or plllnnlltd 
10 rl""'~It, allmlllllw, Iilnd prewn, r~QClllurranalt of thlt nOncomplllnl:o. TtJo 
followirm ahal! b. Inclt!(\l:Ii;t liS infOl'n'l81101'1 INhk::h ml,lst I:M!I rllported withir'l 
:Z4 hour!l: 

(1) Anv wnl'lnIItIPi'«l~ I,)VPa$S whi .. h &liclII.dB. afly "Iflutlnt !1mit!ltion in 
~he parmlt; 

121 Violl:ltlon at II n"IRlllltm"m dallv dbmhllJ'fJ1'I lImitetiOil tor !lilY of tho 
pollutllnlll (libld t1i ~1\9 AgOllav in the ~t to bj fflpl;ln.Q whl1lll 

, .j'!;4hQl-lfII; 

Thlt Aaoney may w.ivill 11'10', writuln l'1IIiIOrl on a calioe~bV~(!oll' blillill if tho 
urll I'tf,'lort h!lill' bllan roo,lived wl1hlll 24 hourlli. 

Othar nonlXlmpIiII'lC.. 'l"tlfI pormittee IIhail Nj)On 1111 In.tllncol of 
nQnl,'lQmplhmclll nOt rtlj'Jot'ttd ~nGrlr parlloraphs 11 :Hlcl, (dl. or (II!. It tho 
tiMe MOfllwrlog ,eportl!ll am !lubmllttCl, 'I'hrl rlllJlOrtl Ihll~ cOn18ln In, 
informatiOI'l H.(t~ Iii p"fllgfllph 112H4I). 

Othtr I"form.l~n, Whera the tMlrMlt\OO tWJ<lMr,II aWlLIre thllt it f.lll1.o TO 
sUbmit IIOY frlt.vill'lt rac~ In Q. pemlil &pplil'.i4ltiOI'l, Q( 1ulmllttlld Im:;omll:a 
10fomUll1Qn In II pIIrmit IIppliGatloo, or il'! IIn\li raport to the AgO'l'lcV. il Ihllil 
promptly !lubtni, lI\,ICl'! fA1;!11I M In'DrrI'l81Ial'l. 

(13) n_nll1l1r of parmltl. A ~fmll m,.y bit lIu101'I'I.ticallv mmlltlll'l'lKl to II n.w 
permlUtlii If: 

1111 The CI.I,,.m pllrmitt!lo fIOliflall Il'It "9111'loy lit 1I!IIIIIt 30 daYIL 11'1 "vlllncD ot 
tha prOpOII6I!t l~an .. 1t( Ij,to: 

IbJ 

leJ 

Tha nOllel Incll.1c.1I1G II wril:tan ql'Mmom' PilVf,laoo ttlo olllati!\(! and !\ow 
pllrmluaall cantaitlinQ' 1p'C:i(ia dlllhl fOr {(anS'af of /Mnnlt raaponlliibilltv, 
cO\I4Irlgllll1M lilbllily blllwMn IhO Cl.lmtnt and.now'parMI""': Ind 

Thll Agancy do. .. 1'101 noli'" ,he axilling: ptfMit:l'M .net 'hi! propolild fl.W 
ptlrmittml of I" il1l*l'Il tI') ~"'v 04"' .... /. and r .... "'" lht p&mIlt. 11 th~ 
"Oijcal, not rttGli ... 1Kl, lhOlf'lllM'M III IIffM.1iva on ttl. diU •• p4:lo!fllld In thlt 
IQrllllllffill"t, 

114) All m,nufadurino,. tiCmmllWClll. rrllfJjp.g. and .ilv"-ultwral ","hIftlO'I'I """t llQ~fy 
INt Agtncy II .!I~I'III" Ihey know a~ h.'IIO MillIOn 10 !:NtUoVII; 

~I Thn~ any .ctivily Ma oc.e~1'f04 or will OOGur whiCh MUk! N'"'' In tl\Cl 
d"e.horg~ of nnV to~k:; p(JllullK)( Idontft~ Ilnl;!" S_tion 307 Of Ifi. CI • .., 
W!!Jtm' ACI whlc::h III not limltad. in tnt MiMI .. 11 tha1 al'C;"*'Q' will OKCDlld 
t .... /'ti;l1allt of Ihll lallOwitIQ. notHkl.ntiDn kllI1IIj!,: 

nl Onlll t1Uf1dnxt ITIiGtcgtINN Plr 11m (100 uWQ; 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
1021 North Grand Avenue East, P.O. Box 19276, Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 • (217) 782-2829 

James R. Thompson Center, 100 West Randolph, Suite 11-300, Chicago, IL 60601 • (312) 814-6026 

217/782-0610 

November 5, 2009 

Midwest Generation, LLC 
235 Remington Blvd., Suite A 
Bolingbrook, Illinois 60440 

PAT QUINN, GOVERNOR 

Re: Midwest Generation, LLC 
Will County Generating Station 
NPDES Permit No. IL0002208 

DOUGLAS P. SCOTT, DI RECTOR 

Modification ofNPDES Permit (Without Public Notice) 

Gentlemen: 

The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency has examined the request for modification of the above-referenced 
NPDES permit as stated in your letter of September 2, 2009. Our final determination is to modifY the Permit as 
follows: 

The permittee address will be changed: 

From: 

Midwest Generation, LLC 
Environmental, Health & Safety Department 
One Financial Place 
440 South LaSalle Street, Suite 3500 
Chicago, Illinois 60605 

To: 

Midwest Generation, LLC 
235 Remington Blvd., Suite A 
Bolingbrook, Illinois 60440 

Enclosed is a copy of the modified Permit. Because the changes made in the Permit were minor, no formal Public 
Notice of the modification will be issued. 

Should you have questions or comments, please contact Jaime Rabins of my staff. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Alan Keller, P.E. 
Manager, Permit Section 
Division of Water Pollution Control 

SAK:JAR:99120 1 0 1.BAH 

Enclosure: Modified Permit 

cc: Records 
Compliance Assurance Section 
Des Plaines Region 

Rockford. fJfI. ~n St., Rockford, IL 61103. (815) 987-7760 

Elgin USiSMte, Elgin, IL 60123 • (847) 608·3131 

Bureau of Land - PetM~~ N. University 51., Peoria, IL 6 1614. (309) 693·5462 
Collinsville. ·2009 Man 5treel, Collinsville, IL 62234 • (6161 346·5120 

Des Plaines. 9511 W. Harrison St., Des Plaines, IL 60016. (847) 294-4000 
Peoria. 5415 N. University 51., Peoria, IL 61614 • (309) 693-5463 

Champaign. 2125 5, Firsl 5t., Champaign, IL 61820. (217) 276·5800 

Marion. 230'1 W. Main St., Suile 116, Marion, IL 62959 • (61 B) 993·7200 

PrinLed em Recycled PUPCI 
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NPDES Permit No. IL0002208 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 

Division of Water Pollution Control 

1021 North Grand Avenue East 

Post Office Box 19276 

Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM 

Modified (NPDES) Permit 

Expiration Date: May 31, 2010 

Name and Address of Permittee: 

Midwest Generation, LLC 
235 Remington Blvd., Suite A 
Bolingbrook, Illinois 60440 

Discharge Number and Name: 

001 Condenser Cooling Water and House SeNice Water 
A01 Reverse Osmosis Wastes 
B01 Boiler Blowdown, Boiler Drain and Turbine Drain 
C01 Cooling Water Intake Screen Backwash 
002 Recycle Wastewater Treatment System Blowdown 
003 Sewage Treatment Plant Effluent 

Issue Date: May 31,2005 
Effective Date: June 1, 2005 
Modification Date: March 18, 2008 
2nd Modification Date: Novembe r 5, 2009 

Facility Name and Address: 

Midwest Generation, LLC 
Will County Generating Station 
529 East Romeo Road 
Romeoville , Illinois 60441 
(Will County) 

Receiving Waters: 

Chicago Sanitary and Ship Canal 

In compliance with the provisions of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act, Title 35 of III. Adm. Code, Subtitle C and/or Subtitle D, Chapter. 
1, and the Clean Water Act (CWA) , the above-named permittee is hereby authorized to discharge atthe above location to the above-named 
receiving stream in accordance with the standard conditions and attachments herein. 

Permittee is not authorized to discharge after the above expiration date. In order to receive authorization to discharge beyond the expiration 
date, the permittee shall submit the proper application as required by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) not later than 180 
days prior to the expiration date. 

L~ 
Alan Keller, P.E. 
Manager, Permit Section 
Division of Water Pollution Control 

SAK:JAR:99120101.bah 
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Page 2 Modification Date: November 5, 2009 

NPDES Permit No. IL0002208 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

1. From the modification date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

PARAMETER 

LOAD LIMITS Ibslday 
OAF (DMF) 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgll 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

Outfall(s): 001 Condenser Cooling Water and House Service Water (OAF = 741.4 MGD) 

This discharge consists of: 

1. Condenser Cooling Water 
2. House Service Water 
3. Reverse Osmosis Wastes 
4. Boiler Blowdown 
5. Boiler Drain 
6. Turbine Drain 
7. Intake Screen Backwash 

Flow (MGD) 

Total Residual Chlorine! 
Total Residual Oxidant* 

Temperature 

*See Special Conditions 3 and 4. 

See Special Condition 1 

See Special Condition 5, 6 and 7 

Approximate Flow 

587.0 MGD 
78.9 MGD 

0.1 MGD 
0.023 MGD 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
0.433 MGD 

0.2* 

SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY 

Daily 

1/Week 

Daily 

SAMPLE 
TYPE 

Continuous 

*Concentration 
Curve 

Continuous 
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Page 3 Modification Date: November 5, 2009 

NPDES Permit No. IL0002208 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

1. From the modification date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent ofthe following discharge(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

PARAMETER 

LOAD LIMITS Ibs/day 
OAF (OMF) 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

Outfall(s): A01 Reverse Osmosis Waste (OAF = 0.1 MGD) 

This discharge consists of: 

1. Reverse Osmosis Waste 

Flow See Special Condition 1 

Total Suspended Solids 

Oil and Grease 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgll 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY 

Approximate Flow 

15 

15 

0.1 MGD 

30 

20 

1IWeek 

1IWeek 

1IYear 

Outfall(s): B01 Boiler Slowdown, Boiler Drain and Turbine Drain (OAF = 0.023 MGD) 

This discharge consists of: 

1. Boiler Blowdown 
2. Boiler Drain 
3. Turbine Drain 

Flow 

Total Suspended Solids 

Oil and Grease 

See Special Condition 1 

15 

15 

Outfall(s) : C01 Cooling Water Intake Screen Backwash* (OAF = 0.433 MGD) 

*See Special Condition a 

Approximate Flow 

0.023 MGD 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 

30 

20 

1IWeek 

1IWeek 

1IYear 

SAMPLE 
TYPE 

24-Hour Total 

a-hour Composite 

Grab 

24-Hour Total 

a-hour Composite 

Grab 
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Page4 Modification Date: November 5, 2009 

NPDES Permit No. IL0002208 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

1. From the modification date ofthis permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

PARAMETER 

LOAD LIMITS Ibs/day 
OAF (DMF) 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mg/l 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

Outfall(s): 002 Recycle Wastewater Treatment System Slowdown"" (OAF = 0.88 MGD) 

This discharge consists of: 

1. Ash Sluice System Slowdown 

a. Sottom ash sluice water 
b. Units #1,2 3 and 4 slag tank overflow sumps 
c. Non-chemical metal cleaning wastes 
d. South area runoff collection basin effluent 

2. North area runoff collection basin effluent 

3. Chemical and control building floor drainage 

Flow 

pH 

Total Suspended Solids 

Oil and Grease 

Iron 

Copper 

See Special Condition 1 

See Special Condition 2 

15 

15 

1.0 

0.5 

Approximate Flow 

0.88 MGD 

Intermittent 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 

Intermittent 

Intermittent 

30 

20 

1.0 

1.0 

SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY 

Daily 

1IWeek 

1IWeek 

1IWeek 

2/Month" 

2/Month* 

SAMPLE 
TYPE 

Continuous 

Grab 

24-Hour Composite 

Grab 

24-Hour Composite 

24-Hour Composite 

"The sampling frequency for total iron and total copper shall be daily during discharge of non-chemical metal cleaning wastes. At all other 
times the sampling frequency shall be twice per month . 
.... See Special Condition 9. 
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Page 5 Modification Date: November 5, 2009 

NPDES Permit No. IL0002208 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

1. From the modification date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent ofthe following discharge(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

PARAMETER 

LOAD LIMITS Ibs/day 
DAF (DMF) 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgll 

30 DAY 
AVERAGE 

DAILY 
MAXIMUM 

SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY 

Outfall(s): 003 Sewage Treatment Plant Effluent (DAF = 0.015 MGD) 

This discharge consists of: 

1. Treated Sanitary Wastewater 

Flow 

pH 

Total Suspended Solids 

BODs 

Total Residual Chlorine 

*See Special Condition 10. 

6.5 

5.2 

See Special Condition 1 

See Special Condition 2 

13.0 

10.4 

Approximate Flow 

0.015 MGD 
(DMF 0.03125 MGD) 

Daily 

1/Week 

25 50 1/Week 

20 40 1/Week 

0.05 Daily* 

SAMPLE 
TYPE 

Continuous 

Grab 

24-Hour Composite 

24-Hour Composite 

Grab 
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Page 6 Modification Date: November 5, 2009 

NPDES Permit No. IL0002208 

Special Conditions 

SPECIAL CONDITION 1. Flow shall be reported, in "million gallons per day" (MGD), as a daily maximum and monthly average. In the 
event that no discharge occurs during a given month, a statement of "No discharge" shall be reported on the DMR submitted for that month. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 2. The pH shall be in the range 6.0 to 9.0. The monthly minimum and monthly maximum values shall be reported 
on the DMR form. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 3. Total residual chlorine/total residual oxidant (TRCITRO) shall not be discharged from any single generating unit 
for more than two hours per day. The daily mean concentration of total residual oxidant shall be based on a concentration curve. The 
concentration curve shall be generated using grab samples with a sampling frequency of five minutes or less over the exposure time. The 
exposure time is defined to be from the point of first detectable measurement to the point of the last detectable measurement of total 
residual oxidant. Concentration curves shall be submitted with Discharge Monitoring Reports. The frequency and duration of the oxidant 
dosing period plus the amount of chlorine or bromine applied shall be reported on the Discharge Monitoring Reports. For reporting 
purposes, the daily discharge shall be the average of all non-zero values measured in a day and the monthly average shall be the average 
of all daily discharges. Discharge Monitoring Reports shall indicate whether chlorine or bromine compounds were used during the month. 

For the purposes of determining compliance, the highest single instantaneous TRCITRO concentration measured during compliance curve 
sampling on any day will be regarded as the daily maximum concentration. Total residual oxidant concentration shall be measured and 
reported in terms of total residual chlorine. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 4. A discharge limit of 0.05 mg/I (instantaneous maximum) shall be achieved for total residual oxidant (total residual 
chlorine/total residual halogen) when bromine biocides are used for condenser biofouling control, in accordance with Special Condition 3. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 5. The receiving waters for Outfall 001 are designated as Secondary Contact and Indigenous Aquatic Life Waters by 
Section 302.408, Illinois Administration Code, Title 35, Chapter 1, Subtitle C, as amended. These waters shall meet the following standard: 

Temperatures shall not exceed 93°F (34°C) more than 5% of the time, or 100°F (37.8°C) at any time at the edge of the mixing zone which 
is defined by Rule 302.102 of the above regulations. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 6. In lieu of the requirements of section 302.211 (d) and (e), Illinois Administrative Code, Title 35, Subtitle C, as 
amended, effluent shall not alone or in combination with other sources cause temperatures in the main channel of the Lower Des Plaines 
River at the I-55 Bridge to exceed the temperatures set forth in the following table, except in accordance with the allowable monthly 
excursions detailed below: 

60 60 65 

6Qr 
1-15 

73 

6Qr 
16-30 

80 

June 
1-15 

90 91 91 90 85 75 65 

These standards may be exceeded by no more than 3 OF during 2% of the hours in the 12-month period ending December 31, except that at 
no time shall Midwest Generation's plants cause the water temperature at the I-55 Bridge to exceed 93°F. (Midwest Generation's plants 
continue to be subject to the Secondary Contact Standards at the point of discharge). 

SPECIAL CONDITION 7. Permittee shall comply with all temperature limitations as imposed by the Pollution Control Board's order in AS 
96-10, dated October 3,1996. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 8. The discharge from Outfall C01 is limited to Chicago Sanitary and Ship Canal make-up water intake screen 
backwash, free from other discharges. Adequate maintenance of the intake screen system is required to prevent the discharge of floating 
debris collected on intake screens back to the canal. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 9. The Agency has determined that the effluent limitations in this permit constitute BAT/BCT for storm water which is 
treated in the existing treatment facilities for purposes of this permit reissuance, and no pollution prevention plan will be required for such 
storm water. In addition to the chemical specific monitoring required elsewhere in this permit, the permittee shall conduct an annual 
inspection of the facility site to identify areas contributing to a storm water discharge associated with industrial activity, and determine 
whether any facility modifications have occurred which result in previously-treated storm water discharges no longer receiving treatment. If 
any such discharges are identified the permittee shall request a modification of this permit within 30 days after the inspection. Records of 
the annual inspection shall be retained by the permittee for the term of this permit and be made available to the Agency on request. 
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Page 7 Modification Date: November 5, 2009 

NPDES Permit No. IL0002208 

Special Conditions 

SPECIAL CONDITION 10. For Outfall 003: Any use of chlorine to achieve disinfection or for operation and maintenance purposes is 
subject to O.OS mg/l daily maximum total residual chlorine limit. Sampling for total residual chlorine shall be performed on a daily basis 
during the chlorination process. Sampling for total residual chlorine is not required when chlorine is not used. If chlorine is not used during 
any monthly period, the permittee shall report "no chlorine used" on the Discharge Monitoring Reports. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 11 . There shall be no discharge of polychlorinated biphenyl compounds. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 12. There shall be no discharge of complexed metal bearing wastestreams and associated rinses from chemical 
metal cleaning unless this permit has been modified to include the new discharge. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 13. The bypass provisions of 40 CFR 122.41 (m) and upset provisions of 40 CFR 122.41 (n) are hereby incorporated 
by reference. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 14. The Agency may modify this permit during its term to incorporate biomonitoring requirements and additional 
limitations or requirements based on the biomonitoring results. The Agency may also modify this permit to incorporate additional 
requirements and/or limitations based on the effluent monitoring results. Modifications under this condition shall follow public notice and 
opportunity for hearing. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 1S. Samples taken in compliance with the effluent monitoring requirements shall be taken at a point representative 
of the discharge, but prior to entry into the receiving stream. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 16. The Permittee shall record monitoring results on Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) Forms using one such 
form for each outfall each month. 

In the event that an outfall does not discharge during a monthly reporting period, the DMR Form shall be submitted with no discharge 
indicated. 

The Permittee may choose to submit electronic DMRs (eDMRs) instead of mailing paper DMRs to the IEPA. More information, including 
registration information for the eDMR program, can be obtained on the IEPA website, http://www.epa.state.il.us/water/edmr/index.html. 

The completed Discharge Monitoring Report forms shall be submitted to IEPA no later than the 28th day of the following month, unless 
otherwise specified by the permitting authority. 

Permittees not using eDMRs shall mail Discharge Monitoring Reports with an original signature to the IEPA at the following address: 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Division of Water Pollution Control 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
Post Office Box 19276 
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 

Attention: Compliance Assurance Section, Mail Code # 19 

SPECIAL CONDITION 17. In order for the Agency to evaluate the potential impacts of cooling water intake structure operation pursuant to 
40 CFR 12S.90(b), the permittee shall prepare and submit information to the Agency outlining current intake structure conditions at this 
facility; including a detailed description of the current intake structure operation and design, description of any operational or structural 
modifications from original design parameters, source waterbody flow information, or other information as necessary. The information 
submitted should be in accordance with the previously submitted information collection proposal received by the Agency on July 2S, 2005. 

The information shall also include a summary of historical 316(b) related intake impingement and / or entrainment studies, if any, as well as 
current impingement mortality and / or entrainment characterization data; and shall be submitted to the Agency within six (6) months ofthe 
permit's modification date. 

Upon the receipt and review of this information, the permit may be modified to require the submittal of additional information based on a 
Best Professional Judgment review by the Agency. This permit may also be revised or modified in accordance with any laws, regulations , 
or judicial orders issued pursuant to Section 316(b) of the Clean Water Act. 
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Attachment H 

Standard Conditions 

Definitions 

Act means the Illinois Environmental Proteclion Act, 415 ILCS 5 as Amended. 

Agency means the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency. 

Board means the Illinois Pollution Control Board, 

Clean Water Act (formerly referred to as the Federal Water Pollution Control Act) means 
:ub L 92·500, as amended, 33 U,S,C, 1251 et seq. 

NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) means the national program for 
issuing, modifying, revoking and reissuing, terminating, monitoring and enforcing permits, and 
imposing and enforcing pretreatment requirements, under Sections 307, 402, 318 and 405 
of the Clean Water Act. 

USEPA means the Un~ed States Environmental Protection Agency. 

Dally Discharge means the discharge of a pollutant measured during a calendar day or any 
24-hour period that reasonably represents the calendar day for purposes of sampling. For 
pollutants with limitations expressed in units of mass, the "daily discharge" is calculated as 
the total mass of lhe pollutant discharged over the day. For pollutants with limitations 
expressed in other un~s of measurements, the "daily discharge' is calculated as the average 
measurement of the pollutant over the day. 

Maximum Daily Dtscharge L1mttatlon (daily maximum) means the highest allowable daily 
discharge, 

Average Monthly Discharge Limitation (30 day average) means the highest allowable 
average of daily discharges over a calendar month, calculated as the sum of all daily 
discharges measured during a calendar month divided by the number of daily discharges 
measured during that month, 

Average Weekly Discharge Limitation (7 day average) means the highest allowable 
average of daily discharges over a calendar week, calculated as the sum of all daily 
discharges measured during a calendar week divided by the number of daily discharges 
measured during that week. 

Best Management Practices (BMPs) means schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, 
maintenance procedures, and other management practices to prevent or reduce the pollution 
of waters of the Stale. BMPs also include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and 
practices to control plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage 
from raw material storage. 

Aliquot means a sample of specified volume used to make up a total composite sample, 

Grab Sample means an individual sample of at least 100 milliliters collected at a randomly­
selected time over a period not exceeding 15 minutes. 

24 Hour Composite Sample means a combination of at least 8 sample aliquots of at least 
100 milliliters, collected at periodic intervals during the operating hours of a facility over a 24-
hour period. 

8 Hour Composite Sample means a combination of at least 3 sample aliquots of at least 100 
milliliters, collected at periodic intervals during the operaling hours of a facility over an 8-hour 
period , 

Flow Proportional Composite Sample means a combination of sample aliquots of at least 
100 milliliters collected at periodic intervals such that eilher the time interval between each 
aliquot or the volume of each aliquol is proportional to either the stream flow at the time of 
s.ampling or the total slream flow since the collection of the previous aliquot. 

(1) Duty to comply. The permittee must comply with all conditions of this permit. Any 
permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the Act and is grounds for enforcement 
action, permittelmination, revocation and reissuance, modification, or for denial of a 
permit renewal application. The permittee shall comply with effluent slandards or 
prohibitions established under Section 307(a) of the Clean Water Act for toxic 
pollutants within the time provided in the regulalions that establish these standards or 
prohibitions, even if the permit has not yet been modified to incorporate the 
requirement 

(2) Duty to reapply. If the permIttee wishes to continue an activity regulated by this permit 
after the expiration date of this permit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new 
permit If the permittee submits a proper applicalion as required by the Agency no later 
than 180 days prior to the expiratIon date, this permit shall continue in full force and 
effect untillhe final Agency decision on the application 11as been made. 

(3) Need to halt or reduce activity not a defense. 1\ shall not be a defense for a 
permittee In an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce 
the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit. 

(4) Duty to mitigate. The permittee shall lake all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent 
any discharge in violation of this permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely 
affecting human health or the environment. 

(5) Proper operation and maintenance. The permittee shall at all limes properly operate 
and maintain all facilities and systems of treatment and control (and related 
appurtenances) which are Installed or used by Ihe permittee to achieve compliance 
With conditions of this permit PlOper operation and maintenance Includes effeclive 
pelformallce, adequale funding, adequate operator staffing and training, and adequale 
labor~tOly ilnd process controls, including appropriate quailly assurance procedures 
rhls prOVision reqUires the operation of back-lip, or auxiliary faCilities, or Similar 
systems only when necessary 10 achieve compliance wllh the conditions of the permit 

(6) Permit actions, This permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated 
for cause by the Agency pursuant to 40 CFR 122.62. The filing of a request by the 
permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or a 
notification of planned changes or antiCipated noncompliance, does not stay any 
permit condition. 

(7) Property rights, This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any 
exclusive privilege, 

(8) Duty to provide Information, The permittee shall furnish to the Agency within a 
reasonable time, any information which the Agency may requestto determine whether 
cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this permit, or to 
determine compliance w~h the permrt. The permittee shall also furnish to tile Agency, 
upon request, copies of records required to be kept by this permit. 

(9) Inspection and entry. The permittee shall allow an authorized representative of the 
Agency, upon the presentation of credentials and other documents as may be required 
by law, to: 

(a) Enter upon the permittee's premises wl1ere a regulated facility or activity IS 
located or conducted, or where records must be kept under the conditions of thiS 
permit; 

(b) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept 
under the conditions of this permit; 

(c) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and 
control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under this 
permit; and 

(d) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit 
compliance, or as otherwise authorized by the Act, any substances or parameters 
at any location. 

(10) Monitoring and records. 

(a) Samples and measurements taken for the purpose of mOnitoring shall be 
representative of the monitored activ~y. 

(b) The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all 
calibration and maintenance records, and all original strip chart recordings for 
continuous monitoring instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this 
permrt, and records of all data used to complete the application for this permil, for 
a period of alleast 3 years from the date of this permit, measurement, report or 
application. This period may be extended by request of the Agency at any time. 

(c) Records of monitoring information shall include: 

(1) The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements; 

(2) The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements; 

(3) The date(s) analyses were performed; 

(4) The individual(s) who performed the analyses; 

(5) The analytical techniques or methods used; and 

(6) The results of such analyses. 

(d) Monitoring must be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40 
CFR Part 136, unless other test procedures have been specified in thiS permit. 
Where no test procedure under 40 CFR Part 136 has been approved, the 
permittee must submit to the Agency a test method for approval . The permittee 
shall calibrate and perform maintenance procedures on all monitoring and 
analytical instrumentation at intervals to ensure accuracy of measurements 

(11) Signatory requirement. All applications, reports or information submitted to the 
Agency shall be signed and certified 

(a) Application. All permit applications shall be signed as follows: 

(1) For a corporation: by a principal executive officer of at least the level of 
vice president or a person or position having overall responsibility for 
environmental matters for the corporation; 

, 
(2) For a partnership or sale proprietorship: by a general partner or the 

proprietor, respectively; or 

(3) For a municipality, State, Federal, or other public agency: by either a 
principal executive officer or ranking elected official 

(b) Reports. All reports required by permits, or other information requested by Ihe 
Agency shall be signed by a person described in paragraph (a) or by a duly 
authorized representative of that person. A person is a duly authorized 
representative only if: 

(1) The authorization is made in writing by a person described in paragraph (a); 
and 

(2) The authorization specifies either an individual or a position responsible for 
the overall operation of the facility, from which the discharge originates, such 
as a plant manager, superintendent or person of equivalent responsibility; 
and 

(3) The wrillen authorization is submitted 10 the Agency 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

1021 NORTH GRAND AVENUE EAST, P.O. Box 19276, SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62794·9276 

THOMAS V. SKINNER, DIRECTOR 
~17/782-0610 

.:July 26, 2000 . 

Midwest Generation, LLC 
Environmental Health and Safety Department 
One Financial Place 
Chic!lgo, Illinois 60690·0767 

Re: Midwest Generation, LLC 
Joliet 29 Generating Station - Units 7 & 8 
NPDES Permit No. IL0064254 
Modification ofNPDES Permit (After Public Notice) 

Gentlemen: 

The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency has reviewed the request for modification of the 
above-referenced NPDES Permit and issued a public notice based on that request. The finai decision of the 
Agency is to modify the Permit as follows: . 

Special Condition 7 shall be amended with the addition of the following sentence: the TRCffRO discharge 
limit of 0.05 mgIL shall also be achieved when sodium hypochlorite is used for biofouling control in the 
station's cooling towers. 

Enclosed is a copy of the modified Permit. You have the right to appeal this modification to the Illinois 
Pollution Control Board within a 35 day period following ihe modification date shown on the first page of the 
~rm~ . . 

Should you have any question or comments regarding the above, please contact Beth Unser of my staff. 

TGM:SFN:BAU:99122103.grm 

Attachment: Modified Permit 

cc: Records 
Compliance Assurance Section 
Maywood Region 

. NIPC 

GEORGE H. RYAN, GOVERNOR 

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

;' \ 

. ( I 
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NPDES Permit No. IL0064254 

illinois Environmental Protection Agency 

Division of Water Pollution Control 

1021 North Grand Avenue East 

Post Office Box 19276 

Springfield, illinois 62794-9276 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM 

Modified (NPDES) Permit 

Expiration Date: November 3D, 2000 

Name and Address of Permltlee:. 

Midwest Generation, LLC 
Environmental, Health and Safety Department 
. One Financial Place . 
440 South LaSalle Street, Suite 3410 
Chicago, Illinois ·60690-0767 

Discharge Number and Name: . 

001 - Condenser Cooling and House Service Water 
001 a - Demlnerallzer Regenerant Wastes 
001 b - Plant Drains, 'Coal Pile and West Area 

• 
Basin Emergency Overflow 

01 c - Boller Blowdown-Unlts 7 and 8 
001 d - Sewage Treatment Plant (Sanitary) 
oolg - Local Field Ash Pond Blowdown 
002 - Junction Tower Area Runoff 
003 - Abandoned Ash Disposal Area Runoff 

Issue Date: November 15,1995 
Effective Date: December 1, 1995. 
Modification Date: July 26, 2000 

Facility Name and Address: 

Joliet 29 Generating Station-Units 7 & 8 
1800 Channahon Road 
JOliet, illinois 60436 
(Will County) 

Receiving Waters 

Des Plaines River 

( 

In compliance with the provisions of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act, Subtitle C and/or Subtitle o"Rules and Regulalions of the 
illinois Pollution Control Board, and the Clean Water Act, the above-named permitlee Is hereby authorized to' discharge at the above 
location to the above-named receiving stream In accordance with the standard conditions and attachments .hereln. 

Permittee Is not authorized to discharge after the above expiration date. In order to receive authorization to discharge beyond the expiration 
date, the permittee shall submit the proper application as required by the illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) not later than 
180 days prior to the expiration date. . oz:; jlJJJ4~::: c. -:.' 

/ . 
Thomas G. McSwiggln, P.E. . 
Manager, Permit Section 
Division of Water Pollution Control 

TGM:SFN:BAU:99122103.grm 

• I . . .\ 
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PARAMETER 

LOAD LIMITS 
Ibs/day 

30 DAY DAILY 
AVG. MAX. 

NPDES Permit No. IL0064254 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgD 

30 DAY DAILY 
AVG. MAX. 

Modification Date: July 26, 20.0.0. 

SAMPLE SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

1. From the effecllve date of this permit until the expiration date of the permit, the effluent of the following dlscharge(s) shall be monitored 
. and limited at all times as follows: 

OutfaIUs): 00.1 - Condenser COOling and House S'e!Vlce Water 

This dls.charge consists of: 

1. Condenser Cooling Water Units 7 and 8 
2. Demlnerallzer Regenerant Wastes 
3. Sewage Treatment Plant Effluent (Sanitary) 
4. House Se!VI.ce Water 
5. Intake Screen BAckwash 
6. Local Field Ash Pond effluent 

Approximate Flow 
1,0.73 MGD 

7. Plant Drains, Coal Pile and, West Roof and Plant Area Storm Runoff. 
8. Boller Blowdown . 

Flow See Special Condition 2 

Temperature See Special Conditions No.4, 5 and 6 

Total Residual Chlorine! 
Total Residual Oxidant .. 

• See Special Conditions No.4 and 5 
"See Special Condition No.7 . 

• 

Continuous 

Continuous 

0..2 llweek 

Record 
Daily 
Average 
and Dally 
Maximum 
Flow 

• 

.. 

( 
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PARAMETER 

NPDES Permit No. IL0064264 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

"LOAD LIMITS CONCENTRATION 
Ibs/day LIMITS mgO 

30 DAY DAIL V---3O-DAY"- ... DAILY" 
AVG. MAX. AVG. MAX. 

Modification" Date: " July 26, 2000 

( 

SAMPLE SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

1. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date of the permit. the effluent of the following dlscharge(s) shall be monitored 
and limited at all times as follows: " " 

Flow 

Total Suspended 
Solids 

Outtal\(s): 001 a - Demlnerallzer Regenerant Wastes (Units 7 and 8) 

See Special Condition 2 

15 30 

Approximate Flow 
0.023 MGD 

1lweek 

1/month 

24-Hour 
Total 

Grab" 

Grab samples are appropriate only when the existing equalization tank Is In service. If at any time. the equalization .tank Is out of service 
a 24-hour composite sample shall be required. 

Outfall(s) 001 b' - Plant Drains. Coal Pile and West Area Basin Emergency Overllow 

This discharge consist of: Approximate Flow 

1. Coal Pile Runoff Intermittent 
2. Drive House Floor Drains Intermittent 
3. West Plant Roof Drains Intermittent 
4. Coal Cracker Sumps Intermittent 
5. Crusher Building Sumps Intermittent 
6. Equipment storage Building Floor 

and Roof Drains Intermittent 
7. West Plant Area Storm Runoff Intermittent 
8. Turbine Room Floor Drains Intermittent 

Flow See Special Condition 2 1lweek 24-Hour 
Total 

Total Suspended 
Solids 15 30 1lweek 24-Hour 

Composite 

011 and Grease 15 20 1lweek Grab" 

pH See Special Condition 1 " 1lweek Grab 

'The sUbwaste streams listed for this outfall may also be routed to the local Field Ash Pond System (See outfall 001g) 
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• 
PARAMETER 

-lOAD LIMITS 
Ibs/day 

NPDES Permit No. Il0064264 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgn 

Modification Date: July 26, 2000 

30 DAY ----. DAll Y-- 30 DAY - -- - DAilY - - - --sAMple 'SAMPlE 
TYPE AVG. MAX. AVG. MAX. FREQUENCY 

-1. From the effective date of this permit untllthe expiration date of the permit, the effluent of the following dlscharge(s) shall be monitored 
and limited at all times as follows: . 

-Flow 

Total Suspended 
Solids -

Flow 

Total suspended 
Solids 

pH 

Outfall(s): ODIc - BOiler Blowdown (Units 7 and 8) 

This discharge consists of: 

1. Boller Blowdown 
2. Boller Drains 

See Special Condition No.2 

15 30 

Outfall(s) 001d - Sewage Treatment Plant (Sanitary) 

See Special Condition 2 

18.7 37.5 30 60 

18.7 37.5 30 60 

See Special Condition No.1 

Approximate Flow: 
0.038 MGD 

Intermittent 
Intermittent 

1lweek 

l/month 

24-Hour 
total 

8-Hour 
compOSite 

ApprOXimate Flow 
0.0099 MGD (DMF 0.075 
MGD) 

llweek 

l/week 

1lweek 

llweek 

24-Hour 
Total -

24-Hour 
composite -

24'Hour 
composite 

Grab 
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Page 5 --·-Modiflcatlon--Date:-- July -26, 2000 

• LOAD LIMITS 
Ibs/day 

_ 30 DAY DAILY 

NPDES Permit No. IL0064254 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgn 

(
' - i 

- I 

PARAMETER AVG. - . ·--MAle .cs,',MPLE 
FREQUENCY 

SAMPLE 
TYPE 

. . '. . . 

1. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date of the permit, the effluent of the following dlschaige(s) shall be monitored 
and limited at all times as follows: - - - - . 

Flow 

Total Suspended 
Solids 

011 & Grease 

Iron"'''''''' 

Copper"'·· 

Outfallls): 001 a . Local Field Ash Pond Effluent 

This discharge consists of: 

1. Demlnerallzer Filter Backwash' 
2. BoHom Ash and Economizer Ash Sluice Water' 

Approximate Flow: 
2.61 MGD 

3, Plant Drains, coal pile, and West AIea Basin Emergency Overflow" 
4. Pyrite Sluice Water - -
5. Gas Side Non·Chemlcal Metal cleaning waste water 

, These sub-waste streams can be altemately routed to the Joliet Unit 6 Station -QuarrY ., outfall 005, NPDES 
PermitNo.IL0002216. 

"This Sub-Waste can be alternately discharged through outfall 001 (b). 

See Special Condition No.2 3/week 24·Hour 
Total 

See Special Condition No.1 -llweek Gr_ab 

15 30 1lweek 24·Hour 
Composite 

15 20 llweek Grab 

1.0 3lweek 24·Hour 
Composite 

0.5 1.0 3lweek 24·Hour 
Composite 

'''If the Non·Chemlcal Metal cleaning wastewater Is absent from the discharge the monitoring frequency for Iron(total) and copper may 
be reduced to 1/month. To qualify for this redu,ctlon in sampling the permittee shall Indicate, on each discharge monitoring report, the 
absence of Non-Chemical Metal Cleaning wastewater. 

Outfall(s): 002· Junction Tower Area Runoff 
003· Abandoned Ash Disposal Area Runoff 

See Special Condlllon 15 
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Page 6 _, ·-Modifiootlon-Date: ,July 26, 2000 

NPDES Permit No. IL0064254 

Special Conditions (, 

SPECIAL CONDITION 1. The pH shall be In the range 6.0 to 9.0. The monthly minimum and monthly maximum values shall be reported 
on the DMR form. ' 

SPECIAL CONDIIIONTIiOw shall b6"riiported as-a 30 day average-and dally maximum. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 3. Samples taken In compliance with the effluent mOnitoring requirements shall.be taken at a point representative 
, of the discharge, but prior to entry Into the receiving stream. , ' , 

SPECIALCONDITON 4. The receiving waters are designated as Secondary Contact and Indigenous Aquatic Life Waters by Section 
302.408, illinois Administration Code, Title 35, Chapter 1, Subtitle C, as amended. These waters shall meet the following standard: 

A, Temperatures shall not exceed 9aoF (34 °C) more than 5% of the time, or 100°F (37.8 °C) at any time at the edge of the mixing zone 
which Is defined by Rule 302.102 of the above regulations. " , 

'B. The monthly maximum and monthly average values shall be reported on the DMR forin. 

C. Compliance with the effluent temperature monitoring requirements shall be determined by monitoring the water temperature in the 
discharge canal prior to entry to the,Des Plaines River and the Influent river water temperature. Submit the dally average and daily 
maximum water temperature for the Intake and discharge with the monthly DMR. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 5. 

OF 

A. In lieu of the requirements of Section a02.211{d) and (e), Illinois Administrative Code, Title 35, Subtitle C, as amended, effluent 
shall not alone or in combination with other sources cause temperatures In the main channel of the Lower Des Plaines River at 
the I-55 Bridge to exceed the temperatures set forth In the following table, except In accordance with the allowable monthly 
excursions detailed below: 

60 60 65 

8m. 
1-15 

73 

8m: May 
16-30 1-15 

80 85 

May J!!n J!!n Jul 
16-30 1-15 16-30 

90 90 ,91 91 91 90 85 75 65 

These standards may be exceeded by no more than 3°F during 2% of the hours in the 12-month period ending December31, except that 
at no time shall Midwest Generation's pla'nts cause the water temperature at the I-55 Bridge to exceed 93°F. (Midwest Generation's plants 
continue to be subject to the Secondary Contact Standards at the point of discharge). 

B. When it appears that discharges from Outfall 001 have'the reasonable potential to cause water temperatures at the I-55 Bridge 
to exceed the values set forth In the above table, the permittee shall determine whether, and the extent to which, station operations 
must be restricted to avoid Violating the above-stated limits. The permittee shall make such a determination based upon the 
outputs of a prediciive model reasonably suited for such a purpose. 

C. ' The permittee shall maintain and operate a water temperature monitor and a suitable back-up monitor at the I-55 Bridge. The 
,permittee .shall record river temperatures at the I-55 bridge at least once every 15 minutes, and shall report on the monthly 
, discharge monitoring report the daily maximum temperature recorded and the cumulative number of excursion hours, if any, above 

the monthly temperature standards set forth In the above table. 

D. Permittee's failure, to submit the temperature monitoring data from the I-55 bridge due to equipment malfunction shall not be 
deemed a permit.vlolatlon provided the permittee employs reasonable efforts to repair the malfunction. If the malfunction lasts 
more than 24 hours, a manual measurement of river temperature shall be made at least once per day. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 6. Permittee shall comply with all temperature limitations as imposed by the Pollution Control Board's order in AS 
96-10, dated October 3, 1996. ' 

SPECIAL CONDITION 7. Total residual chlorine/total residual oxidant (TRCITRO) shall not be discharged from any single generating unifs 
main ,condenser for more than two hours per day. The daily mean concentration of total residual oxidant shall be based on a ,concentration 
curve. The concentration cU,rve shall be generated using grab samples with a sampling frequency of five minutes or less over the exposure 

""e. The exposure time Is defined to be from the point of first detectable measurement to the point of the last detectable measurement ' 
IIf total residual oxidant. Concentration curves shall be submitted with Discharge Monitoring Reports. The frequency and dura lion of the 
oxidant dosing period plus the amount of chlorine or bromine applied shall be reported on the Discharge Monitoring Report. For reporting 
purposes, the daily discharge shall be the average of all non-zero values measured in a day and the monthly average shall be the average 
of all daily discharges. ' Discharge MonitOring Reports shall indicate whether chlorine or bromine compounds were u~ed during the month. 
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Page 7 .. ModiflcatlonDate: .. July .26, .2000 

NPDES Permit No. IL0064254 

• Special Conditions ( i 
. [ 

For the purpose of determining compllanca, the highest single Instantaneous TRCffRO concentration measured during compliance curve 
sampling on any day will be regarded as the daily maximum concentration. Total residual oxidant concentrations shall be measured and 

_ .. re?':.rt~d In terms of t~tal residual chlorine. . "_ .. _ .. _... .. :~ .•. 

A discharge limit of 0.05 mgn (In.stantaneous maximum) shall be achieved for total residual oxidant when bromine biocldes are used for 
condenser blofoullng control. The TRCffRO discharge limit of 0.05 mg/L shall also be achieved when sodium hypochlorite Is used for 
blofoullng control In the station's cooling towers. . . 

SPECIAL CONDITiON 8. There shall be no discharge of polychlorinated biphenyl compounds (PCB's). 

SPECIAL CONDITION 9. There shall be no discharge of complexed metal bearing wastestreams and associated rinses from chemical 
metal cleaning unless this permit has been modified to Include the new discharge. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 1 D. The Agency may modify thiS permit during its term to incorporate blomonitorlng reqUirements and additional 
limitations or requirements based on the blomonlloring results. Modifications under this condition shall follow-public notice and opportunity 
for hearing. . 

SPECIAL CONDITION'1 1: The Agency has determined that the effluentllrriltatlons In this permit co~stltute BATIBCT for Oulfalls 001(b) 
and 001 (g) process and storm water discharges which are treated In the existing treatment facilities for. purposes of this permit reissuance, 
and no pollution prevention plan will be required for such storm water. In addition to the chemical specifiC monitoring required elsewhere 
in this permit, the permittee shall conduct an annual inspection of the facility slle to Ideniify areas contributing to a storm water discharge 
associated with Industrial activity, and determine whether any facility .modificatlons have occurred which result In previously-treated storm 
water discharges no longer receiving treatment. If any such discharges are Identified the permittee shall request a modification of this 
permit within 30 days after the Inspection. Records of the annual Inspection shall be retained by the permittee for the term of this permit 
and be made available to the Agency on request. . 

SPECIAL CONDITION 12. The "upset" defense prOVisions as defined under 40 CFR 122.41(n) are hereby Incorporated by reference . 

• PECIAL CONDITION 13. If an applicable effluent standard or limitation Is promulgated under Sections 301(b)(2)(C) and (D), 304(b)(2),' 
and 307(a)(2) of the Glean Water Act and that effluent standard or Iirriitation is more stringent than any effluenlilmitation In the permit or 
controls a pollutant not limited In the NPDES Permit, the Agency shall revise or modify the permit in accordance with the more stringent 
siandard or prohibition and shall so notify the permittee. . 

SPECIAL CONDITION 14. The permittee shall record monitoring results on Discharge Monitoring Report Forms using one such form for 
each (lischarge each month. . 

. The completed Discharge Monitoring Report forms shall be submitted to IEPA no later than the 28th day of the following month, linless 
otherwise specified by the permitting authority. . 

Discharge Monitoring Reports shall be mailed to the IEPA at the following address: 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Bureau of Water 
Compliance Assurance Section 
.1021 North Grand Avenue East 
P.O. Box 19276 
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 

SPECIAL CONDITION 15. 

STORM WATER POLLUTIoN PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) 

A. A storm water pollution prevention plan shall be developed by Ihe permittee for the storm water asso.ciated with industrial aclivity 
discharged from Oulfalls 002 and 003. The plan shall identify potential sources of pollulion which may be expected to affect the quality 
of storm water discharges associated with the industrial activity at the facility. In addition, the plan shall describe and ensure the . 
Implementation of praclices which are to be used to reduce the pollutants in storm water discharges associated withindustrlal activity .. 
at the facility and to assure compliance with the terms and conditions of this permit. 

l The plan shall be completed within 180 days of the effective date of this permit. Plans shall provide for compliance with the terms of 
the plan within 365 days of the effective date of this permit. The owner or operator of the facility shall make a copy of the plan available 
to the Agency at any reasonable time upon request. INote: If the plan has already been developed and implemented it shall be> 
maintained in accordance with all requirements of this special condition.] > 
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NPDES Permit No. IL0064254 

t Special Conditions· 

. C. The permittee may be notified by the Agency at any time that the plan does not meet the requirements of this condition. After such 
notification, the permittee shall make changes to the plan and shall subm" a written certiflcatlon that the requested changes have been 
1Tla.~.ll.._y_nI1~~otherwlse p'r~vlded, the permittee shall have 30 days after such notification to make the changes. 

D.· The dlscharge·r shall amend the plan whenever there Is a change In construction, operation, or maintenance which may affect the 
discharge of significant quantities of pollutants to the waters of the State or If a facility Inspection required by paragraph G of this 
condition Indicates that an amendment Is needed. The plan should also be amended If the discharger Is In violation of any conditions 
of this permit, or has not achieved the general objective of controlling pollutants· In storm water discharges. Amendments to the plan 
shall be made within the shortest reasonable period of time, and shall be provided to the Agency for review upon request. 

E. The plan shall provide a description of potential sources which may be expected to add significant quantities of pollutants to storm 
. water discharges, or whlch may result In non-storm water discharges from storm water outfalls at the facility .. The plan shall Include, 

at a minimum, the following Items: 

• 

• 

1. A topographic map extending one-quarter mile beyond the property boundaries of the facility, showing: the facility, surface water 
bodies, wells Qncluding Injection wells), seepage pits, Infiltration ponds, and the discharge points where the facility's storm water 
discharges to a municipal storm drain system or other water body. The requirements of this paragraph may be Included on the 
site map If appropriate. 

2. A site map showing: 

I. 

II. 

ill. 

Iv. 

v. 

vI. 

The storm water conveyance and discharge structures; 

. An outline of the storm water drainage areas for each storm water discharge point; 

Paved areas and buildings; 

Areas used for outdoor manufacturing, storage, or disposal of significant materials, Including activities that generate 
significant quantities of dust or particulates. . . 

Location of existing storm water structural control measures (dikes, coverings, detention facilities, etc.); 

Surface water locations and/or municipal storm drain locations 

viI. . Areas of existing and potential soil erosion; . 

viii. Vehicle service areas; 

Ix. Material loading, unloading, and access areas. 

3. A narrative description of the following: 

I. The nature of the Industrial activities conducted at the site, Including a description of significant materials that are treated, 
stored. or disposed of In a manner to allow exposure to storm water; 

II. Materials, eqUipment, and vehicle management practices employed to minimize contact of significant materials with storm 
water discharges; 

iii. Existing structural and non-structural control measures to reduce pollutants in storm water discharges; 

iv. Industrial storm viater discharge treatment facilities; 

v. Methods of onslte storage and disposal of significant materials; 

4. A list of the types of pollutants that have a reasonable potential to be present in storm water discharges in significant quantities. 

5. An estimate of the size of the facility In acres or square feet, and the percent of the facility that has Impervious areas such as 
pavement or buildings. . 

6. A summary of existing sampling data describing pollutants in storm water discharges. 
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Special Conditions 

F. The plan shall describe the storm water management controls which will be Implemented by the facility. The·appropriate controls shall . 
reflect Identified existing and potential sources of pollutants at the facility. The description of the storm waler management controls 
shall Include: 

• 

1. Storm Water Pollotlon prevention Personnel· Identification by Job tlties of the Individuals who ·are.res.ponslble for developing, 
Implementing, and revising the plan. . 

2. Preventive Maintenance· Procedures for Inspection and maintenance of storm water conveyance system devices such as 
olllWater separators, catch basins, etc., and Inspection and testing of plarit equipment and systems that could fall and result hi . 
discharges of pollutants to storm water. . . 

3. Good Housekeeping· Good housekeeping requires the maintenance of clean, orderiy facility areas that discharge storm water. 
Material handling areas shall be Inspected and cleaned to reduce the potential for pollutants to enter the storm water conveyance 
system. 

4.· Spill Prevention and Response· Identification of areas where slgnlflcant materials can spill Into or otherwise enter the storm water 
conveyance systems and their accompanying drainage points. Speclflc material handling procedures, storage requirements, spill 
clean up equipment and procedures should be Identified, as appropriate. Internal notification procedures for spills of significant 
materials should be established .. 

5. Storm Water Management Practices· Storm water management practices are practices other than those whl.ch control the source 
of pollutants. They Include measures such as Installing 011 and grit separators, diverting storm water Into retention basins, etc. 
Based on assessment of the potential of various sources to contribute pollutants, measures to remove pollutants from storm water 
discharge shall be Implemented. In developing the plan, the following management practices shall be considered: 

I. 

II. 

III. 

Iv. 

v. 

vi. 

Containment· Storage within berms or other secOndary containment devices to prevent leaks and spills from entering storm 
water runoff; 

Oil & Grease Separation· Olliwater separators, booms, skimmers or other methods to minimize oil. contaminated stann water 
discharges;· . 

Debris & Sediment Control· Screens, booms, sediment ponds or other methods to reduce deliris and sediment In storm water 
discharges;· . . 

Waste Chemical Dlsposat· Waste chemicals such as antifreeze, degreasers and used oils shall be recycled or disposed of 
In an approved manner and In a way which prevents them from entering storm water discharges .. 

Storm Water Diversion· Storm water diversion away from materials manufactUring, storage and other areas of potential storm· 
water contamination; . 

Covered Storage or Manufacturing Areas - Covered fueling operations, materials manufacturing and storage areas to prevent 
contact with storm water. ... 

6. Sediment and Erosion Prevention· The plan shall Identify areas which due to topography, activities, or other factors, have a high 
potential for significant soil erosion and describe measures to limit erosion. 

7. Employee Training - Employee training 'programs shall Inform personnel at all levels of responsibility of the components and goals 
of the storm water pollution control plan. Training should address topics such as spill response, good housekeeping and material 
management practices. The plan shall Identify periodic dates for such training. 

8. Inspecilon Procedures·· Qualified plant personnel shall be Identified to Inspect designated equipment andptant areas. A tracking 
or follow-up procedure shall be used to ensure appropriate response has been taken In response to an Inspecti9n. Inspections 
and maintenance actlv.ltles shall be documented and recorded. 

G. The permiHee shall conduct an annual facility Inspection to verify that all elements of the plan, Including the site· map, potential pollutant 
sources, and structural and non-structural controls to reduce pollutants In Industrial storm water discharges are accurate. Observations 

• 

that require a response and the appropriate response to the observation shall be retained as part of the plan. Records documenting 
significant observations made during the site Inspection shall be submitted to the Agency In accordance with the reporting 
reqUirements of this permit. I i 
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. H. This plan should briefly describe the appropriate elements of other program requirements, Including Spill Prevention Control and 
Countermeasures (SPCC) plans required under Seclion 311 of the CWA and the regulations promulgated thereunder, and Best 
Manag~ment !:r.<?ll@_r:!l~ un<j~r 40 Ci=.R. t??JQO .. ___ .__ _-____ ... . .. _ ... ______________ ... _ 

( , 

I. The plan Is considered a reporl that shall be available to the public under Section 30B(b) of the CWA. The permittee may claim 
porllons of the plan as confidential business Information, Including any portion describing facility security measures. 

J. Theplari shall Include the signature and tllie of the person responsible for preparation of the plan and Include the date of Initial 
preparation and each amendment thereto. 

REPORTING 

K. The facility shall submit an annual Inspection report to the illinois Environmental Protection Agency. The report shall Include results. 
of the annual facility Inspection which Is required by Pari G of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan of this permit. The report 
shall also Include documentation of any event (spill, treatment unit malfunction, etc.) which would require an Inspection, results of the 
Inspection, and any subsequent corrective maintenance activity. The report shall be completed and signed by tHe authorized facility 
employee(s) who conducted the Inspectlon(s). 

· L. The first report shall contain Information gathered during the one year time period beginning with the effecllve date of coverage under 
this permit and shall be submitted no later than 60 days after this one year period has expired. Each subsequent report shall contain 
the previous year's Information and shall be submitted no later than one year after the previous year's reporl was due. 

· M .. Annual Inspection reports shall be mailed to the following address: 

• 
illinois Environmental Protection Agency 

. Bureau of Water . 
Compliance Assurance Section 
Annual Inspection Report 
1021 Norlh Grand Avenue East 
P.O. Box 19276 

. Springfield, illinois 62794-9276 

N. If the facility performs Inspections more frequently than required by this permit, the results shall be Inctuded as additional Information 
in the annual reporl. . 

. , 
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ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

1021 NORTH GRAND AVENUE EAST, P.O. Box 19276, SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62794-9276 

THOMAS V. SKINNER, DIRECTOR 

217/782-0610 

-July-19,---2000~ ~---~ 

Midwest Generation, LLC 
Environmental, Health and Safety Dept. 
440 South LaSalle Street, Suite 3500 
One Financial Place 
Chicago, Illinois 60690 

Re: Midwest Generation, LLC 
Waukegan Generating Station 
NPDES Permit No. IL0002259 
Final Permit 

Gentlemen: 

Attached is the final NPDES Permit for your discharge. The Permit as issued covers discharge limitations, 
monitoring, and reporting requirements. The failure of you to meet any portion of the Permit could result in 
civil and/or criminal penalties. The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency is ready and willing to assist 
you in interpreting any of the conditions of the Permit as they relate specifically to your discharge. 

The IEPA renamed the internal outfalls in the reissued NPDES permit as follows to conform to the data entry 
requirements for the USEPA's compliance system: 

Outfall 001 A was renamed to outfall AO 1, outfall 001 B was renamed to outfall BO 1, outfall 001 C was renamed 
to outfall COl and outfall 001D was renamed to outfall DOl, outfall OOlE was renamed to outfall EOI and 
outfall 001 F was renamed to outfall FO 1. 

The Permit as issued is effective as of the date indicated on the first page of the Permit. You have the right 
to appeal any condition of the Permit to the Illinois Pollution Control Board within a 35 day period following 
the issuance date. 

To assist you in meeting the self-monitoring and reporting requirements of your reissued NPDES permit, a 
supply of preprinted Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) forms for your facility is being prepared. These 
forms will be sent to you prior to the initiation of DMR reporting under the reissued permit. Additional 
information and instrUl::tions will accompany the preprinted DMRs upon their arrival. 

Should you have/questions concerning the Permit, please contact Fred Rosenblum at the telephone number 
indicated above. 

TGM:SFN :FLR\9909220 I.DLK 

Attachment: Final Permit 

cc: Records 
Compliance Assurance Section 

Region GEORGE H. RYAN, GOVERNOR 

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 
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NPDES Permit No. IL0002259 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 

e Division of Water Pollution Control 

1021 North Grand Avenue East 

Post Office Box 19276 

Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM 

Expiration Date: July 31, 2005 

Name and Address of Permittee: 

Midwest Generation, LLC 
Environmental, Health and Safety Dept. 
One Financial Place 
440 South LaSalle Street, Suite 3500 
Chicago, Illinois 60605 

eiSCharge Number and Name: 

Circulating Water 
Boiler Blowdown 
Demineralizer Regenerant Wastes 
Wastewater Treatment System Effluent 

Reissued (NPDES) Permit 

Issue Date: July 19, 2000 
Effective Date: August 1, 2000 

Facility Name and Address: 

Midwest Generation, LLC 
Waukegan Generating Station 
401 East Greenwood Avenue 
Waukegan, Illinois 60087 
(Lake County) 

Receiving Waters 

Lake Michigan 001 
A01 
B01 
C01 
001 
E01 
F01 

East Yard Runoff Collection Basin Overt)ow/Discharge 
Demineralizer Water (Off Specification Bypass) 

Lake Michigan via 001 
Lake Michigan via 001 
Lake Michigan via 001 
Lake Michigan via 001 
Lake Michigan via 001 
Lake Michigan via 001 Unit 7 Demineralized Water Storage Tank Drain 

In compliance with the provisions of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act, Title 35 of III. Adm. Code, Subtitle C and/or Subtitle 0, Chapter 
1, and the Clean Water Act (CWA), the above-named permittee is hereby authorized to discharge at the above location to the above-named 
receiving stream in accordance with the standard conditions and attachments herein. 

Permittee is not authorized to discharge after the above expiration date. In order to receive authorization to discharge beyond the 
expiration date, the permittee shall submit the proper application as required by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) not 
later than 180 days prior to the expiration date. 

TGM:SFN:FLR:99092201.DLK 

e 
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• NPDES Permit No. IL0002259 

Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

LOAD LIMITS Ibs/day 
OAF (OMF)· 

MONTHLY DAILY 
AVG. MAX. 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgll 

MONTHLY DAILY 
AVG. MAX. 

SAMPLE SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

1. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall: 001 Circulating Water* 

This discharge consists of: 

1. Condenser cooling water 
2. House service water 
3. Boiler blowdown 
4. Demineralizer regenerant wastes 
5. Wastewater treatment system effluent 
6. East yard runoff basin overflow/discharge 
7. Demineralized water (off specification bypass) 
8. Demineralized water (storage tank drainage and steam relief) 
9. Intake screen backwash 

Flow (MGD) 

.mperature** 

See Special Condition No. 1 

Plant Capacity Factor (% Capacity of 875 MW) 

·See Special Condition No. 13. 

Approximate Flow 
768.62 MGD 

665 MGD 
29.7 MGD 
0.036 MGD 
0.151 MGD 
8.13 MGD 
0.676 MGD 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
0.172 MGD 

Daily 

Daily 

Daily 

Calculated 

. Continuous 

Monthly 
Average and 
Maximum 

**Temperature shall be recorded on the Discharge Monitoring Reports as a daily minimum, monthly average and daily maximum. See 
Special Condition No.6. 

Outfall: A01 Boiler Blowdown 

The discharge consists of: 

1. Boiler blowdown 
2. Boiler drains 

Flow (MGD) See Special Condition No. 1 

Total Suspended Solids 

• 
15 

Approximate Flow 
0.036 MGD 

0.018 MGD 
0.018 MGD 

30 

2/Month 

1/Month 

Calculated 
24-hr Total 

8-hr Composite 
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Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

LOAD LIMITS Ibs/day 
OAF (OMF) 

MONTHLY DAILY 
AVG. MAX. 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgll 

MONTHLY DAILY 
AVG. MAX. 

SAMPLE SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

2. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall: 801 Demineralizer Regenerant Wastes 

This discharge consists of: 

Flow (MGD) See Special Condition No. 

Total Suspended Solids** 15 

Approximate Flow 
0.151 MGD 

1/Week 

30 2/Month 

24 Hr. 
Composite 

Grab* 

*Grab samples are appropriate only when the existing equlalization tank is in service. If at any time the tank is out of service, an 8-hour 
composite sample shall be required. 
**See Special Condition No. 16 . 

• 

• 
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Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

LOAD LIMITS Ibs/day 
DAF CDMF) 

-MONTHtY-DAIL Y 
AVG. MAX. 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgn 

. MONTHLY DAILY 
AVG. MAX. 

SAMPLE SAMPLE 
FREQUENCY TYPE 

2. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall: C01 Wastewater Treatment System*** 

This Discharge consists of: 

1. 

2. 
3. 

•• 5. 
6. 

Ash transport water 
a. Bottom Ash Sluice 
b. Fly Ash Sluice 
Ash hopper overflow 
Coal pile runoff collection basin discharge 
a. Coal pile area runoff 
b. West yard area runoff 

i. West yard area runoff 
ii. Car dumper area runoff 
iii. Main switch yard area runoff 
iv. West yard polymer building drains 
v. Peaker sump discharges 
vi. West turbine area roof drains 

Non-chemical metal cleaning waste 
Supernatant from dredge spoil lagoons 
Main collection tank discharge 
a. Unit 8 low point sump (roof, floor, & equipment drains) 
b. Ash sluice head tank overflow 
c. Slag line drain 
d. Slag tank overflows 
e. Demineralizer filter backwash (alternate route) 
f. Floor drains (alternate route) 

Flow (MGD) See Special Condition No. 

pH See Special Condition No. 2 

Total Suspended Solids*· 15 

Oil & Grease** 15 

Totallron** 1.0 

Total Copper 0.5 

Approximate Flow 
8.13 MGD 

1.6 MGD 
1.6 MGD 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
1.0 MGD 
0.5 MGD 
0.5 MGD 

Intermittent 
Intermittent 
2.0 MGD 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 

30 

20 

1.0 

1.0 

*Sampling frequency shall be daily during discharge of non-chemical metal cleaning wastes. 
**See Special Condition No. 16 . 

• *see Special Condition No. 13. 

Daily Continuous 

1/Week Grab 

2/Month 24 Hr. 
Composite 

2/Month Grab 

1/Month* 24 Hr. 
Composite 

* 24 Hr. 
Composite 
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Effluent Limitations and Monitoring 

LOAD LIMITS Ibs/day 
OAF (OM F) 

CONCENTRATION 
LIMITS mgn 

········MONTHL Y DAILY MONTHLY .. DAILY SAMPLE SAMPLE 
AVG. MAX. AVG. MAX. FREQUENCY TYPE 

3. From the effective date of this permit until the expiration date, the effluent of the following discharge(s) shall be monitored and limited 
at all times as follows: 

Outfall: 001 East Yard Collection Basin Overflow/Discharge· 

This discharge consists of: 

1. East yard area runoff 
2. Units 1-4 roof and floor drainage 
3. East yard polymer building drains 
4. Demineralizer filter backwash 
5. Laboratory sink drains 
6. Units 5-8 roof and floor drains 

Flow (MGD) See Special Condition No. 

pH See Special Condition No. 2 

Total Suspended Solids·· 15 • Oil & Grease 15 

·See Special Condition No. 13. 
··See Special Condition No. 16. 

Approximate Flow 
0.676 MGD 

Intermittent 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 
0.078 MGD 
Intermittent 
Intermittent 

30 

20 

Daily 

1IWeek 

21Month 

1/Month 

Outfall: E01 Demineralized Water (Off Specification Bypass) 

Flow (MGD) 

Flow (MGD) 

• 

See Special Condition No. 1 

Approximate Flow 
Intermittent 

1IWeek 

Outfall: F01 Unit 7 Demineralized Water Storage Tank Drain 

See Special Condition No. 1 

Approximate Flow 
Intermittent 

1IWeek 

Continuous 

Grab 

24 Hr . 
Composite 

Grab 

Estimate 

Estimate 
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Special Conditions 

SPECIAL CONDITION 1. Flows shall be reported as a monthly average and daily maximum. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 2. The pH shall be in the range 6.0 to 9.0. The monthly minimum and monthly maximum values shall be reported 
on the DMR form. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 3. Samples taken in compliance with the effluent monitoring requirements shall be taken at a point representative 
of the discharge, but prior to entry into the receiving stream. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 4. There shall be no discharge of debris as a result of intake screen washing operations. Debris may be defined 
as solids, inert matter collected on intake screen during normal intake structure operation, not to include animate objects such as fish and 
other discrete aquatic life. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 5. There shall be no discharge of polychlorinated biphenyl compounds (PCB's). 

SPECIAL CONDITION 6. Thermal Discharge Limitations 

During the period beginning on the effective date of this permit and lasting until the date of expiration, the permittee is authorized to 
discharge heated effluent from outfall number 001. 

Such discharges shall be limited and monitored by the permittee as specified below: 

a. The discharge of heat shall be restricted to that associated with generation of 1016 MW of electric power with the generating 
equipment on-site as of July 1, 1977. 

e· The Permittee's demonstration for the Waukegan Generating Station in accordance with Section 316(a) of the CWA was approved 
by the Illinois Pollution Control Board in Order PCB 78-72, -73 Consolidated dated September 21,1978. No additional monitoring or 
modification is now being required for reissuance of this NPDES Permit. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 7. The Agency is withholding decision at this time as to whether the Waukegan Generating Station cooling water 
intake, location design, construction capacity and mode of operation reflects Best Available Technology for minimizing adverse 
environmental impact pursuant to Section 316(b) of the Clean Water Act and 35 III. Adm. Code 306.201. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 8 There shall be no discharge of complexed metal bearing wastestreams and associated rinses from chemical 
metal cleaning unless this permit has been modified to include the new discharge. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 9. The permittee shall record monitoring results on Discharge Monitoring Report Forms using one such form for 
each discharge each month. The completed Discharge Monitoring Report forms shall be mailed and received by the IEPA no later than 
the 28th day of the following month, unless otherwise specified by the permitting authority. Discharge Monitoring Reports shall be mailed 
to the IEPA at the following address: 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Division of Water Pollution Control 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
Post Office Box 19276 
Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 
Attention: Compliance Assurance Section 

SPECIAL CONDITION 10 The "upset" defense provisions as defined under 40 CFR 122.41 (n) are hereby incorporated by reference. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 11. If an applicable effluent standard or limitation is promulgated under Sections 301 (b)(2)(C) and (0), 304(b)(2), 
and 307(a)(2) of the Clean Water Act and the effluent standard or limitation is more stringent than any effluent limitation in the permit or 
controls a pollutant not limited in the NPDES Permit, the Agency shall revise or modify the permit in accordance with the more stringent 

.andard or prohibition and shall so notify the permittee. 

~PECIAL CONDITION 12. All stormwater runoff from the coal pile must be diverted to the coal pile runoff basin. 
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Special Conditions 

SPECIAL CONDITION 13. The Agency has determined that the effluent limitations in this permit for outfalls 001, C01 and 001 constitute 
BAT/BCT for stormwater-which is treated in-the existing-treatment facilities for purposes of this permit reissuance, and no pollution 
prevention plan will be required for such stormwater. In addition to the chemical specific monitoring required elsewhere in this permit, the 
permittee shall conduct an annual inspection of the facility site to identify areas contributing to a stormwater discharge associated with 
industrial activity, and determine whether any facility modifications have occurred which result in previously-treated stormwater discharges 
no longer receiving treatment. If any such discharges are identified the permittee shall request a modification of this permit within 30 days 
after the inspection. Records of the annual inspection shall be retained by the permittee for the term of this permit and be made available 
to the Agency on request. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 14. The use or operation of this facility shall be by or under the supervision of a Certified Class K operator. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 15. In the event the permittee shall require the use of biocides and/or other water treatment additives not provided 
in the application (including sodium hypochlorite) reviewed for this permit (and approved by this Agency), or in the event the permittee 
requires an increase in the feed rate or quantity of the additives used beyond what has been approved by this Agency, the permittee shall 
request a modification in the permit in accordance with the Standard Conditions, Attachment H. 

SPECIAL CONDITION 16. The permittee has undergone a monitoring reduction review and the effluent sample frequency has been 
reduced for total suspended solids at outfalls B01, C01 and D01, total iron at Outfall C01 and oil & grease at outfall C01 due to sustained 
compliance. The IEPA will require that the effluent sample frequency for total suspended solids at outfalls B01, C01 and D01 and oil & 
grease at outfall C01 be increased to the monitoring frequency of 1lweek, and the effluent sample frequency for total iron at outfall C01 
be increased to the monitoring frequency of 21month, if effluent deterioriation occurs due to increased wasteload, operational, maintenance 
or other problems. The increased monitoring will be required Without Public Notice when a permit modification is received by the permittee 
from the IEPA . 

.!,;..l:~!:l!:.~~!=!.!...~:.u..,,............ All sampling results submitted with the NPDES permit renewal application shall conform to the appropriate 
Detection Limits Pursuant to 40 CFR 136 . 

• 
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ATTACHMENT H 

_110M 

Act ..... ns lhe Illinois env;,e>nmentol ProleClion Act. Ch. 111 IIlIC. Rev. SIOL. Sec. 1001-
1052 .s Amonded. 

Agency _ the IIinoia ~.., I'roIeClion Agency. 

80enI ...... the ...... Polution Control 8oon:L 

CIMn W_ Act Ilonnerty .. _ 10 as IhI Fedora! W ..... Pollution Conl7Ol Act! me .... 
Pub. L 92-500_ as .........-:I. 33 U.s.c. 1251 .. Mq. 

NPDES INaIionaI P-..t Ois<:hwve EIimirwoIion System! ....... IhI ... DonaI program lor 
iuuin;. modifying. rwoIting and ~ ........ 1inII. ..-iIomg and en1an:ing 1*7'VIs. and 
~ and enforcing .,.. ..... _ ~ _ Seetions 307. ~2. 318 .nd 405 
of the C-. W ..... Act. 

USEPA ...... the UniI8d stoia e. .. iioo .... 1111 Protection Agency. 

Dally ~ __ the diac:herVe of • poIutont __ during • _ day or.ny 
24-hour period _ I'UIIOnObIy ...."...., .. IhI __ day for _ of umpling. For 
~ .. with _ • __ In units of ...... the "daly dischorgo" io coIcuIoled .. 

the 10l0i ...... of the poIIutonI cIischorged ...... the day. For poIutonto with Iimitotions 
~ in _ uniU of ........-u..the "dolly cIioc:hwge" io _ted .. the ._ 
~ of the poIutant __ the ...,. 

M .......... Dally D~ Umltatlon Cdaiy muimumI ...... IhI highest a_.bIe daily 
cIiochwge. 

A __ MDfI1tIIy ~ Umltalloft C30 day -.gel __ the highesl • __ 
__ 01 dllily cIiac:hargea __ • _ month. caIcuIatad .. !ho ...... .,1 .a dllily 
~ _ during • _ month _ by the ....- of dllily diacharges 
_ during thaI ..-III. 

Av.-- WMIdy D~ Umltalloft C7 ..., ~ ........ the highesl ._.bIe 
__ of daily dioclwvn ....... ___ calculaled •• 1hI aum of all dllily dit<:harg .. 
_ during • calendar _ dMdad by the.....- of daily cIit<:harges maaauracl during --Beet M __ fOractlceo CBMPaI ...... _ of ectMIiM. ptOhibmon. of 
p<aCtjces. maint .... """ pn>ceduret.. .nd olhor lnllnagernenl __ 10 _, or reduce the 

pollution of w."'" of the SIO ... BMP .... incIudo ..... _nl ~Is. ope.-1inV 
.".,.,..."., and prac:IiceI to conI7OI plant lito ftlnDff. IPiIave or INks. aIudgo or w .... 
cIiIpoNI. or ...-- from NW .......... ..".. 

AlIquot ...... a ~ of apeclfied volume _ to ....... up • _ compoaite umplo. 

Grab s.npIe ....... n individual umpIo of II .... , 100 milliIi'- collected ., • IlIndomly-
oaIactad lima ....... period not • ...-,g 15 rninutoa. 

24 ...... c-tte Sample ......... cornbinolion of ., .... , 8 umpIo oOquo" of .1 ..... 
100 miIIiIitara. _ at poriodic In ...... during the __ ling houra of • fecility _. 24-
-period. 

....... ~h. Semple ..... "". _lion of .1 ..... 3 umple aliqUOIJ of .,"',, 100 
miIiIi ...... _ted .1 periodic inl""." during lhI __ ting -. of • faciily ....... n 8-hour 
period. 

..- "'-tIona1 ~h. Sem!>Ie __ • combinalion of .. mpIo oIiquots of .1 .... I 
100 __ ., periodic in ........ ouch thaI _ the limo in_ be"" .. n •• ch 
.\;quol or the volume of _ .iquoI io __ to _ the ._ flow ., the limo of 
umpling or the total ._ flow ..... the _ of the I"vious .IiquoL 

III Duty 10 -'Y. The penn/tIM ..... , comply with .ft condiIiorw of this penni\. 
IW( panni! ~ --- • vioIalion of IhI Act and io ground. for 
..,f""*'*ll ~ ponniI ........ Iion. revocalion and Nil ......... modiflClltion. 
or for denial of • ponnII --' """",,,lion. The parmittM ahaII comply with 
.ffluenl .tondarda or prohibilionl .... blished uncle< Section 307.., of the C .. en 
Wiler Act for tollie poIutanll within the lime p<1>Vided in IhI regulations th., 
~ __ ,_ Oi' prohibitions, -. if IhI permit has nol yel _ 

modified to IncorportIta tho ~ 

C2l Duty 10 .-.-IV. H the permiI1M _ to _ en ecIiviIy regulated by this 

panni! .1Iar the .",*-Iion dllta 01 this penni\. the panni\tM ..-1 .ppIy for .nd 
oblM! • new penni\. H the ponmt .. aubmits • proper .pplic:alion ••. required by 
the Agency no Ia .... then 180 dIIya prior to the .xp;,..1ion dIIlo. Ihio permit shall 
.....- in fu! lOi'CI and .ffect until the MIl Agency decioion on the application 
hasbMnmade. 

131 N_ to halt or ,educe KtIvIty _ • ""f_. It ahaII nol be • ""f_ fOf • 
parmin .. In .n enfon::emenl eclion thalli would hava bMn necasurv 10 h.1I or 
...tuc. the permittod ICIivIty In _ to _1M! compliance with the cor>ditio"" 
of IhiI permit. 

141 Duty to mltlpt •. The permiIIM ahaII ................... ,tapo to minimi .. or _t eny dit<:harga in violation of this panni! whCh has • rMIONIbie likelihood 

of edvarMIy .ffecting humin hellth or the .... ioo'""_L 

lSI "'"- __ 1iorI _ malnIeM-. The parmin ... hIII ., II limn properly 

opere .. and fNIinIIin all f ...... and eya_ of ..... tment .nd conl7Ol IIInd 
..... ted Ippunenencaal which .... installed or ...... by the ponnitt .. 10 .ch;"" 
compIienc:oo with IhI conditions of this ponniL Proper operalion and meinlO"""'" 
inc:IudH .ffeclive porlormance. adequalO funding. Idequolt operator .toffing .nd 
training. .nd edequalt laboralory .nd _. control.. including appropriat. 
quality ....... """ procedUfft. This provision requirellhl ope.-Iion of beck-up. or 
.uldliery f.cililies. or .imUr 'Y'''''''' 00'" wheD DOCeuary to achieve 
c:ompliaD<e with the CODcliLiODI or the permiL 

181 PMmIt ac1Iona. This permit may be modifoad. revoked and NiIaued. or tarmineled 
lor __ by the Agency __ I to 40 CFR 122.62. Tho filing of • _I by lhe 
ponniItoe lor • panni! modification. rwoc:.olion and _ ..... or termination. or • 
notificalion of planned changes or enlicipeted ~ does nol ... y .ny 
permit condition. 

m ~ ' .. to. This permit does nol C<>nYay .ny propo<ty righll of .ny IDrL 0< 

.ny .JtCiusivto prMiage. 

lSI Duty to provide IftlormatioR. The permitt .. ,haa fumioh 10 the I'gency within • 
- ....... ny Informlllion whCh the Agency may _, 10 ""'..-mine 
- CIIUM .xists I .... modifvinll. NYOking and Nissuing. or lerminating this 
penni\. or 10 ""_ ~""" with the permit. The pennin .. shaH .Iso 
fumiah 10 the Agency. upon _~ copies of record. required 10 be kept by this 
penniL 

19) '-tIooo _ en1ry. The parmiItee .hIII .now an .uthorized re_lOlive of 
the Agency. upon the _tolion of ...-n_ and other _II .. may be 
required by _. 10: 

Ie) 

en.... upon the pennIIteo-, ptemisu whertl • regulaled fecility or .CIMty is 
located or conducted. or whe .. records musl be kept under the conditions 
of IhiI permit; 

Have ..,.,... to .nd COPY. at .... aonable timaa. .ny __ lhal must be 
kapt under the conditiona of IhiI permit; 

Inspect at ___ eny facililies. equiomenl Iinc:Iuding moniloring 

- control equipmentJ. practices. or operetions regulaled Of required _ IhiI permit; end 

Cd! Semple or monitor II _bIe timea. lor the purpo .. of '"uring permit 
compIia ..... or .. olhen¥iae .ulhorized by the Ac~ any aulnl.""", 0< 

perameteR ., .ny Iocabon. 

1101 MOftItoring and -.Ia. 

w 

CbI 

Samplea .nd ..... _11 taken lor the pufI)OM 01 monitoring .han be 
_tolive of the rnonitor.cI activity. 

The permitt ... hal .. 1M! record. 01 all moniloring information. including 
.. _lion and meinlanance _.. and aU original ,trip chart 
rocordings for contlnuoua monitoring inatrvmen .. tion. coplo. 01 .n reports 
Nquftd by IhiI permit. .nd records of .n d.1O used 10 completa lho 
"""",,,lion for IhiI permit. for. period of II .... ,3 yell," from the d.1O of 
this permi~ maa~ report or .pplic:ation. This penod may be 
._ by requasl of the Agency II eny lima. 

Ie) Recordo of monitoring informlllion .hIII incJudo: 

C2I The individuelCs) who perfl>tl'ned the umpling or me ........... n .. ; 

131 The dII .. W .... ..,... w ... perfl>tl'ned; 

14) The indMdualC.) who perfl>tl'ned tha .... Iy ... ; 

15) The .... lytical techniques or method, used; Ind 

161 The results of auch '""Iye ... 
Cd! Monitoring mual be condUCled .ccording 10 .. sl pn>cedure. .ppm_ad 

_ 40 CFR P.rt 136. unlall other '"' procadure, h ... been .pacified 
in IhiI permit. W'-1o no _I pn>ceduno under 40 CFR P.rt 136 ha._ 
approved. the permin .. muol .ubmh to the Ag.ncy • t •• , method for 
Ipptovii. The permittet ,hall calibrate and perform main'.nlnci 
procedures on al monitoring .nd .... tyIjcaJ ins"""""tolion II int ..... I. 10 
enaure ~cy of mu • .....,.nta. 

111) Slv""ory raqul' ....... t. All applications. reports or inlormation .ubminad 10 lho 
Agency .haU be .ignad and c:er1ified. 

W Applicallon. All penni! applications ,haa be .ignad .. folows: 

C1) For • ~tlon: by • principal a."",Iiv. offic ... of ..... st lhe 
...,. of Yic8 prn.ident or • person or position hiving OVlr,. 
.... ponaibiIity for environmenwl ~tt.,.. tor the corporation: 

C2I For • ~p or tole propr!atorahlp: by • g.ner.1 1*1_ or 
the """,",,or. respectively; or 

13) For a municipality. SUI •• F ...... ,. or other public .V.ncy: by 
either • principel •• _ officer or IlIn1r.ing .... ,ed officiel. 

R.P«1&. All reports requir"ed by permill. or Olher information requested by 
the Agency ,hal be .ignad by • person cMlCribed in """gr.ph III) or by • 
duly .uthorized _tolive of thaI parson. A penon is • duly .uthorized 
_tolive only If: 

II) The .ulhorizetion is made in writing by • peroon deocribed in 
pareglllph ..,; .nd 

121 The .uIhoriz.1ion apecilies eilher en indMclual or • pe.ition 
reaponsiblt lor the ov .... 11 oper.tion of the I.cility. from which lhe 
diacharga origina ..... uch ••• planl mln.gar •• uperinlandenl or 
penon of equiv.lenl responaibility; .nd 

131 The written ...-alion is .ubmined 10 tho Agency. 
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Icl Change. of Authorizltion. If an authonzat.on undef (b) II no longer 
accurate because a different Indiy.cjual or posItion has responsibility for the 
overall aperatKJn of the facility. a new authonzahon S8tJsfytn9 the 
reqUirements of (bl must be submitted to the Agency poor to or together 
with any reports. Information. or apphcabons to be s.gned by an authorized 
representative. 

1121 R8j)Ortil19 requir ..... nu. 

1131 

lal 

Ibl 

lei 

Idl 

lei 

If! 

Igi 

Planned change •. The permittee shall give notice to the Agency as soon 
as possIble of any planned physical alterations or additions to the 
permitted faCility. 

Anticipated noncompliance. The fJ'drmlttee shall give advance notice to 
the Agency of any planned chang&s In the permitted facility t)r activity 
whIch may result In noncompliance with permit requirements. 

Compliance acheduJ ••. Reports of compliance or noncompliance with. or 
any progress reports on, Intertm and final reqU1rements contained In any 
compliance schedule of this permit shall be subn'lItted no later than 14 
days following each schedule date. 

Monitoring report •. Monitoring results shall be reported at the Intervals 
sPfK;lfied elsewhere In this penmt. 

111 

121 

Monitoring results must be reported on a Discharge MonitOring 
Report IDMRI 

If the permittee monitors any pollutant more frequently than 
reqUired by the permit, USing test procedures approved under 40 
CFR 136 or as specified in the permit, the results of this monitOring 
shall be included in the calculation and reporting of the data 
subm.tted in the DMR. 

(3) Calculations for all limitations which require averagmg of 
measurements shall utilize an anthmetic mean unless otherwise 
specified by the Agency In the permit. 

Twenty~four hour reporting. The permittee shall report any 
noncompliance which may endanger health Or the environment. Any 
informatJOn shall be provKied oratty within 24 hours from the time the 
perrmttee becomes aware of the circumstances. A written submiSSion shall 
also be provided within 5 days of the time the permittee becomes aware of 
the circumstances. The wntten submlsston shall contain a descnptlon of 
the noncompliance and Its cause; the penod of noncompliance, Including 
exact dates and times; and if the noncompliance has not been corrected, 
the anticipated time It IS expected to continue; and steps taken or planned 
to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the noncompliance. The 
follOWing shall be included as Information which must be reported within 
24 hours: 

(1) Any unantiCipated bypass which exceeds any effluent limitation 10 

the permit; 

(2) ViolatIOn of a maximum dally discharge limitation for any of the 
pollutants listed by the Agency In the perrrllt to be reported WlthlO 
24 hou",; 

The Agency may waive the wntten report on a case-by-case baSIS If the 
oral report has been received Within 24 hours. 

Other noncompliance. The permittee shall report all lOstances of 
noncompliance not reported under paragraphs (12)(C), (d). or tel. at the 
time mOnitoring reports are submlrted. The reports shall contain the 
information listed In paragraph (12)(e). 

Other information. Where the permittee becomes aware that It failed to 
submit any relevant facts In a permit applfcatlon. or submitted Incorrect 
Information In a permit apphcatlon. or 10 any report to the Agency. It shall 
promptly submit such facts or Information. 

Transfer of permitl. A permit may be automatically transferred to a new 
permittee If: 

la} The current permittee notifies the Agency at least 30 days In advance of 
the proposed transfer date; 

Ibl 

lei 

The noltee Includes a written agreement between the eXisting and new 
permittees containing a speCific date for transfer of permit responsibility, 
coverage and liability between the current and new permittees; and 

The Agency does not notify the eXisting permittee and the proposed new 
permittee of Its intent to modify or revoke and reissue the permIt If thiS 
nohce IS not received. the transfer IS effective on the date speCified In the 
agreement. 

(14) All manufacturing, commercial. mining. and SllVlcultural dischargers must nottfy 
the Agency as soon as they know or have reason to believe: 

lal That any activity has occurred or Will occur which would result In the 
discharge ot any tOXIC pollutant identlfted under Section 307 of the Clean 
Water Act which IS not limited in the permit if that discharge Will exceed 
the highest of the follOWing notiftcabon ",vels; 

111 Dne hundred mICrograms per lit., 1100 09/11; 

Ibl 

(2) Two hundred mICrograms per titer (200 ug/U for acrolein and 
ac:;:rylonltnle; fNe hundred micrograms per hter (500 ug/ll for 2.4-
dimtrophenoland for 2 p methyl·4.6·dinitrophenol; and one milligram 
per Iner 11 mg/ll for antimony; 

(3) Five (51 times the maximum concentration value reported for that 
pollutant .n the NPDES pem"t applicatIOn, Or 

141 The level established bv the Agencv .n this perm.t. 

That they have begun or expect to begin to use or manufacture as an 
intermediate or final product Of byproduct any tOXIC pollutant whICh was 
not reported In the NPDES permit application. 

1151 All Publicly Owned Treatment Wo",. IPOTWsl must prOvide adequate notice to 
the Agencv of the following: 

1161 

117) 

118) 

1191 

1201 

1211 

lal 

Ibl 

Any new introduction of pollutants IOta that POTW from an mdirect 
discharger whioch would be subject to Sections 301 or 306 of the Clean 
Water Act if it were directly discharging those pollutants; and 

Any substantial change In the volume Or character of pollutants being 
introduced into that POTW by a source introdUCing pollutants Into the 
POTW at the time of issuance of the permit. 

{c} For purposes of this paragraph, adequate notice shall include information 
on (il the quality and quantity of affluent Introduced into the POTW. and (ii) 

any anticipated Impact of the change on the quantity or quality of effluent 
to be discharged from the POTW. 

If the pennit is issued to a publtcly owned or publicly regulated treatment works. 
the permittee shall require any industnsl user of such treatment works to comply 
with federal requirements concerning: 

11) User charges pursuant to Section 204(b) of the Clean Water Act. and 
applicable regulations appeanng In 40 CFR 35; 

(2) Toxic pollutant eHfuent standards and pretreatment standards pursuant to 
S",,\ion 307 of the Clean Water Act; and 

(3) Inspection, monitoring and entry pursuant to Section 308 of the Clean 
Water Act 

If an applicable standard or limitation is promulgated under Section 3011b1l211C) 
and IDI, 304IbIl2), or 307101121 and that effluent standard or limitation .s more 
stringent than any effluent limitation In Ihe permit. or controls a pollutant not 
limited In the permit. the permit shaU be promptly modified or revoked, and 
reiSSued to conform to that effluent standard or limitation. 

Any authoriz8tton to construct ISSued to the permittee pursuant to 35 III. Adm. 
Code 309.154 is hereby incorporated by reference as a condition of this permit. 

The permittee shall not make any false statement. representation or certification In 
any appttcatton, record. report, plan or other document submitted to the Agency or 
the US EPA, or required to be maintained under this permit. 

The Clean Water Act provtdes that any person who Violates a permit condition 
.mplementing Sections 301,302,306.307, 308,318, or 405 of the Clean Water 
Act is subject to a Civil penalty not to exceed $10.000 per day of such Violation. 
Any person who Willfully or negligently Violates permit conditions Implementmg 
Sections 301,302.306,307, or 308 of the Clean Water Act.s subJect to a fine 
of not less than $2,500, nor more than $25,000 per day of Violation, or by 
impnsonment tor not more than one year. or both. 

The Clean Water Act provides that any person who falSifies. tampers With. or 
knowingly renders Inaccurate any mOnitoring deVice or method reqUired to be 
matntalrled under permit shall, upon conVictIOn, be punished by a fine of not more 
than $10.000 per VIOlation, or by Impnsonment for not more than 6 months per 
vlolatton. Of by both. 

(22) The Clean Water Act prOVideS that any person who knowtngly makes any false 
statement.. representatIOn. or certificatIOn In any record or other document 
submitted or required to be maintained under thiS permit shall, Including 
mOnitoring reports or reports of compliance or non~compliance shall. upon 
convection, be pumshed by a fine of not more than $10.000 per Violation. or by 
Impnsonment for not more than 6 months pet' vlolatKln. Or by both. 

(23) Collected screemng, slumes. sludges. and other sohds shall be disposed of In such 
a manner as to prevent entry of those wastes lor runoff from the wastes) IOto 
waters of the State. The proper authonzatlon for such disposal shall be obtained 
from the Agency and IS Incorporated as part hereof by reference. 

(24) In case of conflict between these standard conditions and any other conditlonts) 
Included in this permit. the other condition(s) shall govern. 

(25) The permittee shall comply With. 10 addition to the requirements of the permit. all 
applicable prOVISIOns of 35 III. Adm. Code. Subtitle C, Subtitle 0, Subtitle E. and all 
apphcabk! orders of the Board. 

(26) The provisions of this permit are severable. and If any prOVISion of thiS permit. or 
the appHcation of any provtSlOn of thiS permit IS held Invalid. the rematnlO{l 
provisJOns of this permit shaH continue In full force and effect. 

IRev. 12-1-861 
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Illinois 
Department of 
Natural Resources http://dnr.state.iI.us 

• 524 South Second Street· Springfield, Illinois 62701-1787 

June 14,2000 
George H. Ryan, Governor • Brent Manning, Director 

Illinois EPA - NPDES 
Water Pollution Control, Pennit Section # 15 
1021 North Grand Avenue East 
Post Office Box 19276 
Springfield, IL 62794-9276 

RE: NPDES Permit No. IL0002259, Notice No. FLR:99092201.dlk 
Discharger: Midwest Generation, LLC 
:Facility Location: Waukegan Generating Station 
Receiving Waters: Lake Michigan 
Lake County: T45N R12E Section 22 IDNR #0003362 

Attn: Fred Rosenblum, NPDES Engineer: 

The draft NPDES permit above was submitted for review in accordance with the Illinois Endangered 
Species Protection Act [520 ILCS 10111], the Illinois Natural Areas Preservation Act [525 ILCS 
30117], Title 17 Illinois Administrative Code Part 1075. According to the Natural Heritage Database 
and the infonnation provided, the discharge for the above facility will discharge into Lake Michigan. 
The coastal areas surrounding this discharge are all identified as the Waukegan Beach Illinois 
Natural Areas Inventory (INAI) site. This area supports known records for the state endangered 
Black crowned night heron (Nycticorax nycticorax), Common tern (Sterna hirundo), Marram grass 
(Ammophila breviligulata), and Seaside spurge (Chamaesyce polygonifolia), which are all dependant 
on the waters of Lake Michigan. 

The NPDES permit is for an existing discharge with modifications to outfall names only. IEPA 
should use its authorities to ensure the pennit standards will continue to protect the water quality 
from further degradation and avoid adverse impacts to these sensitive resources. Please provide a 
copy of the complete permit with special conditions to maintain in the project file. This consultation 
is terminated. 

If you need additional infonnation or have questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 
217-785-8290. 

Sincerely, 
I .. , 

'-'!ff;:'~v ·~l />:'.:j«'ti;(:~~·~'· I ~ 7 I / .... ~:. v .. · 1) L: 
M~ry JdWoodruff 
OREP - Division of Natural Resource Review & Coordination 

• cc: Midwest Generation, LL~/ 

PrInted on recycled and recyclable stoel< 
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MWG Response to Illinois EPA Violation Notice for the 

Powerton Generating Station, July 27, 2012 
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NiJMAN • FRANZEIT']' LLP 

ennifer T. Nijrnan 
l@nijmanfranzettLcom 

VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL 

Illinois EP A 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
Attn: Andrea Rhodes, CAS # 19 
P.O. Box 19276 
Springfield,IL 62794-9276 

July 27,2012 

10 South LaSalle Street· Suite 3600 . Chicago. Illinois 60603 
312.251.5250 . fax 312.251.4610 . www.nijmanfranzettLcom 

Susan M. Franzetli 
sf@nijmanfranzetti.com 

Re: Violation Notice: Midwest Generation, LLC, Powerton Generating Station 
Identification No.: 6282 
Violation Notice No.: W-2012-00057 

Dear Ms. Rhodes: 

In response to the above-referenced June 11,2012 Violation Notice ("VN"), received on June 14, 
2012, this written response is timely submitted on behalf of the Midwest Generation, LLC ("MWG"), 
Powerton Generating Station ("Powerton"). MWG also requests a meeting with the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EPA" or the "Agency") to discuss the VN and 
information provided in this response. 

MWG regrets that the Illinois EPA decided to issue the VN because MWG has tried to 
work cooperatively with the Agency concerning the hydrogeologic assessment of the coal ash 
ponds at Powerton even though it had significant concerns and objections to how the VN has 
proceeded in this matter. I Nevertheless, MWG complied with the Agency's request that it 
conduct a hydrogeologic assessment of the area around the coal ash ponds and followed its 
requirements and comments for how the hydrogeologic assessment should be conducted, even 
though it was under no legal obligation to do SO.2 At no time however did MWG agree that the 
scope and nature of the hydrological assessment the Agency required it to perform would 
provide any basis for concluding that the ash ponds were impacting groundwater. The alleged 

I See, e.g., MWG (B. Constantelos) letter to Illinois EPA (A. Keller) dated July 15,2009. MWG is also working 
cooperatively with the USEPA with regards to the Coal Combustion Residuals Proposed Rules, EPA-HQ-RCRA-
2009-0640, and is trying to coordinate the responses and requirements of both Agencies. USEPA fIrst issued the 
proposed rules on June 21, 2010, and requested additional comments and information on Oct. 12,2011. The 
additional information comment period closed on November 14,201 I, and MWG is now waiting for the USEPA to 
issue the fInal rule. 
2 MWG continues to reserve its objection that the Illinois EPA did not have the legal authority to require the 
hydrological assessments of the ash ponds under Sections 4 or 12 of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act (the 
"Act") or the Groundwater Quality Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code Part 620. 

Printed on 100% post-cons.ulller waste. 
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violations in the VN are based solely on the results ofthe hydrogeologic assessment MWG 
performed at the Agency's request. The results of the hydrogeologic assessment do not show 
that the coal ash ponds at the Powerton Station are impacting the groundwater and do not provide 
the necessary evidence to support the alleged violations contained in the VN. 

Well prior to the issuance of this VN, MWG met with the Agency to discuss the 
groundwater monitoring results and to discuss cooperatively how to proceed based on those 
results, including what additional actions, if any, the Agency believed were necessary. The 
Agency told MWG that it had not yet decided how to proceed. The next development was the 
issuance of the VN. The VN itself provides no information concerning the basis for the 
Agency's apparent conclusion that the ash impoundments are the cause of the alleged 
groundwater impacts, other than the conclusory statement that "[0 ]perations at ash 
impoundments [sic] have resulted in violations of the Groundwater Quality Standards." The VN 
also provides no information concerning the nature or type of corrective action which the 
Agency may deem acceptable to address the alleged violations. The Agency is not pursuing this 
matter in a way that allows MWG to prepare an effective response or a Compliance Commitment 
Agreement. 

This letter provides a detailed response to each of the alleged violations in Attachment A 
ofthe VN to the extent possible given the lack of information provided in the VN. It also 
advances MWG's general objection to the legal sufficiency of the notice of the alleged violations 
contained in the VN. MWG maintains that the Illinois EPA cannot prove the alleged violations 
in the VN, and does not, by submitting this response, make any admissions of fact or law, or 
waive any of its defenses to those alleged violations. 

I. General Objection to the Legal Sufficiency of the Violation Notice 

The VN does not comply with the requirements of Section 31 of the Act. Section 
31(a)(1)(B) of the Act requires the Illinois EPA to provide a detailed explanation ofthe 
violations alleged. 415 ILCS 5/31 (a)(1 )(B). Under the Act, MWG is entitled to notice of the 
specific violation charged against it and notice of the specific conduct constituting the violation.3 

The VN fails to provide adequate notice to MWG of either the alleged violations or the activities 
which the Agency believes are necessary to address them. The VN states that "[0 ]perations at 
ash impoundments have resulted in violations of the Groundwater Quality Standards .... " 
(Violation Notice, Attachment A, page 1, pt paragraph) No further description of the alleged 
"ash impoundments" is provided in the VN. Multiple ash impoundments exist at the Powerton 
Station. It is impossible to identify from the contents of the VN what operations or activities at 
the Powerton Station the Agency is claiming are the cause of the alleged violations, including 
whether it is the Agency's position that each of the Station's ash ponds, or only certain ones, 

3 Citizens Utilities Co., v. JPCB, 9 IIl.App.3d 158, 164, 289 N.E.2d 642, 648 (2nd Dist., ·1972) (a person is entitled to 
notice of the specific violation charged against it and notice of the specific conduct constituting the violation). See 
also, City of Pekin v. Environmental Protection Agency, 47 IlI.App.3d 187, 192, 361 N.E.2d 889, 893 (3rd Dist., 
1977. 
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have caused the alleged violations. Absent an accurate or complete description of the activities 
or operations that the Agency is alleging caused the violations, it is also not possible to identify 
what action might be necessary to resolve them. Attachment A to the VN states: "Included with 
each type of violation is an explanation of the activities that the Illinois EPA believes may 
resolve the violation." However, no such explanation is provided in the VN. In sum, the VN 
fails to comply with the legal requirement that it include a detailed explanation of the violations 
alleged, does not inform MWG of the specific conduct constituting the alleged violations and 
provides no notice of what is necessary to resolve the alleged violations. The Section 31 process 
is based on fundamental principles of due process. MWG should not have to speculate about 
what activities it allegedly engaged in that caused the violations and how to address them to 
resolve the alleged violations. In the absence of this material, statutorily-required information, 
the Agency also has effectively denied MWG's statutory right to formulate an acceptable 
Compliance Commitment Agreement to submit for the Agency's approval. 

The VN is also deficient regarding its explanation of what laws MWG has allegedly 
violated. The VN solely alleges that MWG violated "Section 12" ofthe Act. 415 ILCS 5/12. It 
does not provide any further specification as to which of the provisions of Section 12 MWG has 
allegedly violated. 

Section 12 of the Act has nine subsections, consecutively numbered (a) through (i). Each 
of these subsections describes a different and distinct water pollution prohibition. 415 ILCS 
5112(a)-(i). However, the VN issued to MWG does not identify which of the nine subsections 
the Agency is alleging MWG violated. Based on the contents of Section 12 of the Act, the 
Agency is taking the position that MWG violated each and everyone of the provisions of Section 
12. Based on the relevant facts, it is highly unlikely that this is the intent of the VN. Therefore, 
the VN's general reference to Section 12 of the Act, without any other explanation, is not a 
"detailed explanation of the violations." This is yet another example of how the VN fails to 
provide MWG with adequate notice as a matter of law and thereby violates MWG's due process 
rights.4 

By failing to provide a detailed explanation of the violations and any explanation of the 
activities that the Illinois EPA believes may resolve the violations, the Illinois EPA has 
effectively denied MWG the opportunity to properly and thoroughly respond to the alleged 
violations and to make an acceptable offer to resolve them. The VN's deficiencies conflict with 
the intent and purpose of Section 31 of the Act, which is to avoid unnecessary litigation. 
Therefore, MWG respectfully requests that the Agency rescind the VN and suspend any further 
enforcement action unless and until it has talcen the necessary actions to correct and cure the 
legal deficiencies in the notice of the alleged violations by following the statutory requirements 
under Section 31 (a)(1)(B) of the Act. 415 ILCS 5/31(a)(1)(B) 

4 See, e.g., Grigoleil Co. v. Illinois EPA, PCB 89-184, slip op at p. 11 (November 29, 1990) (Failure to notify permit 
applicant of alleged violations and provide an opportunity to provide information in response was a violation of 
applicant's due process rights). 
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II. Response to Alleged Violations in the VN 

Subject to and without waiving its objections to the legal sufficiency of the VN, MWG 
nevertheless has attempted to discern the legal basis for the alleged violations and to prepare this 
response in defense to those allegations based on various assumptions. MWG reserves the right 
to supplement this response, including by submitting a separate response should the Agency 
provide the legally required notice under Section 31 of the Act. 

The VN alleges "[oJperations at ash impoundments" at MWG's Powerton Station have 
resulted in violations of celtain ofthe Groundwater Quality Standards at the respective 
monitoring wells identified in the VN. (Violation Notice at Attachment A) MWG believes the 
Agency's use of the term "ash impoundments" is intended to refer to the structures which the 
Powerton Station commonly refers to as "ash ponds;" that is how they will be referred to here. 
The Agency further alleges that the alleged violations of the groundwater quality standards in 35 
Ill. Admin. Code Part 620 also constitute violations of Section 12 of the Act and the underlying 
groundwater regulations in 35 Ill. Admin. Code Part 620. It is undisputable that the Agency has 
the burden to prove these alleged violations both in proceedings before the Illinois Pollution 
Control Board ("Board") and in the courts. 5 However, the groundwater monitoring data on 
which the Agency primarily, ifnot solely, relies to assert these violations is not sufficient, legally 
or technically, to prove that any "ash impoundments" is the source ofthe alleged groundwater 
impacts. Further, based on the existing condition of the ash ponds, it is not likely that they are a 
source of the alleged impacts. 

To support its defense to the alleged violations, MWG has set forth below a description 
of: (1) the condition and use of the ash ponds at Powerton; (2) the hydrogeologic assessment 
performed at the Powerton Station; (3) the site hydrology; and (4) why the analytical data from 
the monitoring wells does not establish that the ash ponds are the source of the alleged 
exceedances of the groundwater standards. 6 In addition, for certain of the alleged exceedances, 
additional infOlmation not considered by the Agency shows that it is either more likely, or at 
least as likely, that the source of the alleged exceedance is something other than the ash ponds. 
In either case, the Agency cannot sustain its burden to prove the alleged violations. 

5 Section 31(e) of the Act provides in relevant part: "In hearings before the Board under this Title, the burden shall 
be on the Agency ... to show either that the respondent has caused or threatened to cause ... water pollution or that the 
respondent has violated or threatens to violate any provision ofthis Act or any rule or regulation of the Board or 
pennit or tenn or condition thereof." 415 ILCS 5/31(e); Citizens Utilities v.lPCB, 9 Ill. App. 3d 158, 164,289 
N.E.2d 642, 646 (1972) (the Agency has the burden of proof in enforcement actions). 
6 In preparing this response, MWG closely reviewed the groundwater monitoring reports previously submitted to 
the Agency for the monitoring wells which are identified in the VN. In the course of this review, some data 
transcription errors were found in the previously submitted data tables included in the groundwater monitoring 
reports. Copies of the corrected data tables are enclosed. The tables are annotated to identify the nature of the 
corrections made to the previously submitted repOlts. The most significant changes are: (i) consistent with previous 
data for MW-l, there was no boron exceedance at monitoring well MW-l in the first qUaIter 2012 sampling event; 
(ii) there was no exceedance of selenium at wells MW-7 (401 quarter 2011), MW-9 (1st quarter 2011) and MW-13 
(August 2011); and (iii) there was no exceedance of mercury at well MW-12 (4th quarter 2010). 
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A. The Condition of the Ash Ponds 

For several reasons, the construction and operation ofthe Powerton ash ponds makes it 
unlikely that they are the cause of the alleged violations. The construction and operation of the 
ponds minimizes the potential for leakage from the ash ponds to groundwater. 

First, the Powerton ash ponds are not disposal· sites. The ash that enters the ponds is 
routinely removed. This operating condition limits the amount of ash accumulated over time 
which serves to minimize the potential for the release of ash constituents to the groundwater. 

Second, unlike many other ash ponds in Illinois, two of the ash ponds at Powerton, the 
Ash Surge Pond and the Ash Bypass Basin are lined to prevent releases to groundwater. The 
third pond, the Secondary Ash Settling Basin, is not presently lined. However, as described 
below, there are no groundwater exceedances of coal ash constituents downgradient of the 
Secondary Ash Settling Basin, thus supporting the conclusion that it is not a source. When the 
final federal Coal Combustion Residual Rules are issued, MWG will rely on those rules to make 
a decision regarding any further modifications to, or the continued use of, the Secondary Ash 
Settling Basin. 

The Ash Surge Pond at Powerton is constructed of Poz-o-Pac material which meets 
accepted standards for preventing the migration of constituents to the environment. 7 The 
permeability of the Poz-o-Pac liner is 10-7 cm/sec. Notably, this is the same degree of 
permeability that is required in the Board Regulations for constructing a new solid waste landfill 
where, unlike the ash ponds, waste materials are to be disposed of on a permanent basis. See 35 
lAC 811.306( d). Pursuant to a construction permit issued by the Agency, the second ash pond, 
called the Ash Bypass Basin, was relined in 2010 with a high-density polypropylene (HDPE) 
liner. 8 The HDPE liner provides an even greater degree of protection against leakage with a 
permeability of approximately 10-13 cm/sec. The liners in the two ash ponds achieve and exceed 
the level of permeability which the Illinois regulations expressly recognize is sufficient to 
prevent the release of constituents to the environment. Hence, the facts regarding the liners in 
place for these two ash ponds also support thy conclusion that the ash ponds are not the source of 
the exceedances of groundwater standards alleged in the VN. 

The VN contains no facts concerning the condition of the liners in the Powerton ash 
ponds that would indicate that they are allowing ash constituents to escape from the ponds. For 
example, the Agency does not contend that there are any breaches in the integrity of the ash pond 
liners that are allowing ash constituents to be released to the groundwater. The Agency similarly 
does not claim that the materials used for the existing liners are inadequate to prevent the 
migration of constituents, and it would be hard pressed to do so given that the materials either 
meet or exceed the analogous requirements for Illinois landfills. In the absence of such 

7 Poz-o-Pac is an aggregate liner similar to concrete. 
S See Illinois EPA Water Pollution Control Permit No. 201O-EP-0664 for the Bypass Basin Expansion and Liner 
Upgrade 
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evidence, it is certainly far more likely than not that the existing ash ponds at the Powerton 
Station are not the source of the groundwater impacts alleged in the VN. 

B. Hydrogeologic Assessment and Site Hydrology 

The VN appears to be based on the flawed premise that the hydrogeologic assessment 
which the Agency directed MWG to perform in the vicinity of the ash ponds would be sufficient 
to identify the ash ponds as the source of any elevated levels of constituents in the groundwater. 
This is simply not the case. The results ofthe hydrogeologic assessment at best give rise to more 
questions about the source of the alleged groundwater impacts, and do not prove that the existing 
ash ponds are the source of those impacts. 

The results of the hydrogeologic assessment show that there is some complexity to the 
site hydrology at Powerton. The complexity of the groundwater flow system arises from the 
existence of two distinct, though connected, groundwater units underlying the Powerton Station. 
The first unit is a localized, saturated silt and clay layer and the lower unit is a more extensive 
sand layer. When the groundwater elevations from all fifteen of the existing monitoring wells 
are plotted and analyzed for a single monitoring event (i.e., the silt/clay unit wells and the sand 
unit wells), the groundwater flow system appears very complex. It shows a general groundwater 
flow direction of south to north, but with very unusual, localized groundwater highs, malcing a 
reasonable interpretation of groundwater flow difficult and suggests the presence of some 
localized, divergent flow. However, when the five monitoring wells that are screened in the 
silt/clay unit and the ten wells that are screened in the sand unit are plotted separately, it becomes 
evident that there are two distinct, though cOlmected, groundwater units beneath this portion of 
the Site. In both units, the groundwater flows from the south/southeast to the north/northwest, 
toward the adjoining outlet channel west of the ponds. The elevation of the groundwater surface 
is approximately 10 feet higher in the silt/clay unit than in the sand unit. Because both units flow 
in the same direction and are in direct physical contact with each other, it is likely that they share 
some degree of hydraulic cOlmection. Given this groundwater flow system, the data provides no 
indication of divergent or radial flow associated with the ash ponds. 

The VN's allegations fail to malce any distinctions among the fifteen monitoring wells 
that have been installed at the Powerton Station. There is no apparent attempt to evaluate the 
quarterly groundwater monitoring results, whether on a parameter-by-parameter basis or relative 
to each of the ash ponds themselves. When these evaluations are performed, the results show 
that the monitoring data does not support the VN's allegations that the operations of the ash 
impoundments have caused these groundwater impacts. The results of the evaluations are set 
forth below, beginning with the parameter-by-parameter evaluation. 

Boron and sulfate are constituents known to be associated with coal ash. However, the 
monitoring data does not support a finding that the alleged boron and sulfate exceedances are 
due to the operations of the ash ponds. There are no exceedances of boron concentrations in any 
of the wells within the clay unit (i.e., MW-6, MW-8, MW-12, MW-14 and MW-1S) and boron is 
generally considered a reliable tracer of potential ash leachate impacts. FUliher, in the course of 
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this review, a transcription enor was discovered in the previously reported first quarter 2012 
groundwater sampling results for monitoring well MW-l. There was no exceedance of boron at 
monitoring well MW-1 in the first quarter 2012 sampling event, which is consistent with 
previous monitoring results for this well. Corrected data tables for the Powerton groundwater 
monitoring wells quarterly monitoring results are included with this response. 

In addition, of all of the clay unit wells, only MW -14 had reproducible exceedances of 
sulfate. MW -15 had only one exceedance of sulfate, which did not occur again in any of the 
subsequent quarterly monitoring results. The remaining groundwater monitoring wells sampling 
results have reported no sulfate exceedances. Ofthe monitoring wells located in the underlying 
sand unit, only wells MW-9 and MW-13 had reproducible exceedances for either boron or 
sulfate. 

As further discussed below, monitoring well MW-9 is the furthest upgradient well within 
the overall monitoring network. It has the highest detections of boron relative to all the other 
wells, with the exception of well MW-13. However, monitoring well MW-13 was not installed 
as part of the hydrogeologic assessment of the ash ponds. It was installed as an up gradient 
monitoring point pursuant to the construction permit requirements for the Metals Cleaning Basin, 
which as its name implies, does not receive or store any coal ash. The Metals Cleaning Basin is 
not associated in any way with the ash storage pond system. Thus, boron present in MW -13 is 
not evidence of any impact caused by the operation of the ash ponds. 

Turning to the alleged pH exceedances, all nine pH exceedances noted in the VN were 
from a single sampling event - the December 2011 sampling event. They were not detected in 
the previous quarterly sampling events and have not been repeated since the December 2011 
sampling event. Moreover, for MW-2, the alleged pH exceedance reported from this December 
2011 sampling event is the only exceedance detected for any parameter over all of the six 
consecutive quarters of sampling. Given that pH is a field parameter, and no other pH 
exceedances were detected in any of the wells in any of the other quarterly sampling events, it is 
far more likely that the December 2011 pH measurements were associated with a malfunctioning 
field meter. Therefore, the December 2011 pH monitoring results are not indicative of alleged 
impacts from the ash ponds or that the groundwater in the vicinity of the subject monitoring 
wells is actually exceeding the pH standard. 

A review of the chloride groundwater monitoring results also shows that they are not 
associated with the operations of the ash impoundments, as alleged in the VN. There were 
alleged chloride exceedances at monitoring well locations MW-8, MW-12, MW-14 and MW-15. 
Except for well MW-8, each of these was a single non-reproducible exceedance at each location. 
At monitoring well MW -8, the chloride exceedances are from only the last two rounds of the six 
consecutive quarters of groundwater sampling. Chloride is not an indicator of potential coal ash 
impacts. There are various other potential non-ash related sources of this compound. None of 
the wells where these alleged chloride exceedances were found had any exceedances of the 
boron standard. 
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The only exceedance detected for thallium in all six, consecutive sampling events is an 
isolated exceedance recorded for a single monitoring well, MW-14. Monitoring well MW-14 
was not installed as part of the hydrogeologic assessment of the ash ponds. It instead was 
installed as a downgradient monitoring well for the Metals Cleaning Basin, which is not 
associated with the ash storage pond system. Thallium is not a constituent typically associated 
with ash storage facilities. It was not detected in any of the other fourteen monitoring wells at 
the Powerton Station in any of six consecutive quarters of groundwater monitoring. Hence, the 
isolated and unique detection of thallium is not evidence of a release from the ash ponds. 

The alleged selenium and mercury exceedances alleged in the VN are almost exclusively 
the result of transcription errors which occurred in the previous reporting of these results to the 
Agency. There was no exceedance of selenium detected at monitoring wells MW -7 (4th Quarter 
2011), MW -9 (151 Quarter 2011) and MW -13 (3 rd Quarter 2011). The original laboratory data 
package shows selenium concentrations at ten times lower than what was repOlied in the 
monitoring results submitted to the Agency. In the quarterly reports submitted to the Agency, 
the decimal point was erroneously placed in the reported monitoring values, resulting in the 
reporting of values ten times higher than the actual laboratory results. The single selenium 
exceedance in monitoring well MW-14 is an isolated event, which occurred over a year ago. No 
subsequent selenium exceedances have been reported in the quarterly sampling events to date. 
Like thallium, the isolated detection of selenium is not evidence of a release from an ash pond. 
There also was no exceedance of mercury at well MW-12 (4th Quarter 2010). The previously 
reported elevated mercury level was also due to a transcription error. The corrected selenium 
and mercury groundwater monitoring results are included in the enclosed, corrected Tables. 

In summary, a parameter-by-parameter evaluation shows that the monitoring data does 
not support the VN's allegation that the operation of the ash ponds has caused the alleged 
exceedances. Isolated monitoring well results showing exceedances of a given parameter that 
are not seen in any of the other fourteen monitoring wells (e.g., thallium, selenium) do not 
support the VN's allegations. Multiple pH exceedances from a single sampling event are more 
indicative of an equipment error than actual groundwater conditions. Similarly, the chloride 
exceedances, most of which were not reproducible in subsequent sampling events and none are 
which are associated with boron and sulfate exceedances, also are not consistent with the ash 
ponds being the source of the exceedances. For other parameters, such as arsenic, manganese 
and iron, the monitoring results are far more consistent with the presence of a reducing 
environment in the area of groundwater where these elevated levels were detected. Finally, the 
alleged exceedances for selenium are not real. They are the result of transcription errors which 
occurred in the preparation of its quarterly reporting to the Agency due to the incorrect 
placement of a decimal point in the monitoring results values. This is now corrected in the 
enclosed Tables. 

The separate evaluation of the groundwater monitoring results relative to each of the 
three active ash ponds and the former ash pond individually also reveals several deficiencies in 
the alleged violations. Each of these ash ponds is discussed separately below. 
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Ash Bypass Basin: 

The furthest south (upgradient) pond is known as the "Ash Bypass Basin." As previously 
stated, the Ash Bypass Basin was relined with a HDPE liner in 2010. Monitoring well MW -9 is 
the upgt"adient monitoring well for the Ash Bypass Basin and wells MW-ll and MW-12 are the 
two immediately downgradient wells. Monitoring well MW-12 is screened within the silt/clay 
unit and monitoring wells MW-9 and MW-ll are screened within the underlying sand unit. For 
up gradient well MW-9, multiple exceedances of boron and manganese were detected. 
Monitoring well MW -11 had one exceedance of boron, but this occurred during the last round of 
quarterly sampling and hence, additional monitoring data is not yet available to determine 
whether this is an isolated event. While there were multiple exceedances of manganese in 
monitoring well MW -12, it did not have any reported exceedances of boron. The highest boron 
concentrations were reported in upgradient well MW -9. This indicates that the boron source is 
not associated with the operation of the Ash Bypass Basin. Further, the manganese 
concentrations in well MW-12 are similar to the concentrations measured at upgradient well 
location MW-9; however, the manganese concentrations at MW-ll (ranging from 2.2 mg/l to 3.6 
mg/l) are higher than in the up gradient well which ranges from 0.19 mg/l to 0.48 mg/l. Elevated 
manganese concentrations can be associated with sources other that ash ponds and can be 
reflective oflocalized mineralogy and reduction-oxidation (redox) conditions, especially when 
elevated levels of both boron and sulfate are absent. Similarly, the alleged iron exceedances in 
well MW-12 can also be reflective of localized mineralogy and redox conditions especially in the 
absence of elevated concentrations of boron and sulfate, as is the case here. 

The conclusion that the elevated manganese and iron levels are not due to the operation 
of the ash ponds is further supported by analytical testing performed in August 2008 of plant 
bottom ash, fly ash and fines. The analytical testing, which included Toxic Characteristic 
Leaching Procedure (TCLP) analyses, provides relevant information concerning the leaching 
nature of the ash compounds. The analytical data shows no detections of manganese in TCLP 
leachate from any ofthe samples. The leached iron detections range from non-detect to 0.044 
mg/l, which is substantially lower than the iron exceedances in monitoring well MW-12. The 
analytical data does not support the VN's allegations that the source of the alleged exceedances 
in these monitoring wells is associated with the operation of the Ash Bypass Basin. 

The weight of the evidence shows that the Ash Bypass Basin is not causing the alleged 
groundwater impacts. Moreover, even if a case could be made that it was, MWG has already 
taken the necessary steps to address it. As described above, the Ash Bypass Basin was relined in 
2010 with a state of the art HDPE liner. 

Ash Surge Pond: 

The Ash Surge Pond is located north (i. e., downgradient) ofthe Ash Bypass Basin. It is 
the largest of the ash ponds and is lined. Monitoring wells upgradient of the Ash Surge Pond are 
MW-12, MW-ll (previously discussed above because they are also downgradient of the Ash 
Bypass Basin) and monitoring well MW-I0. Wells MW-IS and MW-8 are immediately 
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downgradient of the Ash Surge Pond. 9 Monitoring wells MW -8 and MW -15 are screened within 
the silt/clay unit and well MW-IO is within the underlying sand unit. 

Upgradient well MW -10 had multiple reported exceedances of manganese, ranging from 
2.1 mg/l to 3.8 mg/l. lO (Downgradient well MW-15 has six exceedances of manganese ranging 
from 0.25 mg/l to 0.60 mg/l and well MW -8 has five exceedances of manganese ranging from 
0.18 to 0.28 mg/l. The downgradient concentrations of manganese are clearly lower than in the 
upgradient wells suggesting that the manganese is not associated with operation of the Ash Surge 
Basin. It is also noted that neither wells MW -8 nor MW -15 have exceedances of boron, an ash 
impact indicator. There is also only one reported exceedance of sulfate in monitoring well MW-
15 (650 mg/l), which was not reproducible during subsequent, consecutive sampling events. 
This alleged, isolated sulfate exceedance also was anomalously and significantly higher than all 
other sulfate detections at this monitoring well location, which ranged from 140 mg/l to 300 
mg/l. Hence, the level ofthe single, alleged sulfate exceedance at MW -15 is more than twice 
that of any other reported value for this monitoring well. 

Monitoring well MW -13 is slightly side gradient of the Ash Surge Basin (located just 
west of the southwest corner of the basin). As discussed previously, the boron and sulfate 
detections at this location were the highest of any monitoring well. These levels do not support a 
finding that that they are caused by the Ash Surge Basin's operations because none of the 
downgradient monitoring wells from this basin had any similar boron and sulfate levels detected 
throughout numerous, consecutive sampling events. 

Ash Settling Pond: 

The Ash Settling Pond is locate~ to the north (downgradient) of the Ash Surge Basin. 
Monitoring well MW-8's location is considered up gradient of this pond. Monitoring wells MW-
6 and MW -7 are immediately downgradient of the Ash Settling Pond. MW -6 is screened within 
the silt/clay unit and MW-7 is screened within the underlying sand unit. None of these three 
wells (MWs 6, 7 or 8) had reported exceedances of boron or sulfate. The range of boron 
detections at MW-6 (0.35 mg/l to 0.63 mg/l) and at MW-7 (0.34 mg/l to 0.61 mg/l) are 
significantly lower than the range of boron detections in the up gradient monitoring well MW-8 
(0.57 mg/l to 0.93 mg/l). Hence, the monitoring data indicates that the concentrations of boron 
are lower on the downgradient side of the Ash Settling Pond. The same observation is true for 
the sulfate levels among these sanle monitoring wells. These findings support the conclusion 
that the alleged groundwater impacts in the vicinity of the Ash Settling Pond are not associated 
with its operation. 

9 Monitoring well MW-IS is also adjacent to the northwest comer of the Metals Cleaning Basin, which is not part of 
the ash pond system. 
10 The manganese levels are similar to the elevated detections in monitoring well MW -11. Hence, these results are 
further evidence that the elevated manganese at MW-II is not associated with the operation of the Ash Bypass 
Basin because monitoring well MW-lO is approximately 600 feet away from the Ash Bypass Basin and is not 
downgradient of it. 
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There were other alleged exceedances in MW -6 and/or MW -7, including a single alleged 
exceedance of chloride (MW -6) and one for lead (MW -7), as well as manganese, arsenic, iron, 
and Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) 11 , as discussed above regarding iron and manganese, in the 
absence of elevated concentrations of the coal ash indicators such as boron and sulfate, these 
alleged exceedances are as likely due to other sources that are unrelated to the Ash Settling Pond 
or any of the other Powelion ash ponds. 

Former Ash Pond: 

Monitoring wells MW -1 through MW -5 are located around a former ash pond which is 
no longer in operation. Monitoring wells MW -1 and MW -10 are located up gradient of this 
former ash pond. Monitoring wells MW -2 through MW -5 are located downgradient of it. All 
six of these wells are screened within the sand unit. None of these wells have any exceedances 
of boron or sulfate. The single boron exceedance noted in the VN for these wells was at well 
MW -1, which a further review has found to be a transcription error in the prior reporting to the 
Agency. (See corrected value for MW-l in enclosed Tables) The boron levels both up gradient 
and downgradient of the former ash pond are similar to each other, further evidence that the 
former ash pond is not the source of groundwater impacts. Although there are alleged 
manganese exceedances in monitoring wells MW-4 and MW-5, the range of these manganese 
values was lower than in these wells than in the up gradient monitoring well MW-I0. The single 
alleged nitrate exceedance in up gradient monitoring well MW -1 is an isolated, unconfirmed 
exceedance that is insufficient to prove a violation of the nitrate standard. Further, there are 
various sources of nitrate in groundwater that are not associated with ash pond operations, 
especially when no elevated levels of known coal ash indicator compounds are present, which is 
the case here. 

The Agency's broad and all-encompassing allegations regarding the ash ponds are simply 
not supported by a careful evaluation of the underlying groundwater monitoring data for the 
respective monitoring wells that are located upgradient and downgradient of each of the subject 
ash ponds. The groundwater monitoring data on which the VN is based is not sufficient to show 
that the ash ponds are the source of the alleged exceedances. 

C. The Powerton Ash Ponds Are Not Causing Groundwater Exceedances 

Because the Agency failed to specify which of the provisions of Section 12 of the Act 
MWG allegedly violated, MWG has had to speculate to identify the potential Section 12 
violations this response needs to address. As stated above, MWG objects to the vagueness of, 
and legally deficient notice provided by, the VN and reserves its right to respond further when 
and if the Agency properly identifies the provisions of Section 12 on which it is relying. 

II The single alleged exceedance for selenium in MW -7 that is included in the VN is due to a transcription error in 
prior reporting of monitoring results to the Agency. It has been corrected in the enclosed Tables. 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office, 11/05/2012



Illinois EPA 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
July 27,2012 
Page 12 

For purposes of this response, based upon the regulations cited by the Agency in the VN, 
MWG has assumed that the Agency's alleged violations of Section 12 are limited to Sections 
12(a), which prohibits causing or allowing water pollution, and to Section 12(d), which prohibits 
causing or allowing the creation of a water pollution hazard. 415 ILCS 5112(a), (d). Based on 
these assumptions regarding the substance of the Illinois EPA's alleged violations, MW G 
submits that the Agency cannot show that the ash ponds at Powerton caused or allowed water 
pollution or created a water pollution hazard. 

The overwhelming number of the alleged exceedances of the Class 1 groundwater 
standards are random and inconsistent. For all but a few of the parameters, the necessary 
confirmation of the existence of groundwater impacts above the Class 1 groundwater standards is 
absent. For the remaining few, the data is insufficient to prove that the source is one or more of 
the subject ash ponds. 

To show a violation of Section 12(a) and 12(d), there must be a showing not only of the 
presence of a potential source of contamination, but also that it is in sufficient quantity and 
concentration to render the waters harmful. Bliss v. Illinois EPA, 138 Ill. App. 3d 699, 704 
(1985) ("mere presence of a potential source of water pollutants on the land does not necessarily 
constitute a water pollution hazard"). In other words, there must be a causal link between the 
potential source and the water or grOlmdwater. The groundwater monitoring data on which the 
Agency relies does not establish this essential causal link between the ash ponds and the 
groundwater. Therefore, the Agency has failed to meet its burden to prove that the ash ponds are 
the cause of the alleged exceedances of the groundwater standards as required to prove a 
violation "of Sections 12(a) or 12(d) of the Act. 415 ILCS 5112(a), (d). 

Illinois EPA also alleges violations of the groundwater quality regulations based on 
exceedances of the groundwater quality standards in 35 Ill. Admin. Code § 620.401. There is no 
violation here of Section 620.401. Section 620.401 solely provides the legal criteria that 
groundwater must meet the standards appropriate to the groundwater's class. It is a foundational 
regulation, allowing for different classes of groundwater to meet different groundwater 
standards. It is not a prohibition regulation. There is no conduct prohibited by this section of the 
regulations in which MWG is alleged to have engaged. MWG CaIIDot and did not violate Section 
620.401. 

The remaining alleged groundwater regulation violations, Sections 620.115, 620.301, 
620.405, aIld 620.410 of the Board Regulations, are all based on the Agency's contention that 
MWG's operation of the ash ponds has caused the exceedances of the groundwater standards 
detected in the monitoring data. To sustain these allegations, the Agency must show that MWG 
caused a discharge of the subject constituents from ash ponds which in turn caused the 
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exceedances of the groundwater standards. 12 The relevant facts and circumstances do not 
support either conclusion. 

The use and condition of the ash ponds does not support a finding that they are releasing 
constituents to the groundwater. They are not disposal sites. The ash is regularly removed from 
the ponds by MWG. The linings in two of the ash ponds are of sufficient permeability, 
consistent with accepted regulatory guidance, to prevent the release of constituents. Moreover, 
the groundwater down-gradient of the only unlined ash pond shows no impacts from coal ash 
constituents. Finally, pursuant to the terms of the Powerton Station's NPDES Permit, these ash 
ponds are part of the flow-through wastewater treatment process at the station. MWG's 
operation of the ash ponds has been carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
the NPDES Permit. Under Section 12(f) of the Act, compliance with the terms and conditions of 
any permit issued under Section 39(b) of the Act is deemed ~ompliance with this subsection. 

Similarly, the groundwater data on which the Agency relies does not provide a sufficient 
scientific or technical evidentiary basis on which to conclude that the ash ponds are causing the 
alleged groundwater exceedances. The essential "causal link" between the ash ponds and the 
elevated constituents in the groundwater is missing. The data is at best inconclusive on this 
issue, while certain aspects of the data clearly point to other, unrelated causes. 

Because the ash ponds have not been shown to have caused a release of any contaminants 
that are causing the groundwater exceedances, the Agency's VN does not support its claims that 
MWG has violated Sections 620.405 or 620.301 of the Board regulations. Accordingly, MWG 
also has not violated Section 620.115 ofthe Board regulations. 

III. Compliance Commitment Agreement 

This VN should not have been issued. Given the absence of proof that the ash ponds are 
the cause of the alleged groundwater exceedances, the Agency's request for a Compliance 
Commitment Agreement (CCA) is an attempt to compel MWG to conduct unnecessary 
corrective action. 

Moreover, with the pending federal regulatory process to enact regulations for the design 
and operation of ash ponds, it is prudent to await the outcome of the proposed federal regulations 
to determine whether any changes to the ash ponds construction or operation are required by 
those regulations. The Agency itself has previously advanced this position. In 2010, the 
Agency's Steven Nightingale testified before the Illinois Pollution Control Board that the Board 
should consider initiating a temporary moratorium on the closure of coal ash impoundments 
because ofthe U.S. EPA's intention to regulate them. (See In the Matter of Ameren Ash Pond 
Closure Rules (Hutsonville Power Station): Proposed 35 Ill.Adm.Code Part 840.101 Through 

12 See People of the State of Illinois v. ESG Watts, Inc., PCB 96-] 07 slip op. at p. 41 (February 5, ]998) (By finding 
the respondent caused a discharge of constituents into the groundwater causing a violation of the Class 11 
Groundwater standards, the Board found the respondent also violated 35 lAC §§ 620.301 and 620.115). 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office, 11/05/2012



Illinois EPA 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
July 27,2012 
Page 14 

840.152, Docket R09-21 (October 7, 2010) atp. 64) On behalf of the Agency, Mr. Nightingale 
told the Board that if industry had to take action in the interim, it "could end up expending 
substantial money and resources only to find they are subject to additional and/or different 
closure requirements for those units." (Jd.) The Agency's pursuit of this enforcement action, 
particularly given the deficiencies in its alleged evidence, also threatens to force MWG to take 
actions that may conflict with or otherwise differ from the requirements in the upcoming federal 
regulations. 

As the hydrogeologic assessment showed, there is no threat to human health presented by 
the alleged exceedances ofthe groundwater standards. The hydrogeologic assessment 
investigated the presence of potable water sources within a 2,500-foot radius ofthe site. Six 
wells are located within the 2,500-foot radius of the site; however none of the wells are down­
gradient ofthe ash ponds. In fact, two of the wells supply the Powerton Station with water, and 
are regularly sampled for potable water constituents. The sampling results have consistently 
been in compliance with potable water regulations. 13 In the absence of any potable groundwater 
receptors or use, groundwater at the Powerton site does not pose any risk to human health. 
Accordingly, awaiting the outcome of the federal regulatory proposal is appropriate under these 
circumstances. 

Because MWG's preference is to cooperate with the Agency in this matter, MWG 
presents here a proposed CCA that should be acceptable based on the relevant facts and 
circumstances. The proposed CCA terms are as follows: 

A. The ash ponds will not be used as disposal sites and ash will continue to be removed 
from the ponds on a periodic basis. 

B. MWG has installed a new liner in the Ash Bypass Basin that provides protection 
against the migration of ash constituents to the groundwater. 

C. The ash ponds and the Ash Bypass Basin will be maintained and operated in a 
manner which protects the integrity of the existing liners. During the removal of ash 
from the ponds, appropriate procedures will be followed to protect the integrity of the 
existing liners, including operating the ash removal equipment in a manner which 
minimizes the risk of any damage to the liner. 

D. During the ash removal process, visual inspections of the ponds will be conducted to 
identify any signs of a breach in the integrity of the pond liner. In the event that a 
breach of the pond liner is detected, MWG will notify the Agency and will submit a 
corrective action plan for repair or replacement, as necessary, of the liner. Upon the 
Agency's approval, and the issuance of any necessary construction permit, MWG will 
implement the cOlTection action plan. 

13 See previously submitted Hydrogeologic Assessment of Midwest Generation Electric Generation Stations: Will 
County Station, Waukegan Station, Joliet 29 Station, Crawford Station, Powerton Station. 
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E. MWG proposes to establish a Groundwater Management Zone ("GMZ") below the 
ash ponds pursuant to Section 620.250 of the Board's regulations. 35 Ill. Admin. 
Code § 620.250. The corrective action required by the GMZ regulations is addressed 
by the existing pond liners. MWG is also willing to evaluate the inclusion of 
institutional controls regarding the area of impacted groundwater, provided that any 
institutional controls allow for the continued use of the Powerton potable water wells 
which are located outside of the subject area and for which regular, repeated testing 
has confirmed are not affected. 

F. MWG will continue to monitor the groundwater through the existing fifteen 
groundwater monitoring wells and report its findings to Illinois EPA, pursuant to 
Section 620.250(c) of the GMZ Regulations, 35 Ill. Admin. Code § 620.250(c). 
MWG reserves the right to request the Agency's approval of a cessation of all or 
some of the monitoring requirements based on future monitoring results. 

G. MWG will continue to monitor the development of the Coal Combustion Residuals 
Proposed Rules, EPA-HQ-RCRA-2009-0640. When the final rule is issued, MWG 
will promptly notify Illinois EPA how it will comply with the new Federal Rules. 

This letter constitutes our response to and proposed CCA for the Violation Notice W-
2012-00057. MWG also reserves the right to raise additional defenses and mitigation arguments 
as may be necessary, in defense ofthe allegations listed in the Violation Notice in the event of 
any future enforcement. We look forward to discussing the above information further at the soon 
to be scheduled meeting with the Agency's representatives. Please contact me to schedule a 
mutually convenient date for the meeting. 

Very truly yours, 

~~ 
Susan M. Franzetti 
Counsel for Midwest Generation, LLC 

Enclosures 

cc: Maria L. Race, Midwest Generation, LCC 
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10 South LaSalle Street· Suite 3600 . Chicago, Illinois 60603 
312.251.5250 . fax 312.251.4610 . www.nijmanfranzetti.com 

lennifer T. Nijman 
n@nijmanfranzetti.com 

VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL 

Illinois EPA 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
Attn: Andrea Rhodes, CAS # 19 
P.O. Box 19276 
Springfield, IL 62794-9276 

July 27, 2012 

Re: Violation Notice: Midwest Generation, LLC, Will County Generating Station 
Identification No.: 6283 
Violation Notice No.: W-2012-00058 

Dear Ms. Rhodes: 

Susan M. Franzetli 
sf@nijmanfranzetti.com 

In response to the above-referenced June 11,2012 Violation Notice ("VN"), received on June 13, 
2012, this written response is timely submitted on behalf of the Midwest Generation, LLC ("MWG"), 
Will County Generating Station ("Will County"). MWG also requests a meeting with the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EPA" or "Agency") to discuss the VN and the 
infonnation provided in this response. 

MWG regrets that the Illinois EPA decided to issue the VN because MWG has tried to 
work cooperatively with the Illinois EPA concerning the hydrogeologic assessment of the coal 
ash ponds at Will County even though it had significant concerns and objections to how the VN 
has proceeded in this matter. I Nevertheless, MWG complied with the Agency's request that it 
conduct a hydrogeologic assessment ofthe area around the coal ash ponds and followed its 
requirements and comments for how the hydrogeologic assessment should be conducted, even 
though it was under no legal obligation to do SO.2 At no time however did MWG agree that the 
scope and nature of the hydrogeologic assessment the Agency required it to perfonn would 

I See, e.g., MWG (B. Constantelos) letter to Illinois EPA (A. Keller) dated July 15,2009. MWG is also working 
cooperatively with the USEPA with regards to the Coal Combustion Residuals Proposed Rules, EPA-HQ-RCRA-
2009-0640, and is trying to coordinate the responses and requirements of both Agencies. USEPA first issued the 
proposed rules on June 21, 2010, and requested additional comments and information on October 12,2011. The 
additional information comment period closed on November 14,2011, and MWG is now waiting for the USEPA to 
issue the final rule. 
2 MWG continues to reserve its objection that the Illinois EPA did not have the legal authority to require the 
hydrologic assessments of the ash ponds under Sections 4 or 12 of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act (the 
"Act") or the Groundwater Quality Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code Part 620. 

Printed on 100% post-COf15Umer w(lsle. 
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provide any basis for concluding that the ash ponds were impacting groundwater. The alleged 
violations in the VN are based solely on the results of the hydrogeologic assessment MWG 
performed at the Agency's request. The results of the hydrogeologic assessment do not show 
that the coal ash ponds at the Will County Station are impacting the groundwater and do not 
provide the necessary evidence to support the alleged violations contained in the VN. 

Well prior to the issuance of this VN, MWG met with the Agency to discuss the 
groundwater monitoring results and to discuss cooperatively how to proceed based on those 
results, including what additional actions, if any, the Agency believed were necessary. The 
Agency told MWG that it had not yet decided how to proceed. The next development was the 
issuance of the VN. The VN itself provides no information concerning the basis for the 
Agency's apparent conclusion that ash impoundments are the cause of the alleged groundwater 
impacts, other than the conclusory statement that "[0 ]perations at ash impoundments have 
resulted in violations ofthe Groundwater Quality Standards." The VN also provides no 
information concerning the nature or type of corrective action which the Agency may deem 
acceptable to address the alleged violations. The Agency is not pursuing this matter in a way that 
allows MWG to prepare an effective response or a Compliance Commitment Agreement. 

This letter provides a detailed response to each of the alleged violations in Attachment A 
of the VN to the extent possible given lack of information provided in the VN. It also advances 
MWG's general objection to the legal sufficiency ofthe notice ofthe alleged violations 
contained in the VN. MWG maintains that the Illinois EPA CaIIDot prove the alleged violations 
in the VN, and does not, by submitting this response, malce any admissions of fact or law, or 
waive any of its defenses to those alleged violations. 

I. General Objection to the Legal Sufficiency of the Violation Notice 

The VN does not comply with the requirements of Section 31 of the Act. Section 
31(a)(1)(B) of the Act requires the Illinois EPA to provide a detailed explanation of the 
violations alleged. 415 ILCS 5/31(a)(1)(B). Under the Act, MWG is entitled to notice of the 
specific violation charged against it and notice of the specific conduct constituting the violation.3 

The VN fails to provide adequate notice to MWG of either the alleged violations or the activities 
which the Agency believes are necessary to address them. The VN states that "[0 ]perations at 
ash impoundments have resulted in violations of the Groundwater Quality Standards .... " 
(Violation Notice, Attachment A, page 1, 1st paragraph) No further description of the alleged 
"ash impoundments" is provided in the VN. Multiple ash impoundments exist at the Will 
County Station. It is impossible to identify from the contents of the VN what operations or 
activities at the Will County Station the Agency is claiming are the cause of the alleged 
violations, including whether it is the Agency's position that each of the Station's ash ponds, or 

3 Citizens Utilities Co., v. IPCB, 9 Ill.App.3d 158, 164,289 N.E.2d 642,648 (2nd Dist., 1972) (a person is entitled to 
notice of the specific violation charged against it and notice of the specific conduct constituting the violation). See 
also, City of Pekin v. Environmental Protection Agency, 47 Ill.App.3d 187, 192,361 N.E.2d 889, 893 (3rd Dist., 
1977. 
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only celiain ones, have caused the alleged violations. Absent an accurate or complete 
description of the activities or operations that the Agency is alleging caused the violations, it is 
also not possible to identify what action might be necessary to resolve them. Attachment A to 
the VN states: "Included with each type of violation is an explanation of the activities that the 
Illinois EPA believes may resolve the violation." However, no such explanation is provided in 
the VN. In sum, the VN fails to comply with the legal requirement that it include a detailed 
explanation of the violations alleged, does not inform MWG of the specific conduct constituting 
the alleged violations and provides no notice of what is necessary to resolve the alleged 
violations. The Section 31 process is based on fundamental principles of due process. MWG 
should not have to speculate about what activities it allegedly engaged in that caused the 
violations and how to address them to resolve the alleged violations. In the absence of this 
material, statutorily-required information, the Agency also has effectively denied MWG's 
statutory right to formulate an acceptable Compliance Commitment Agreement to submit for the 
Agency's approval. --

The VN is also deficient regarding its explanation of what laws MWG has allegedly 
violated. The VN solely alleges that MWG violated "Section 12" of the Act. 415 ILCS 5/12. It 
does not provide any further specification as to which ofthe provisions of Section 12 MWG has 
allegedly violated. 

Section 12 of the Act has nine subsections, consecutively numbered (a) through (i). Each 
of these subsections describes a different and distinct water pollution prohibition. 415 ILCS 
5/12(a)-(i). However, the VN issued to MWG does not identify which of the nine subsections 
the Agency is alleging MWG violated. Based on the contents of Section 12 of the Act, the 
Agency is taking the position that MWG violated each and everyone of the provisions of 
Section 12. Based on the relevant facts, it is highly unlikely that this is the intent of the VN. 
Therefore, the VN's general reference to Section 12 of the Act, without any other explanation, is 
not a "detailed explanation of the violations." This is yet another example of how the VN fails to 
provide MWG with adequate notice as a matter of law and thereby violates MWG's due process 
. h 4 ng ts. 

By failing to provide a detailed explanation of the violations and any explanation of the 
activities that the Illinois EPA believes may resolve the violations, the Illinois EPA has 
effectively denied MWG the opportunity to properly and thoroughly respond to the alleged 
violations and to malce an acceptable offer to resolve them. The VN's deficiencies conflict with 
the intent and purpose of Section 31 of the Act, which is to avoid unnecessary litigation. 
Therefore, MWG respectfully requests that Illinois EPA rescind the VN and suspend any further 
enforcement action unless and until it has taken the necessary actions to correct and cure the 
legal deficiencies in the notice of the alleged violations by following the statutory requirements 
under Section 31(a)(l)(B) of the Act. 415 ILCS 5/31(a)(l)(B). 

4 See, e.g., Grigoleit Co. v. IEPA, PCB 89-184, slip op at p. 11 (November 29, 1990) (Failure to notify permit 
applicant of alleged violations and provide an oppOIiunity to provide information in response was a violation of 
applicant's due process rights). 
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II. Response to Alleged Violations in the VN 

Subject to and without waiving its objections to the legal sufficiency of the VN, MWG 
nevertheless has attempted to discern the legal basis for the alleged violations and to prepare this 
response in defense to those allegations based on various assumptions. MWG reserves the right 
to supplement this response, including by submitting a separate response should the Agency 
provide the legally required notice under Section 31 of the Act. 

The VN alleges that the "[oJperations at ash impoundments" at MWG's Will County 
Station have resulted in violations of certain of the Groundwater Quality Standards at the 
respective monitoring wells identified in the VN. (Violation Notice at Attachment A) MWG 
believes the Agency's use of the term "ash impoundments" is intended to refer to the structures 
that the Will County Station commonly refers to as "ash ponds," and that is how they will be 
referred to here. The Agency further alleges that the alleged violations of the groundwater 
quality standards in 35 Ill. Admin. Code § 620 also constitute violations of Section 12 of the Act 
and the underlying groundwater regulations in 35 Ill. Admin. Code § 620. It is undisputable that 
the Agency has the burden to prove these alleged violations both in proceedings before the 
Illinois Pollution Control Board and in the courts. 5 However, the groundwater monitoring data 
on which the Agency primarily, if not solely, relies to assert these violations is not sufficient, 
legally or technically, to prove that any "ash impoundments" is the source of the alleged 
groundwater impacts. Further, based on the existing condition of the ash ponds, it is not likely 
that they are a source of the alleged groundwater impacts. 

To support its defense to the alleged violations, MWG has set forth below a description 
of: (1) the condition and use of the ash ponds at Will County; (2) the hydrogeologic assessment 
performed at the Will County Station; (3) the site hydrology; and (4) why the analytical data 
from the monitoring wells does not establish that the ash ponds are the source of the alleged 
exceedances of the groundwater standards. 6 In addition, for certain of the alleged exceedances, 
additional information not considered by the Agency shows that it is either more likely, or at 
least as likely, that the source ofthe alleged exceedance is something other than the ash ponds. 
In either case, the Agency cannot sustain its burden to prove the alleged violations. 

5 Section 31 (e) of the Act provides in relevant part: "In hearings before the Board under this Title, the burden shall 
be on the Agency ... to show either that the respondent has caused or threatened to cause ... water pollution or that the 
respondent has violated or threatens to violate any provision of this Act or any rule or regulation of the Bdard or 
pel111it or term or condition thereof." 415 ILCS 5/31 (e); Citizens Utilities v. IPCB, 9 Ill. App. 3d 158, 164, 289 
N.E.2d 642, 646 (1972) (the Agency has the burden of proof in enforcement actions). 
6 In preparing this response, MWG closely reviewed the groundwater monitoring reports previously submitted to the 
Agency for the monitoring wells that are identified in the VN. In the course of this review, some data transcription 
errors were found in the previously submitted data tables included in the groundwater monitoring reports. Copies of 
the corrected data tables are enclosed. The tables are annotated to identify the nature of the corrections made to the 
previously submitted reports. However, none of the transcription errors affected the values noted in the VN. 
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A. The Condition of the Ash Ponds 

For several reasons, the construction and operation of the Will County ash ponds makes it 
unlikely that they are the cause of the alleged violations. The current construction and use of the 
ash ponds minimizes the potential for leakage from the ash ponds to groundwater. 

First, the Will County ash ponds are relatively small and they are not used as pelmanent 
disposal sites for ash. Ash is stored in the ponds and removed as needed for operational 
purposes. This operating condition serves to minimize the potential for the release of ash 
constituents to the groundwater. 

Second, unlike many other ash ponds in Illinois, the four ash ponds at Will County are 
not simply earthen ponds with no protection against the migration of constituents into the land or 
groundwater. Each ofthe Will County ash ponds is lined to prevent releases to groundwater. 
Moreover, as further described below, MWG previously instituted a program which evaluated 
the ash ponds maintained at its stations with regard to the potential risk of migration of ash 
constituents to the environment. Pursuant to this internal evaluation, MWG scheduled one of the 
ash ponds at Will County, Pond 3S, for replacement of its liner because its evaluation showed 
that this pond theoretically presented the highest threat of a release as compared to the other 
ponds. However, when MWG initiated the liner replacement project, it found that the existing 
liner of Pond 3S, consisting ofPoz-o-Pac material used to line all of the Will County ash ponds 
at issue here, was intact and in excellent condition. It did not need to be replaced. Because the 
new liner materials had already been plJ!chased and the funds committed for the liner 
replacement, MWG nevertheless proceeded to install the new liner on Pond 3S in 2009. In the 
course of that project, MWG further discovered that the Poz-o-Pac lining was in such good 
condition, that it was a significant challenge just to remove it from the ash pond so that the new 
liner could be installed. Because the Pond 3S liner project showed that the condition and 
integrity of its Poz-o-Pac liner was excellent, and the other three ash ponds have liners 
constructed of the same Poz-o-Pac material, the liners in the other three Will County ash ponds 
have not been replaced. The facts regarding the Pond 3S liner evaluation project serves to rebut 
the Agency's contention that the ash ponds are the source of the alleged groundwater impacts in 
the VN. 

The other three Will County ash ponds that are still constructed ofPoz-o-Pac material 
meet accepted standards for preventing the migration of constituents to the environment. Each 
has a bottom constructed of two 12-inch layers ofPoz-o-Pac, surrounding 12 inches offill 
material, and sides constructed of 3 feet of Poz-o-Pac. 7 The permeability of the Poz-o-Pac liner 
is 10-7 cm/sec. Notably, this is the same degree of permeability that is required in the Illinois 
Pollution Control Board ("Board") Regulations for constructing a new solid waste landfill where, 
unlike the ash ponds, waste materials are to be disposed of on a permanent basis. See 35 Ill. 
Admin. Code § 811.306(d). The liners in the Will County ash ponds achieve the level of 
permeability which the Illinois regulations expressly recognize is sufficient to prevent the release 

7 Paz-a-Pac is an aggregate liner similar to concrete. 
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of constituents to the environment. Hence, the facts regarding the liners in place for these three 
ash ponds also support the conclusion that the ash ponds are not the source of the exceedances of 
groundwater standards alleged in the VN. 

The facts to rebut the Agency's alleged violations are even more persuasive regarding the 
fOUlih ash pond, Pond 3S. As noted above, Pond 3S was relined in 2009 with a high-density 
polypropylene (HDPE) liner. The existing Poz-o-Pac liner on the sides of Pond 3S remained in 
place, with the new HDPE liner placed on top of it, providing even greater protection against the 
release of ash constituents. The 2009 HDPE liner alone has a permeability of approximately 
10-13 cm/sec. Hence, the current liner in Pond 3S achieves a level of permeability that is 
significantly better than the Illinois permeability requirements for solid waste landfills. 

The VN contains no facts concerning the condition of the liners in the Will County ash 
ponds that would indicate that they are allowing ash constituents to escape from the ponds. For 
example, the Agency does not contend that there are any breaches in the integrity of the ash pond 
liners that are allowing ash constituents to be released to the groundwater. The Agency similarly 
does not claim that the materials used for the existing liners are inadequate to prevent the 
migration of constituents. The Agency would be hard pressed to mal(e such a claim because the 
liner materials either meet or exceed the analogous requirements for Illinois landfills and the 
Agency approved the use of these materials when it issued the necessary construction permit for 
the liner installations. In ~he absence of such evidence, it is certainly far more likely than not that 
the existing ash ponds at the Will County Station are not the source of the groundwater impacts 
alleged in the VN. 

B. Hydrogeologic Assessme.nt and Site Hydrology 

The VN appears to be based on the flawed premise that the hydrogeologic assessment 
which the Agency directed MWG to perform in the vicinity of the ash ponds would be sufficient 
to identify the ash ponds as the source of any elevated levels of constituents in the groundwater. 
This is simply not the case. The results of the hydrogeologic assessment at best give rise to more 
questions about the source of the alleged groundwater impacts, and do not prove that the existing 
ash ponds are the source of those impacts. 

The results of the hydrogeologic assessment show that the site hydrology at Will County 
consists of a complex flow system through the underlying shallow dolomite bedrock. The local 
groundwater flow in the vicinity ofthe ash ponds appears to be divergent. However, based on 
the current water level data, it is not possible to conclude whether the ponds are the cause of the 
divergence or if other conditions may be affecting the groundwater flow system. Some general 
observations based on the groundwater monitoring data can be made relative to upgradient 
versus downgradient monitoring wells. The location of monitoring wells MW-l and MW-2 
generally can be considered to be up gradient of monitoring wells MW -7 and MW -8. Monitoring 
wells MW-3 through MW-6 can be generally considered to be located upgradient of wells MW-9 
and MW -10. The results of a comparison of the groundwater monitoring results for these sets of 
upgradient and downgradient wells do not support the VN's allegation that the ash ponds are the 
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source of the alleged groundwater impacts. The monitoring data shows that the distribution of 
parameter concentrations is so random that the more defensible conclusion is that the ash ponds 
are not the source. 

Generally, the parameters detected in downgradient monitoring wells are at equivalent or 
lower concentrations of constituents than in the associated upgradient well. 8 In fact, there are 
more exceedances of the groundwater standards detected in the up gradient wells than in wells 
downgradient of those locations. Some of the highest concentrations of constituents were found 
in monitoring well MW-4. The monitoring wells located downgradient of MW-4 (MW-9 and 
MW-10), which are also downgradient of the ash ponds themselves, consistently have lower 
parameter concentrations than those found in the up gradient MW -4 monitoring well. This is 
particularly true of the boron and sulfate levels, which are two typical ash leachate indicators. 
The detections in monitoring well MW -4 are consistently almost twice as high for boron and 
three to four times as high for sulfate than the levels found in downgI"adient monitoring wells 
MW -9 and MW -10. This pattern of boron and sulfate detections is totally inconsistent with the 
VN's allegation that the ash ponds are the source of the groundwater exceedances. 

The following additional examples taken from the groundwater monitoring data show 
constituent distributions that are not consistent with the VN's allegation that the ash ponds are 
the source of impacts to groundwater: 

Antimony: Only two monitoring wells, MW-1 and MW-2, showexceedances of 
antimony. Both of these wells are upgradient of monitoring wells MW-7 
and MW -8 where antimony was never detected. 

Manganese: The highest concentration of manganese in any of the monitoring wells 
was 1.0 milligrams per liter (mg/L) at monitoring well MW-4, a 
monitoring well that is up gradient of MW -9 and MW -10. If the ash ponds 
were causing the manganese exceedances, there should be higher 
concentrations of manganese in MW-9 and MW-10 than in MW-4. The 
reverse is the case here. Manganese has not been detected in MW -9 and 
the concentrations of manganese in MW -10 are significantly lower than in 
MW-4. 

Additional, similar examples for the other alleged constituent exceedances can be found in the 
groundwater data from the monitoring wells. In sum, the pattern of the constituent 
concentrations across these monitoring wells clearly does not support the Agency's contention 
that the ash ponds are the source of these constituents. The data are more consistent with the 
opposite conclusion that the ash ponds are not causing these alleged exceedances. 

The VN's allegation that the ash ponds are the source of the elevated levels of chloride 
detected in the groundwater is also wrong. A careful review of the chloride data shows that the 

8 An exception is boron in monitoring well MW-7. 
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source of the elevated chloride levels is unrelated to the ash ponds. All but one of the chloride 
exceedances occurred in March 2011. It is well documented that both shallow groundwater and 
surface water commonly exhibit higher concentrations of chloride in the spring due to rain and 
snow melt transporting dissolved road salt. 9 Also consistent with the identification of road salt 
as the source of the chloride exceedances is the fact that the highest concentrations of chloride 
were found in March 2011 in MW-9. It should also be noted that monitoring well MW-9 is 
located very close to the Des Plaines River. The Des Plaines River is a known receptor for 
chloride-containing stormwater and snow melt run-off. Thus, the presence of elevated chloride 
levels due to the use of road salt is a known occurrence in the vicinity of these monitoring wells. 
Additional evidence that road salt is the likely source of the chloride exceedances is provided by 
the March 2012 groundwater monitoring results. There were no exceedances of the chloride 
groundwater standards in any of the Will County Station monitoring wells in March 2012. These 
results are consistent with the fact that the Chicago Area had relatively little snow in the 2012 .. 
winter and road salt was rarely needed, resulting in lower chloride levels in both surface waters 

d 10 and groun water. 

In sum, the results of the groundwater monitoring conducted at the Will County Station 
do not show that the ash ponds are the source ofthe alleged exceedances. The data collected to 
date is accurately characterized as being inconsistent with the allegation that the operation of the 
ash ponds has caused the alleged violations. 

c. The Will County Ash Ponds Are Not Causing Groundwater Exceedances 

Because the Illinois EPA failed to specify which of the provisions of Section 12 of the 
Act MWG allegedly violated, MWG has had to speculate to identify the potential Section 12 
violations this response needs to address. As stated above, MWG objects to the vagueness of, 
and legally deficient notice provided by, the VN and reserves its right to respond further when 
and if the Illinois EPA properly identifies the provisions of Section 12 on which it is relying. 

For purposes ofthis response, based upon the regulations cited by the Agency in the VN, 
MWG has assumed that the Agency's alleged violations of Section 12 are limited to Sections 
12(a), which prohibits causing or allowing water pollution, and to Section 12(d), which prohibits 
causing or allowing the creation of a water pollution hazard. 415 ILCS 5112(a), (d) Based on 
these assumptions regarding the substance of the Illinois EPA's alleged violations, MWG 
submits that the Agency cannot show that the ash ponds at Will County caused or allowed water 
pollution or created a water pollution hazard. 

The analytical results show that the distribution of the exceedances in the groundwater is 
random, with a predominance of the exceedances occurring in monitoring wells on the east side 

9 Mullaney,John R., et aI, Chloride in Groundwater and Surface Water in Areas Underlain by the Glacial Aquifer 
System, Northern United States, Scientific Investigations Report 2009-5089, U.S. Geological Survey, Reston, VA. 
2009. Table 5. 
]0 Based on snowfall records for O'Hare AirpOli, the 2011 snowfall totaled 43.4 inches compared to 2012's total 
snowfall of only 19.8 inches.(Source: http://www.isws.iIIinois.eduJdata.asp; last checked 7/27112). 
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of the ash ponds, which are generally upgradient (based on higher water level elevations) of 
wells on the west side of the ash ponds. To show a violation of Section 12(a) and 12(d), there 
must be a showing not only of the presence of a potential source of contamination, but also that it 
is in sufficient quantity and concentration to render the waters harmful. Bliss v. fllinois EPA, 
138 Ill. App. 3d 699, 704 (1985) ("mere presence of a potential source of water pollutants on the 
land does not necessarily constitute a water pollution hazard"). In other words, there must be a 
causal link between the potential source and the water or groundwater. The groundwater 
monitoring data on which the Agency relies does not establish this essential causal link between 
the ash ponds and the groundwater. Therefore, the Agency has failed to meet its burden to prove 
that the ash ponds are the cause of the alleged exceedances of the groundwater standards as 
required to prove a violation of sections 12(a) or 12(d) of the Act. 415 ILCS 5112(a), (d). 

The Agency also alleges violations of the groundwater quality regulations based on 
exceedances ofthe groundwater quality standards in 35 Ill. Admin. Code § 620.401. There is no 
violation here of section 620.401. Section 620.401 solely provides the legal criteria that 
groundwater must meet the standards appropriate to the groundwater's class. It is a foundational 
regulation, allowing for different classes of groundwater to meet different groundwater 
standards. It is not a prohibition regulation. There is no conduct prohibited by this section of the 
regulations in which MWG is alleged to have engaged. MWG cannot and did not violate section 
620.401. 

The remaining alleged groundwater regulation violations, 35 Ill. Admin. Code §§ 
620.115,620.301,620.405, and 620.410 of the Board Regulations, are all based on the Agency's 
contention that MWG's operation of the ash ponds has caused the exceedances of the 
groundwater standards detected in the monitoring data. To sustain these allegations, the Agency 
must show that MWG caused a discharge of the subject constituents from ash ponds which in 
turn caused the exceedances of the groundwater standards. ll The relevant facts and 
circumstances do not support either conclusion. 

The use and condition of the ash ponds does not support a finding that they are releasing 
constituents to the groundwater. They are not disposal sites. Ash is removed from the ponds by 
MWG. The linings in all of the ash ponds are of sufficiently low penneability, consistent with 
accepted regulatory guidance, to prevent the release of constituents. The evidence provided from 
the 2009 inspection of the Pond 3 S liner provides compelling supp011 for the finding that they are 
not a likely cause of the alleged exceedances of the groundwater standards. Finally, pursuant to 
the terms of the Will County Station's NPDES Pennit, these ash ponds are part of the flow­
through wastewater treatment process at the station. MWG's operation ofthe ash ponds has 
been carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of the NPDES Permit. Under 
Section 12(f) of the Act, compliance with the tenns and conditions of any pennit issued under 
Section 39(b) of the Act is deemed compliance with this subsection. 

II See People of the State of Illinois v. ESG Watts, Inc., PCB 96-107 slip op. at p. 41 (February 5, 1998) (By finding 
the respondent caused a discharge of constituents into the groundwater causing a violation ofthe Class II 
Groundwater standards, the Board found the respondent also violated 35 lAC §§ 620.301 and 620.115) 
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Similarly, the groundwater data on which the Agency relies does not provide a sufficient 
scientific or technical evidentiary basis on which to conclude that the ash ponds are causing the 
alleged groundwater exceedances. The essential "causal link" between the ash ponds and the 
elevated constituents in the groundwater is missing. The data is at best inconclusive on this 
issue, while certain aspects of the data clearly point to other, unrelated causes. 

Because the ash ponds have not been shown to have caused a release of any contaminants 
that is causing the groundwater exceedances, the Agency's VN does not support its claims that 
MWG has violated sections 620.405 or 620.301 ofthe Board regulations. Accordingly, MWG 
also has not violated section 620.115 of the Board regulations. 

III. Compliance Commitment Agreement 

This VN should not have been issued. Given the absence of proof that the ash ponds are 
the cause of the alleged groundwater exceedances, the Agency's request for a Compliance 
Commitment Agreement (CCA) is an attempt to compel MWG to conduct unnecessary 
corrective action to resolve the alleged violations. 

Moreover, with the pending federal regulatory process to enact regulations for the design 
and operation of ash ponds, it is prudent to await the outcome of the proposed federal regulations 
to determine whether any changes to the ash ponds construction or operation are required by 
those regulations. The Agency itself has previously advanced this position. In 2010, the 
Agency's Steven Nightingale testified before the Illinois Pollution Control Board (the "Board") 
that the Board should consider initiating a temporary moratorium on the closure of coal ash 
impoundments because of the U.S. EPA's intention to regulate them. (See In the Matter of 
Ameren Ash Pond Closure Rules (Hutsonville Power Station): Proposed 35 Ill.Adm.Code Part 
840.101 Through 840.152, Docket R09-21 (October 7, 2010) at p. 64) On behalf of the Agency, 
Mr. Nightingale told the Board that if industry had to talce action in the interim, it "could end up 
expending substantial money and resources only to find they are subject to additional and/or 
different closure requirements for those units." (Id.) The Agency's pursuit of this enforcement 
action, particularly given the deficiencies in its alleged evidence, also threatens to force MWG to 
take actions that may conflict with or otherwise differ from the requirements in the upcoming 
federal regulations. 

As the hydrogeologic assessment showed, there is no threat to human health presented by 
the alleged exceedances of the groundwater standards. The hydrogeologic assessment 
investigated the presence of potable water sources within a 2,500-foot radius of the site. The 
shallow dolomite aquifer underlying the site is not used as a potable water source within this 
radius. The nearest groundwater wells are installed more than 1,500 feet deep, drawing water 
from a deep aquifer below the Maquoketa confining unit. Shallow groundwater at the site 
discharges either to the Des Plaines River or the Chicago Sanitary and Ship Canal (the "Canal"). 
The Canal is not used as a drinking water source. The nearest downgradient water supply intake 
in the Des Plaines River, a headwater of the Illinois River, is located at Peoria, approximately 
137 miles downstream. In the absence of any potable groundwater receptors or use, groundwater 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office, 11/05/2012



Illinois EPA 
Division of Public Water Supplies 
July 27, 2012 
Page 11 

at the Will County site does not pose any risk to human health. Accordingly, awaiting the 
outcome ofthe federal regulatory proposal is appropriate under these circumstances. 

Because MWG's preference is to cooperate with the Agency in this matter, MWG 
presents here a proposed CCA that should be acceptable based on the relevant facts and 
circumstances. The proposed CCA terms are as follows: 

A. The ash ponds will not be used as permanent disposal sites and ash will continue to be 
removed from ponds on a periodic basis. 

B. The ash ponds will be maintained and operated in a manner which protects the 
integrity of the existing liners. During the removal of ash from the ponds, appropriate 
procedures will be followed to protect the integrity of the existing liners, including 
operating the ash removal equipment in a manner which minimizes the risk of any 
damage to the liner. 

C. During the ash removal process, visual inspections of the ponds will be conducted to 
identify any signs of a breach in the integrity of the pond liner. In the event that a 
breach ofthe pond liner is detected, MWG will notify the Agency and will submit a 
conective action plan for repair or replacement, as necessary, of the liner. Upon the 
Agency's approval, and the issuance of any necessary construction permit, MWG will 
implement the conection action plan. 

D. Institutional controls will be evaluated for addressing the alleged exceedances of the 
groundwater standards. There are already Environmental Land Use Controls 
(ELUCs) in place in the vicinity of the Will County Station. The Village of 
Romeoville presently is preparing an ordinance that would annex the land on which 
the ash ponds are located. The Village of Romeoville has a groundwater ordinance 
banning the use of groundwater as a potable water supply throughout the village 
limits. See attached §§ 50.60 through 50.99 of the Romeoville Code). The 
groundwater ordinance follows the requirements under the Pollution Control Board 
TACO regulations, 35 lAC 742.1015. If the Will County Station is not subject to the 
existing Romeoville ordinance, then MWG will submit for the Agency's review and 
approval a proposed restrictive covenant that prohibits the installation of potable 
wells in the area where groundwater exceedances have been detected. 

E. MWG proposes to establish a Groundwater Management Zone ("GMZ") below the 
ash ponds pursuant to section 620.250 of the Board's regulations. 35 Ill. Admin. Code 
§ 620.250. The corrective action required by the GMZ regulations is addressed by 
the existing pond liners and the proposed institutional control. 

F. MWG will continue to monitor the groundwater through the existing ten groundwater 
monitoring wells and report its findings to Illinois EPA, pursuant to section 
620.250(c) of the GMZ Regulations, 35 Ill. Admin. Code § 620.250(c). MWG 
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reserves the right to request the Illinois EPA's approval of a cessation of all or some of the 
monitoring requirements based on future monitoring results. 

G. MWG will continue to monitor the development of the Coal Combustion Residuals 
Proposed Rules, EPA-HQ-RCRA-2009-0640. When the final rule is issued, MWG 
will promptly notify Illinois EPA how it will comply with the new Federal Rules. 

This letter constitutes our response to and proposed CCA for the Violation Notice W-
2012-00058. MWG also reserves the right to raise additional defenses and mitigation arguments 
as may be necessary, in defense of the allegations listed in the Violation Notice in the event of 
any future enforcement. We look forward to discussing the above information further at the soon 
to be scheduled meeting with the Agency's representatives. 

Susan M. Franzetti 
Counsel for Midwest Generation, LLC 

Enclosures 

cc: Maria 1. Race, Midwest Generation, LLC 
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